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FOREWORD 

Office of the Mayor 
The City of Harrisburg 

M.L.K. City Government Center 
10 North Second Street 

Harrisburg, PA 17101-1678 
(717) 255-3040 

The City of Harrisburg (City) has become an example of urban resurgence at a time when many of 
America's cities continue to undergo further decline and serious economic stress. Harrisburg's renewal 
has been multi-faceted, touching virtually every area of city governmental and community endeavor. 

Listed as the second most distressed city in the nation in 1981 under federal distress criteria, 
Harrisburg launched, in 1982, a major change in course based on three priority pursuits : reform of city 
government, development of non-tax revenue sources, and aggressive economic development. These 
remain this City's priorities. 

The resultant success of these efforts is, in part, reflected by the various national and state recognitions 
Harrisburg has received from independent private-sector, professional, civic, and governmental bodies. 

In the past twenty one years, Harrisburg has each year attained the highest national award for 
governmental accounting and financial reporting, the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in 
Financial Reporting. The City has also won the highest national award for budgeting, the Distinguished 
Budget Presentation Award, for the past eighteen consecutive years. Today, only three of the 2,563 
Pennsylvania municipalities can claim the distinction ofpresentIy holding both recognitions. 

In city governmental management, the City has become a nationally recognized leader in in surance 
and risk management and in the application of advanced technology to expand and create more efficient 
municipal services. The City's program to control health care costs has been cited as a pioneer example by 
hospital associations and has been recognized with the State Achievement Award from the Hospital 
Association of Pennsylvania. 

Harrisburg's Police Bureau has attained and retained National Police Accreditation, the highest 
recognition in law enforcement. Of over 21,000 police agencies nationwide, only 746 hold national 
accreditation. Harrisburg also obtained Pennsylvania Law Enforcement Accreditation and is one of only 
nine agencies to have the distinction of holding dual accreditation. Additionally, the City today has the 
second lowest ratio of police officers to resident population of any community in Pennsylvania - one 
officer for every 308 residents. Officers now have the benefit of the largest police vehicle fleet ever 
operated by Harrisburg, and innovations, such as Community Policing Centers, bicycle patrols, crime 
prevention programs, mounted patrols, canine corps, and the new field computer and computer-aided
dispatching systems, have considerably increased police field capabilities and effectiveness. 



The City has become the first fire service in Pennsylvania to establish a certified multi-level firefighter 
apprenticeship-training program. 

In the period of 1981 through 2008, the City's overall Part I crime rate has dropped 45.7%. In the period of 
1982 through 2008, the City's fire rate has dropped 76.0%. 

The extensive parks improvement program undeliaken by the City, resulting in the creation of expanded and 
new recreational facilities of regional benefit, has garnered Tree City U.S.A. designation for the past twenty one 
consecutive years and the Growth Award for five years. The State Department of Environmental Resources 
conferred on Harrisburg the Samuel S. Cobb Award of Excellence, the state's highest award for urban forestIy 
and conservation. The City's park sites and special events attracted over 2.77 million attendees in 2008. 
Further, amongst the City's environmental policies, the Executive Order banning the use of tropical rainforest 
woods in any City-related project is now being used as a worldwide model of municipal action. 

The City's Advanced Wastewater Treatment Facility operated by the City and serving seven municipalities, 
was selected for the nation's highest water pollution control award when it received the First Place National 
Pretreatment Award from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. 

Harrisburg, through the issuance of self-liquidating revenue bonds, has built and today operates various 
revenue-producing facilities, such as the generation of electricity from the burning of methane gas. Processing 
innovations have allowed the City-operated Advanced Wastewater Treatment Facility to contract for the 
processing and disposal of raw sludge from other plants. The City is today less reliant upon real estate and other 
taxes to sustain its operations. In fact, only 23.2% of the total 2008 Budget was funded by taxes. 

Harrisburg is one of only two communities in Pennsylvania to receive four upgrades from the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency's Flood Insurance Administration. These upgrades have occurred as a result 
of the City's ongoing flood plain management and emergency management programs, producing a total 15% -
20% reduction in flood insurance premiums annually for all City property owners. Harrisburg places in the top 
ten percent of communities in the nation in its rating. 

Since 1982, over $4.1 billion in new investment has occurred in Harrisburg with over two-thirds of that total 
having been developed since 1991. Net gains in the number of businesses, livable homes and private-sector jobs 
have reversed nearly three decades of previous decline. The unemployment and vacant propelty rates have 
dropped in the same time period. Property values have appreciated significantly overall in the 1982-2008 
period, from $212 million in 1982 to $1.62 billion in 2008. 

The number of businesses on the City's business and mercantile tax rolls, which was 1,908 in 1981, is now 
5,642, an increase of 196% over the last 27 years. 

In 2008, the City issued a total of 1,623 building permits representing more than $90.2 million in new 
investment. 

The u.S. Conference of Mayors selected Harrisburg as one of eight Profile Cities in the nation as an 
example of successful economic development, a designation which included focus on success in minority 
contracting and the start-up and expansion of minority-owned business enterprise (MBE). Harrisburg's total 
expenditures involving MBE's are greaterthan those of any other community in the state. 

Harrisburg is third only to Philadelphia and Pittsburgh, cities considerable larger, in the amount of certified 
historic rehabilitation in Pennsylvania. The restoration of existing structIlres is a key pmi of the City's economic 
development and historic preservation programming that is essential for older, more densely populated cities 
and towns. Seven areas of the City have been designated or are eligible as national historic districts, allowing 
investment protection, design standards, and investment tax credits for the rehabilitation of income-producing 
structures. Additionally, six areas are designated municipal historic districts with review by a Historic 



Architectural Review Board and City Council, while another area of the City is now an Architectural 
Conservation Overlay District, preserving the streetscape in an historic neighborhood. 

The City's economic development policies and programs provide a range of investment incentives including 
innovative types of project financing. The implementation of the Enterprise Community Plan, the Keystone 
Opportunity Zones, participation in a State Enterprise Zone, and the benefit of the City's iO-year tax abatement 
has fostered development by providing incentives to the private market to invest in the City's future. Few 
municipalities in the Commonwealth can offer these same incentives. 

Harrisburg's recent progress and its planning for the future were the basis for the spurring housing and 
community development projects including the new homeownership opportunities at Marketplace, Capitol 
Heights, and Governor's Square and quality rental propelties at the Residences at Governor's Square and the 
Mount Pleasant Apmtments. The City itself continues to lead redevelopment activities through its vacant 
property reinvestment programs- by converting long vacant and blighted single family homes to homeownership 
opportunities; through its homeowner assistance programs-providing financing to homeowners to rehabilitate 
their homes; and providing assistance to first-time home buyers in the form down payment and closing cost 
assistance to make the dream of homeowners hip a reality. 

The summation ofresuIts fi'om the City's work in the past twenty-five years is the following: 

The City's tax base has expanded to its highest level ever. 
The fire rate has declined to its lowest number since Citywide records have been maintained. 
The number of businesses on the tax rolls is at its highest number ever and more than triple the number that 
existed in 1981. 
The occupancy rate for Class A and Class B+ office space is the best in at least 35 years. 
The number of vacant structures has declined to its lowest number since before the 1972 Agnes Flood. 

The federal policies and social practices which have made American cities the nation's depository for 
society's unwanted and unresolved socio-economic problems continue to present all cities with significant 
challenges and burdens not shared by their suburban neighbors. Exacerbating this circumstance for Harrisburg 
is the presence of extensive tax-exempt holdings of the state government and others, whose presence creates 
significant demand and use for municipal services paid for by others' taxes. Still, the progress of recent days in 
Harrisburg has created a firm foundation on which future progress will be achieved. 

The City looks to the future with far greater optimism and hope than how it entered the 1980's, when this 
city was afraid of its own future. 

With increased spirit, vitality and vision, the City of Harrisburg is pleased to offer this 2008 Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report for your information. 

With wannest personal regards, I am 
Yours sincerely, 

~ 
Stephen R. Reed 

Mayor 
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The City of Harrisburg 
Department of Administration Bureau of Financial Management 

To The Honorable Stephen R. Reed, Mayor, 
Honorable Members of City Council, and 
Citizens of the City of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 

December 23, 2009 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, for the year 
ending December 3 I, 2008, is submitted herewith. This report is prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) and audited in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States by a firm of licensed certified public accountants. 

The financial statements herein were prepared by the City's management, which is responsible for both the 
accuracy of the data presentation and the completeness and fail'lless of this report taken as a whole. To provide a 
reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the City has established a comprehensive 
intel'llal control framework that is designed both to protect the govel'llment's assets from loss, theft, 01' misuse 
and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City of Harrisburg's financial statements 
in conformity with GAAP. Because intel'llal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City of Harrisburg's 
comprehensive framework of intel'llal controls has been designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, 
assurance that the financ ial statements will be free of material misstatement. The data presented, we believe, is 
accurate in all material aspects; and all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to acquire the maximum 
understanding of the City's financial activity have been provided. 

The City of Harrisburg'S financial statements have been audited by Maher Duessel, a finn of licensed 
certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the 
financial statements of the City of Harrisburg for the year ended December 31, 2008, are free of material 
misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made 
by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, 
based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City of 
Harrisburg's financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2008, are fairly presented, in all material 
respects, in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented as the first component of the 
financial section of this report. 

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the 
basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of 
transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City's MD&A can 
be found immediately following the report of the independent auditor. 

As recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the City is required to undergo an annual single audit in 
conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1984, as amended, and U.S. Office of Management 
and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of State alld Local GoVel'lllllellts. Information related to this single audit, 
including the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, findings and recommendations, and independent 
accountants' reports on the intel'llal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations for 
the year ended December 31, 2008, will be included in a separately issued document. 

Re\' , Dr. Ma rti n Luth er Kin g, Jr. City Governm ent Center 
10 North Second Street X Harrisburg, PA 17101 

Tel: (717) 255-6507 Fax: (717)255-7251 



PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT 

The City provides a full range of services which include police and fire protection; water supply and 
distribution; sewage collection, conveyance and treatment; trash collection; streets and infrastructure 
construction and maintenance; community and economic development programs; recreational activities and 
cultural events. In addition to general governmental activities, City officials appoint voting board members and 
have other financial accountability for the City of Harrisburg Leasing Authority, The Harrisburg Authority, the 
Harrisburg Parking Authority, the Coordinated Parking Fund and the Harrisburg Redevelopment Authority; 
therefore, these activities are included in the financial reporting entity. However, the City of Harrisburg 
Housing Authority, Harristown Development Corporation, and Harrisburg School District have not met the 
established criteria ofGASB Statement No. 14 for inclusion in the financial reporting entity and accordingly are 
excluded fi'om this repolt. Additionally, the City is a participant with other municipalities in ajoint venture with 
the Cumberland-Dauphin-Harrisburg Transit Authority that provides bus services to all its participants. 

The City of Harrisburg has been the capital of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania since 1812, as well as the 
County Seat of Dauphin County since the County's creation in 1785. It is the center of the Harrisburg-Carlisle 
Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA), which is composed of the three Central Pennsylvania counties of Dauphin, 
Cumberland, and Perry. The MSA has grown twice the rate of Pennsylvania as a whole. 

The Harrisburg area has a diverse economic base. During 2008, 21.5% of the labor force was employed in 
the wholesale and retail trades, 19.1 % in government, 14.5% in education and health services, 11.4% in 
professional and business services, 8.5% in leisure and hospitality services, 7.0% in manufacturing, 7.4% in 
financial activities, 5.09% in other services 3.6% in construction, and 2.0% in information. For the MSA as a 
whole, the trend has been a shift from good producing to service producing jobs, with overall job gro\\1h. 

Harrisburg continues to experience a sustained economic resurgence unsurpassed in its histOlY with over $4.1 
billion of capital investment by the private and public sectors and over 39,289 building permits issued in the 
City since 1982. In 2008 alone, the City issued 1,623 building permits totaling over $90.2 million in new 
investment. Some of the major new construction projects recently completed or underway and their 
corresponding estimated costs include: Pinnacle Health System at $15.7 million; PPL Electric at $8.6 million; 
Campus Square Partners at $8.2 million; 1 City Island at $6.3 million; Penn Center Harrisburg at $4.6 million; 
Bell Atlantic at $4.3 million; 3003 North Front Street Associates at $3.7 million; Harrisburg Area Community 
College at $2.1 million; Harrisburg Public Libraty at $748,500; and Asia Mall at $2.8 million. 

In 2001, the County of Dauphin completed a comt ordered reassessment on all property county-wide. This 
reassessment resulted in nearly a 100% increase on the appraised value of taxable property effective January I, 
2002. The financial impact of this property reassessment is discussed throughout this letter and has impacted 
positively on the financial statements. 

Harrisburg has become the region's center for commerce, transportation, finance, special events, public 
recreation, the arts, and government. The City's resurgence has reversed nearly three decades of previous 
decline and produced a new vitality that can be seen in the spirit, amenities, and growth spreading throughout 
this metropolitan center in Central Pennsylvania. 

Looking ahead, the economic future of the City appears to be bright. Projected expansion of the tax base; 
continued increases in business, housing and educational activity; and the financial commitment of the private 
sector to commercial and residential revitalization indicate long-term growth and continued financial stability. 

Budgeting Controls 

The City maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual 
appropriated budget approved by City Council. Activities of the General Fund, State Liquid Fuels Tax Fund (a 
nonmajor governmental fund), Debt Service Fund, and all enterprise funds, except Harrisburg Senators 
Enterprise Fund, are included in the annual appropriated budget. Grant programs, accounted for in the Grant 
Programs Fund, are administered under project budgets which are determined by contracts with federal and state 
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grant agencies. Appropriations are authorized by ordinance at the fund level, with the exception of the General 
Fund, which is appropriated at the functional office or department level, except for the Department of 
Administration, which has separate budgets for administration and general expenditures. Administrative control 
is maintained through the establishment of more detailed line-item budgets. 

Fiscal control is achieved in the Capital Projects Fund through provisions of bond indentures and ordinances 
authorizing appropriations at the project level. Control over expenditures in the Parks and Property 
Improvement Fund is achieved by the use of internal spending limits. The City also maintains an encumbrance 
accounting system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control. Encumbered amounts lapse at year
end. However, encumbrances generally are re-appropriated as patt of the following year's budget. 

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the City 
continues meeting its responsibility for sound financial management. 

Debt Admillistratioll 

At December 31, 2008, the City had a number of debt issues outstanding. Debt of the primary govel'llment 
totaling $121,669,599 included $57,115,193 of general obligation and revenue bonds, $40,638,419 of General 
Obligation Refunding Notes, $2,729,821 of Pennsylvania Infrastructure bank loans and $6,645,000 of 
promissOlY notes, $9,710,750 of Capital Leases, and $4,830,416 of Lease Rental debt. Revenue bonds and 
notes totaling $556,904,404 and construction loans of$8,233,000 made up the debt of the component units. 

Under current state statutes, the City's debt limitation is based on a percentage of average total revenues for 
the past three years. As of December 31, 2008, the City's net bonded debt outstanding of $94,964,931 was well 
below the legal limit of $212.0 million. 

The ratio of net general bonded debt to assessed property valuations and the net general bonded debt per 
capita are useful indicators of the City's debt position. As of December 31, 2008, the ratio of net general 
bonded debt to assessed property valuations increased from 5.8 to 5.98. The net general bonded debt per capita 
was $1,936.89, an increase of$58.07 fi'om 2007. 

On December 28, 1995, the City issued Federally Taxable General Obligation Bonds, Series A and B of 
1995, in the aggregate principal amount of $35,734,416 to fund the City's unfunded actuarial accrued pension 
liability with deposits to the applicable City pension plans and for the payment of all costs and expenses related 
to the issuance of the Bonds. The bonds were partially refunded by the issuance of General Obligation Bonds, 
Series E Bonds of 1997. The Series B & E Bonds were paid off in 2006 and 2004, respectively. 

On Januaty 10, 1996, the City issued $7,200,000 General Obligation Notes, Series of 1996, the proceeds of 
which were utilized to purchase the Harrisburg Senators minor league baseball team. The Notes matured on 
Januaty 5, 1998, and were repaid through the issuance of $8,000,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series A 1 of 
1997. 

On December 30, 1997, the City issued various new bond issues in order to reduce interest expense on 
outstanding debt and to fund additional capital projects. During July 1997, the General Obligation Bonds, 
Series BI, were issued to fully repay the 1995 $15,000,000 General Obligation Note. On December 30,1997, 
$24,891,772 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series D, were issued to advance refund the Series B I Bonds 
for the entire $22,195,000 in principal. Also, $12,840,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series E, were 
issued to advance refund a portion of the Federally Taxable Series A Bonds of 1995 (Pension Bonds). 

Also on December 30, 1997, the City issued General Obligation Refunding Notes, Series F of 1997, in the 
amount of $26,632,303. The Notes were issued to refund all of the City's $25,000,000 General Obligation 
Bonds, Series of 1995, and provide funding for certain capital projects such as the building of the National Civil 
War Museum, street and alley repaving, and additional parks/playground improvements throughout the City. 

On June 10,2003, the City issued Pennsylvania Infrastructure Bank Loans, Series A, Band C of2003, in the 
amount of $627,800. These Loans were issued for the purpose of providing funds to apply for and towards 
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various transpOltation infrastructure improvement projects including the Hamilton Street Intersection Project at 
Sixth Street, the State Street Intersection Project at Reservoir Park, and the purchase and installation of energy
saving LED traffic signal lenses for approximately 24 intersections in the City. These Loans have a term of lO 
years and are being paid from General Fund revenues. 

On Februaty 2008, the City issued Pennsylvania Infrastructure Bank Loans in the amount of $2.4 million. 
These loans were used to resurface various streets through out the City. These Loans have a term of 10 years 
and are being paid from General fund revenues. 

On Januaty 7, 2005, the Harrisburg Redevelopment Authority, on behalf of the City of Harrisburg, issued 
Federally Taxable Guaranteed Revenue Bonds, Series A-I of 2005, in the amount of $9,000,000 to provide 
funding for the renovation of the ballpark for the Harrisburg Senators baseball team. An additional $9,000,000 
of Federally Taxable Guaranteed Revenue Bonds were issued by the Harrisburg Redevelopment Authority, on 
behalf of the City of Harrisburg, as Series A-2 of 2005 for this renovation. The City of Harrisburg is the 
Guarantor of both the Series A-I and A-2 Bonds. The Series A-I Bonds were paid off during 2007 from 
proceeds of the sale of the City's Harrisburg Senators minor league baseball lianchise. 

On December 15, 2006, the Harrisburg Redevelopment Authority, on behalf of the City of Harrisburg, 
issued Lease Revenue Bonds, Series of2006 in the amount of $7,200,000. The bonds were used to finance the 
leasing of the McCormick Public Service Center liOln the City and then subleasing of the building back to the 
City. The funds from the issuance of the bonds were turned over to the City. The City is responsible to pay the 
debt service on the bonds. Proceeds from the sale of various City artifacts will be used to pay down the bonds. 

The Harrisburg Authority (THA) issued $1,515,173 Guaranteed Sewer Revenue Notes, Series A, Band C of 
1998 to finance sewage collection system and related sewage infrastructure project. In 1999, additional funds 
were drawn totaling $1,812,086, to finance further collection system projects. 

In May 2001, THA issued Series A of2001, Water Revenue Bonds, which totaled $7,400,000. The proceeds 
were used for and toward capital additions to the water system, consisting of two 5 million gallon concrete water 
storage tanks, repair or replacement of raw water valve stems and valve stem guides within the intake tower at 
the Authority's DeHart Dam facility, repair or replacement of the concrete floor slabs and expansion joints 
constituting the DeHart Dam spillway and celtain other miscellaneous capital projects; provision of funding for 
completion of the 1999 capital project, consisting of the acquisition and installation of new meters equipped 
with radio transmitters and installation of radio-frequency, drive-by meter reading system; the establishment of 
necessary reserves under the Trust Indenture; and the payment of costs and expenses associated with the 
issuance of the 200 I Bonds. 

On July 3, 2002, THA issued Series A, B, C and D, Water Revenue Bonds which totaled $48,825,000. The 
proceeds of these 2002 Bonds were used to advance refund the outstanding Water Revenue Bonds, Series A of 
1999; to purchase from the owner, all of the outstanding Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series B of 1999; to 
purchase from the owner, all of the Federally Taxable Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series C of 1999; to 
refund debt service of the 1994 Bonds due and payable in 2002; to refund the debt service on the outstanding 
1994 Bonds due and payable in 2003; to fund the 2002 debt service reserve fund account for the 2002 Bonds; 
and to pay issuance costs. Of the remaining proceeds, $7.3 million was placed in irrevocable trusts with an 
escrow agent to provide for future debt service on the Series A of 1999 Bonds and a portion of the 1994 Bonds 
with maturities through 2003. 

In August 2002, THA issued Series A, Guaranteed Resource RecovelY Notes which totaled $17,000,000. 
The proceeds of the Notes were used to fund the acquisition of equipment for the Waste Management Facility, 
engineering studies, and working capital. 

In July 2003, THA issued Series A of 2003, Water Revenue Bonds which totaled $56,535,000. The proceeds 
of the Bonds were used to advance refund the outstanding 1993 Water Revenue Bonds, Series B. 

On December 30, 2003, THA issued Series A, D, E and F of 2003, Guaranteed Resource RecovelY Facility 
Revenue Bonds in the amount of$147,555,000. The Series A Bonds, which totaled $22,555,000, were issued to 
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advance refund or otherwise retire all of the outstanding 1998 D Bonds and a portion of the outstanding 2000 
Notes; and to fund working capital to assist in paying costs of compliance with the Derating Agreements and of 
maintaining the site of the Waste Management Facility. The Series D Bonds, which totaled $96,480,000, were 
issued to financing the cost of the retrofit of the facility. The Series E Bonds, which totaled $14,500,000, were 
issued to pay transition cost to operate the Transfer Station Resource Recovery Facility during the construction 
period for the retrofit. The Series F Bonds, which totaled $14,020,000, were issued to provide working capital 
to THA to pay estimated interest on outstanding 1998 A Bonds, 2002 Notes, and 2003 Notes during the 
construction period for the retrofit. 

In 2003, THA issued Series Band C of 2003, Guaranteed Resource RecovelY Notes in the amount of 
$53,370,000. The Series B notes, which totaled $29,085,000, were issued to advance refund or otherwise retire 
a portion of the 1998 A Bonds and a portion of the outstanding 2000 A Notes. The Series C Notes, which 
totaled $24,285,000, were issued to advance refund or otherwise retire a portion of the 1998 A Bonds, all of the 
outstanding 1998 B Bonds and 1998 C Bonds, and a portion of the 2000 A Notes and all of the outstanding 2000 
B Notes. 

In August 2004, THA issued Series A of 2004, Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, in the principal amount of 
$37,455,000. The 2004 Bonds were issued to refund the remaining outstanding balance of the Authority's Water 
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series A of 1994, to fund a swap termination payment, to fund a deposit to the 2004 
debt service reserve fund account, and to pay the costs of issuance. 

In 2007, THA issued Series C of 2007, Guaranteed Resource recovClY Limited Obligation Notes, in the 
principal amount of $23,920,000. The 2007 Series C Notes were used to fund the working capital component of 
the Retrofit Completion Project. 

In 2007, THA issued Series D of 2007, Guaranteed Resource RecovClY Limited Obligation Notes, in the 
principal amount of$IO,765,000. The 2007 Series D Notes were used to fund the Reimbursement Project. 

In August 22,2008, THA issued Series of2008, Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, in the principal amount of 
$69,420,000. The proceeds of the 2008 Bonds, together with available monies, will be used to refund the 
outstanding balance of the Authority's Variable Rate Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series A of2003, fund a 
swap termination payment payable to Societe Generale pursuant to an outstanding interest rate swap agreement 
on the 2003 Water Revenue bonds, fund a deposit to the 2008 Debt Service Reserve Fund Account, and pay for 
issuance costs. 

During 2007, THA entered into a First Amendment and Management and Professional Services 
Agreement with a waste management facility operator (operator). As part ofthat agreement, the operator agreed 
to advance the costs incurred in the retrofit completion up to $25,500,000. At December 31, 2008, the Authority 
had drawn down $8,233,000. 

On December 22, 2000, the Harrisburg Parking Authority (HPA) issued Guaranteed Parking Revenue Bonds, 
Series K of 2000, in the aggregate principal amount of $11,800,000 with a variable interest rate to provide 
funding for the costs of completing the construction of three new parking garages in the Downtown area. 

On September 19,2001, HPA issued $29,400,000 Guaranteed Parking Revenue Bonds, Series J of2001, to 
advance refund $25,785,000 of outstanding Series I Bonds of 1998. 

On December 15, 2001, HPA issued $19,500,000 Guaranteed Parking Revenue Bonds, Series of 2001, to 
provide for the acquisition of the Seventh Street Garage, funding of a debt service reserve fund under the 
Harrisburg Parking Authority indenture, and the payment of the costs of issuing the Bonds. 

In 2003, HPA issued $7,905,000 Guaranteed Parking Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series N of 2003, to 
advance refund $7,400,000 of outstanding Series F Bonds. Also in 2003, HPA issued $ 17,780,000 Guaranteed 
Parking Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 0 of 2003. The 0 Series were issued to purchase U.S. Government 
securities. These securities were deposited into an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all debt 
service payments on the Series H Bonds. 
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In 2005, HPA issued $ I 6,630,000 Guaranteed Parking Revenue Bonds, Series P of 2005 to provide for the 
acquisition and construction of the South Street Garage, funding a debt service reserve fund under the HPA 
indenture, and the payment of costs of issuing the Bonds. 

On Jamlal)' 11,2007, HPA issued $16,965,000 Guaranteed Parking Revenue Bonds, Series R of 2007, to 
provide for the acquisition of a parking condominium; funding of a debt service reserve fund under the 
Authority's indenture; and the payment of the costs of issuing the Bonds. 

On December 15,2007, HPA issued $19,890,000 Guaranteed Parking Revenue Bonds, Series T of 2007, to 
defease the Series of 200 I Bonds. 

On December 19, 1998, the Harrisburg Redevelopment Authority (HRA) issued Federally Taxable 
Guaranteed Revenue Bonds, Series A of 1998 in the principal amount of $6,920,525 and Series B of 1998 in the 
principal amount of $16,716,758. The proceeds of both issues were used to finance the acquisition of the City 
of Harrisburg's right, title and interest in and to portions of the Strawben), Square site. 

HRA entered into an agreement with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania's Department of Trans pOl tat ion for 
an Infrastructure Bank Loan in 2000. This loan is to be used to rehabilitate the Harrisburg Transportation 
Center. The loan has a maximum amount of $1,400,000 and through 2007, $500,000 has been drawn on the 
loan. 

Cash Ma/lageme/lt 

The City's current investment policy is to minimize credit and market risks while maintaining a competitive 
yield on its portfolio. All cash that is temporarily idle is invested in interest bearing demand deposits or in a 
state-wide money market fund, thereby increasing the average yield on idle funds. A significant portion of the 
City's cash and investments are maintained in bank trust accounts under the management of trustees. This cash 
is classified under "Restricted Assets" in the financial statements. 

The City had $692,696 of investment income in 2008, which represented earnings of $692,696 for the 
governmental funds and $215,292 for the business-type funds. 

Investment income of the component units totaled more than $3.2 million, which represented earnings of The 
Harrisburg Authority, the Harrisburg Parking Authority, the Coordinated Parking Fund, and the Harrisburg 
Redevelopment Authority of $2.3 million, $819,050, $30,237, and $19,798, respectively. These accounts are 
primarily restricted trust accounts, made up of mostly U.S. Treasury obligations and interest coupons on U.S. 
Treasury obligations. 

An ordinance of City Council requires that all deposits be held in insured, federally regulated banks or 
financial institutions and that all amounts in excess of federal insurance be fully collateralized in accordance 
with state statute, which requires banks to pledge a pool of eligible assets against the total of its public funds on 
deposit. Although such pooled collateral does not constitute a multiple financial institution collateral pool as 
defined in GASB Statement No.3, City management believes collateralization in accordance with state statute 
adequately protects the City's deposits. 

Risk Ma/lagement 

The Office of Insurance and Risk Management (OIRM) is responsible for the evaluation and acquisition of 
appropriate insurance coverage for the City. This involves the negotiation and procurement of all insurance 
coverage agreements and third-party insurance adjusters for traditional insurance and self-insurance programs 
including general liability, public officials liability, workers' compensation, police professional liability, 
automobile, property, fire, flood, business interruption, and boiler and machinel), coverage. This office, in 
cOl~unction with the City Solicitor's Office on litigation cases, processes all insurance claims and submits them 
to the appropriate insurance companies for consideration. Additional program responsibilities include risk 
financing, special risk administration, employee health and safety matters, and acting as a member of the 
Administration's labor contracts negotiating team focusing primarily on insurance and workplace injUl)' issues. 
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An impOliant mission of this office is to provide a loss control strategy so as to limit potential hazards or 
damages by allowing elected and administrative officials of the City to gain greater control over financial losses 
caused by these circumstances. This strategy includes the examination, inspection, and evaluation of all City 
facilities, activities, procedures and policies. 

The OIRM is also responsible for the management and administration of all facets of the workers' 
compensation program including report preparation, claims processing, and medical service monitoring. In fact, 
the City has an aggressive citywide program earmarked to lower workers' compensation costs. The program, 
which has significantly lowered costs, brings employees who have been on long-term disability leave back to 
gainful employment positions. These employees, who have been released by their primaty physician, perform 
light-duty assignments for different depatiments within the City. This not only cuts back on the costs associated 
with idle workers, but also contributes to the productive operations of the City. This program received the top 
award from the Hospital Association of Pennsylvania in its Managed Care Category. 

Pension Plans 

The City contributes to the Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement System (PMRS), an agent multiple-employer 
public employee retirement system, and to the combined Police Pension Plan, a single-employer pension plan. 
Three pension plans have been established covering substantially all full-time employees. During 2008, the 
contribution to these plans by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania amounted to $285,274. As of January I, 
2007, the date of the most recent actuarial valuation, all three pension plans are fully funded. 

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION 

The Southern Gateway, originally simply an extension of South Third Street to the Interstate 83 ramp, is now 
a project poised to coordinate land use with transportation and infrastructure improvements, resulting in the 
most significant economic development project for a third class city in Pennsylvania. Doubling the downtown's 
area, the Southern Gateway will act as a model for other Pennsylvania cities as well as other state capitals. Also 
underway is a coordinated redevelopment plan for the 17th Street Corridor in South Allison Hill, intended to 
retain and attract businesses offering needed services and living wages for City residents. The Accessibility 
Guidelines, a project recommending methods to create equal access and spur additional commerce within the 
City, was completed in 2005 and is now available in both hard copy and on the Internet. Similar guidelines 
were completed in 2006 to advise property owners, design professionals, and contractors of recommended 
methods for rehabilitation or reconstruction of structll\'es located in historic districts. 

The Geographic Information System (GIS), an electronic database that matches population, property status, 
utilities, regulatory districts, neighborhoods and more, to geographic locations throughout the City, is in use. 
Color aerial photography, acquired during 2003, has been linked to this system to update the City's building 
footprint file. Refinements have been made to the City's community calling system (Dialogic Communications 
Corporation), which alerts City residents and property owners through an automated system to warn of 
emergency situations. Land development, permitting and assistance applications are also available, as well as 
the zoning code and zoning maps, are available at the City's Depatiment of Building and Housing Development 
web page on the City site, allowing businesses and residents to more readily help themselves. 

The City's Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) System was further enhanced during 2008. With computer 
terminals placed in police and fire vehicles supervisOly offices, District Attorney's Office, Probation and Parole 
Office, and many other count and state agencies, CAD accelerates data transfer to field units and allows officers 
and firefighters in the field to access the City's extensive database of police, property and other records, while 
also providing a faster means for repOlis to be electronically prepared and instantaneously entered into this 
database. This system eliminates many manual tasks such as the entty of police repmi information and provides 
greater confidentiality of dispatched information. 

Maintaining an aging water distribution system and acqmrmg a secondaty source of water were major 
concerns of the City. Additionally, recent amendments to the U.S. Clean Water Act mandated water filtration 
for surface water supplies. To address these issues, the City developed a water system improvement plan. The 
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plan called for the construction of a raw water intake and pump station to take water from the Susquehanna 
River as a secondary or back-up water source, placement and replacement of transmission lines, construction of 
a 20 million gallon-per-day water filtration plant, reservoir gate house improvements, and distribution system 
modifications. On March I, 1990, The Harrisburg Authority (the Authority) issued a $50 million Water 
Revenue Note, Series A of 1990, to be secured by user fees to provide for a $7 million payment to the City as 
partial consideration for the sale of the water system to the Authority and to improve the water system as 
indicated above. Through formal management and subsidy agreements between the City and the Authority, the 
City retained responsibility for operating the system and ultimately received a lump sum subsidy payment of 
$41 million in 1992. This payment came from proceeds of water revenue bonds issued by the Authority in 1992 
as the remaining consideration for the sale of the water system to the Authority. This arrangement provided for 
long-term capital improvements and represents the first major water system improvement program in 50 years. 

As previously noted, the City's taxable assessed valuation has increased significantly. However, these 
increases lag other economic development indicators such as building permit revenues. This is attributable to a 
tax abatement ordinance in effect since 1980, which is considered to be the centerpiece of the City's long-term 
economic development plan, as well as constraints imposed by ineffective state assessment laws that are badly 
in need ofrefonn. As previously mentioned, in 2001, the County of Dauphin completed the first county-wide 
reassessment since 1972, and the new values became effective with the 2002 tax year. These reassessed values 
total over $3.1 billion and more accurately reflect market values of all properties within the City. 

Major Illitiatives/or tlte Future 

New construction in the City continues at a healthy pace with private and public sector developers investing 
millions of dollars in a variety of projects currently underway. These projects, when completed, will provide 
new tax revenues, jobs, office space, retail, and at1s and enteltainment. 

One of these projects includes the Pennsylvania Judicial Center. Planning has begun on the first-ever State 
Judicial Center that will be 12 stories and 330,000 square feet. This center will serve as the administrative 
center for Pennsylvania's Unified Judicial System. It will contain office space for more than 500 employees, 
three Commonwealth Comt cOlntrooms, and a conference and training center. The construction of this project 
is expected to begin in 2007 with an anticipated completion in 2009. Total cost of the project is estimated to be 
$93 million. 

A major renovation project has been planned for Commerce Bank Park which is the ballpark for the 
Harrisburg Senators, a AAA minor league team with facilities located on picturesque City Island in the 
Susquehanna River. Some highlights of the project include; complete scoreboard upgrades, new construction of 
a 8,600 square foot Operations Building, creation of 'Midway' with activities and specialty areas geared towards 
children, teenagers and families, and an upgrade in the total seating capacity to approximately 6,000 fixed seats. 
The project will be completed in two phases and will be completed by March of 20 1 O. The plan is estimated to 
cost $45 million and includes many more upgrades to the ballpark which, when completed, will transform the 
ballpark into one of the premier minor league baseball facilities in the counlly. 

Major Illitiatives - Departmelltal FoclIs 

In 2008, the Depattment of Administration (DOA) was the recipient of the Distinguished Budget 
Presentation Award from the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States and 
Canada for the City's 2007 Budget document. The award is the highest form of recognition in governmental 
budgeting and marks the eighteenth consecutive year the City has received this award. 

Within DOA, the Office of Insurance and Risk Management improved programs in an effort to further 
control workers' compensation related health care costs by providing timely and better health care while 
reducing costs through a managed care approach. The Bureau of Financial Management implemented 
Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 44 (GASB 45). This statement requires the repOiting of 
Other Post Employment Benefits. The Bureau of Information Technology continued to work on upgrading the 
mainframe system, Metro system, various applications and personal computers throughout City government. 
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The Depmtment of Building and Housing Development (DBHD) continued to develop and enhance the 
City's neighborhoods through the Home Improvement Program (HIP), Home Emergency and Lead Paint 
Program (HELP), Homeownership OppOltunities Program (I-lOP), and Lead Hazard Control Programs. 
Through the Buyer Notification and Rental Unit Inspection processes, the Department has increased the code 
compliant housing stock Citywide. Lead Paint Poisoning Prevention education continued to be a major public 
safety focus. DBHD has received a federal grant, which will continue to support education as well as propelty 
rehabilitation activities into 2010. The Capital Corridors Program, directing City programs at key streets 
throughout the City, received continued emphasis. Focus was given to major streets throughout the City that 
have a visual impact on residents and visitors alike. DBHD has been palt of the coordination for street lighting 
and improvements, tree plantings and code compliance that has occurred both in Capital Corridors and other 
streets. Assisting DBHD in seeking code compliance throughout neighborhoods are residents who graduated 
from the City's Citizen Inspection Program - the first of its kind. DBHD, along with various developers, 
continued development of new homes in the Capitol Heights neighborhood, completed rehabilitation and 
development of 222 apaltments at The Residences at Governor's Square and began the construction of 72 town 
homes at The Towns at Governor's Square for rental and owner occupancy, respectively. S&A Homes broke 
ground on the next phase of Market Place Town homes - to construct 71 new units of scattered site single 
family townhomes. Recognizing the need for community services, in addition to housing for the creation of 
livable communities, DBHD continues its past work to improve neighborhood facilities and the Broad Street 
Market. The department has been working with the "Harrisburg Institute" program (Messiah College), 
Harrisburg Area Community College and the "Urban Design Studio" program (Harrisburg Area Community 
College and Temple and Auburn Universities) to integrate their instructional curriculums with urban programs 
such as facade design, housing rehabilitation, social service and neighborhood planning programs. 

The Department of Public Safety includes the Bureaus of Police and Fire. National Police Accreditation, the 
highest recognition in the United States for law enforcement operations, was attained 1993 and has been 
retained for 15 years. The Bureau of Police will be reassessed in 2011. The Bureau of Police also attained state 
accreditation in 2006 and was reassessed in 2008. The bureau now holds a dual-accredited status and is one of 
only nine police agencies in Pennsylvania to hold both. In the era of this administration, Part I crimes are down 
46% and are at one of the lowest levels in over three decades. In 1998, the Harrisburg Bureau of Police adopted 
a Bureau-wide Community Policing Program, which is geared to building a closer working relationship between 
police and the citizens of Harrisburg. The Bureau currently operates two community-policing stations located 
throughout Harrisburg as well as maintaining its core operations at Police Headquarters. The Bureau will 
continue to develop and upgrade plans to continue its community-policing efforts. Community-policing officers 
participate in a variety of programs and continue to provide specialty services such as the K-9, the DARE 
program, Cops for Kids Day, Community Crime watch groups, and crime prevention. It is the Bureau's intent 
to continue to utilize federal and state grants to help with the goals and objectives of the Police Bureau. All 
bureau units work together to offer the citizens of Harrisburg the best in law enforcement protection. 

The Bureau of Fire continues its lead management role for Pennsylvania Task Force One, one of 28 
nationally celtified Urban Search and Rescue Teams. As a result of the success of the Pennsylvania Task Force 
One, which is deployable to any place in the world, a second Intra-State Task Force, for response solely within 
Pennsylvania, was created by the State. Additionally, Water Rescue Strike Team One, capable of handling 
water-related emergencies anywhere in the State, is now operational. Harrisburg administers both of these 
recent additions to the Pennsylvania Emergency Management System. Continued strong code enforcement and 
public education programs have resulted in a 76% drop in the number of fires since 1982. Due to the success of 
these programs, the Federal Emergency Management Association has expressed an interest in using the City's 
building marking program, junior firesetters program, and mapping program as models in a national report 
regarding best practices. 

In 2008, the Department of Public Works, Bureau of Neighborhood Services - City Services four man 
demolition crew razed eight condemned properties. The bureau also replaced 3,025 street signs and maintained 
94 signalized intersections and repaired 1,958 traffic signals. There was also 386 tons of illegally dumped bulk 
items collected. In addition, 1,627 linear miles of street were cleaned and 277 tons of leaves were removed from 
the streets, and 122 tons of asphalt was use to fill potholes. The bureau cleaned 250 stonn inlets as well as 50 
sanitary sewers, and maintained 156 linear miles of sewer lines. The Bureau of Vehicle Management continued 
to provide fleet services, maintenance to the City's equipment fleet of 431 units. The services include, but are 
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not limited to, providing a total fleet management program for all equipment, the maintaining an in-house 
warranty program for the three major automobile manufacturers, and the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Safety 
and Emission Inspections Programs. The Bureau services the fleet by performing the necessaty preventive 
maintenance, and mechanical/sheet metal repairs. In addition to suppOiting the City's operations, the bureau 
provides 2417 fuel and lubricant services to seven outside agencies which include the Commonwealth, Dauphin 
County, Borough of Steelton, Harrisburg School District, Harrisburg School District transportation 
subcontractor, and all local authorities. The Bureau of Neighborhood Services - Sanitation collected over 
30,200 tons of residential waste and 1,700 tons ofrecyclables in 2008. The Water Bureau replaced or repaired 
77 hydrants; flushed 35 hydrants; and repaired 25 water mains. There were 9,108 locations marked by Public 
Works personnel in response to the Pennsylvania One Call System, commonly known as the "Call Before You 
Dig" program. There were 963 water meters replaced, repaired, or installed in 2008 that can be read remotely 
through the City's new meter reading system. There were 2.4 million kWh of electricity produced at the 
Advanced Wastewater Treatment Facility (A WTF), co-generated from combusting the by-product methane gas. 
Also, 13,985,450 gallons of sludge were accepted at the A WTF from the City waste-hauling contract program 
resulting in $593,316 in revenue. 

During Calendar Year 2008, the Office of the City Engineer continued oversight of the design and 
installation of streetlights and planting of trees along with construction of sidewalks and new alleys for the 
remaining phases of the Capital Heights housing development project. Design continued on the Southern 
Gateway Project, the extension of South Third Street to connect with the 1-83 entrance/exit ramps and an 
interconnect to South Second and South Front Streets; the consulting team continued analysis of the 
infrastructure requirements and possible economic development aspects of the project and shifted effOits to 
acquiring funding for the economic development and infl'astl'llcture upgrades of the project. Acquisition of the 
29 properties required for the widening of Seventh Street to four lanes between Reily and Maclay Streets 
continued and City Council passed an ordinance to allow City staff to use the powers of eminent domain to 
acquire the several properties that could not be purchased on amicable terms; final roadway design and utility 
coordination and relocation continued.. Construction was completed on the replacement of the City Island 
bridge and ramps at Market Street connecting the north and south parking lots. The replacement and upgrade of 
traffic signals at 24 intersections throughout the City along the Market Street Corridor, Maclay Street Corridor 
and Sixth Street, 131

" Street, and 17''' Street Corridors were completed. Renovation of State Street, between 
Front Street and Third Street, was completed under a construction contract awarded by the City using FHW A 
Highway Enhancement funds and a supplemental grant from the Commonwealth. The scope of work included 
new brick sidewalks, grass-covered median, hybrid American Elm street trees and Architectural "period" 
streetlighting. Design was statted by the Department of Transportation on the improvements to the Cameron
Paxton Street intersection which will feature the removal of a restrictive railroad bridge and add new traffic 
signals and tuming lanes to the roadways. The storm water mitigation project on Black Run, a tributary of 
Paxton Creek was completed through a grant to the City from PA DEP. Design was begun using separate grant 
funding obtained through the PA DEP Growing Greener Program with supplemental Growing Greener funding 
from Dauphin County Commissioners, on flood mitigation measures along Asylum Run, a Paxton Creek 
tributary, and to modifY the Moming Glory Outlet in Wildwood Lake as a separate flood mitigation measure. 
The City awarded a design contract to install new architectural "Period Lighting" on the State Street Bridge 
using funds acquired by a Congreessional "earmark" in the Federal Highway program and entered into an 
agreement with Penn DOT District 8-0 to provide funding from the same program to install similar lighting on 
the Mulberry Street Bridge as part of the scope of the District's bridge renovation program. City Council 
approved a request from the Administration to borrow $2.4 million from the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Bank 
(through Penn DOT) to resurface roads during the upcoming paving season. 

The Department of Parks and Recreation (DPR) and the City's parks system have realized a dramatic 
revitalization since 1982 when the Mayor implemented his Parks Improvement Program. As a result of these 
improvements, special events, which include riverfront festivals, concerts in Reservoir Park and Italian Lake, 
and dozens of other activities, attracted over 1.9 million people in 2008. Separately, City Island has received 
more than 2.1 million people annually since 2000 to visit its scenic land and attractions. To protect this 
investment in the City's parks system and to provide informational services, DPR operates a Park Ranger Corps. 
DPR also offers year-round recreational activities, which attracted more than 582,775 youth and adult 
participants in 2008. These facilities and events, along with the activities of the hotels and restaurants, the State 
Capitol Complex, the Whitaker Center for Science and the Arts, the National Civil War Museum, and a host of 
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others, have now made the City a tourism attraction and a point of destination. During 2008, and for twenty-one 
consecutive years Harrisburg was designated as a "Tree City USA" by the National Arbor Day Foundation 
because of its environmental policies and procedures. 

Major Initiatives - Elltel1Jrise Opemtiolls-Component Units 

Beginning with 1993, the City discretely presented financial data related to the enterprise operations of three 
entities considered to be component units of the City's overall financial repOtting entity pursuant to GASB 
Statement No. 14. The Harrisburg Authority (THA) component unit is used to account for operations of a water 
system, which provides a service to the City and several surrounding municipalities; and for the operations of 
the Harrisburg Resource RecovelY Facility (HRRF), which THA purchased from the City on December 23, 
1993. The Harrisburg Parking Authority (HPA) component unit accounts for the operations of eight parking 
garages, on-street parking, and five open lots, all within the City. The Coordinated Parking Fund (CPF) 
accounts for the net operating revenues and transfers in from the components of the Coordinated Parking 
System. 

In 2005, the Harrisburg Redevelopment Authority (HRA) became a discretely presented component unit of 
the City's overall financial repOtting entity pursuant to GASB Statement No. 14, as amended by GASB 
Statement No. 39 The Reporting Entity. HRA was established in 1949 as a result ofthe Urban Redevelopment 
Act of 1945. HRA is administered by a five-member Board, all of whom are appointed by the Mayor. HRA 
provides a broad range of urban renewal and maintenance programs within the City. The City guarantees some 
debt ofHRA projects. 

The 2008 operating results for THA reflected operating income of$3,034,339. This is in contrast to the prior 
year's operating loss of $2, 136,343. This was primarily attributed to increases in user charges of $8.7 million, 
and decreased landfill closure and post-closure care expense of $2,199,881 in the Resource RecovelY Fund. 
These were offset by increased operating expenses of $5,589, 120. User charges of the Resource RecovelY Fund 
increased approximately $9.4 million due to the facility running at a greatly increased capacity from the 
previous year. The Water Fund's user charges decreased approximately $660,691 from the prior year. 

The decrease in revenue from the Water Fund is due to reduced consumption. The Resource RecovelY Fund 
facility was closed during all of 2004 and 2005 and operated at reduced capacity during 2006 and 2007 due to 
continued construction. While the facility was closed for trash incineration, revenues continued to be collected 
from trash transfer and disposal charges and related fees. Operational capacity increased during 2008 and 
construction is expected to be completed during 2009. 

In 2008, the net assets ofTHA decreased by $18.8 million. This decrease was primarily caused by interest 
expense of $25.2 million, which increased $2.7 million from the previous year. Additionally, the Resource 
Recovery Fund incurred an extraordinary item for litigation settlement of $3.6 million. THA anticipates that 
deficits will be reduced in the Water Fund through future profitability improvements and in the Resource 
Recovery Fund by increased operational capacity once construction of the facility is complete. 

In 2008, the net assets of HPA decreased by $4.0 million, primarily due to increased interest expense of 
$493,815, transfer to the Coordinated Parking Fund of $1.0 million, increased required payments under the 
cooperation agreement for downtown parking system to the Coordinated Parking Fund of $721,894, and loss on 
disposal of capital assets of $496,468. These increased costs were partially offset by increases in the 2008 
public parking revenue of $320,247 and increased transfers from the Coordinated Parking Fund of$335,877. 

The Coordinated Parking Fund realized an increase in net assets of $449,667 in 2008. This is primarily due 
to increased operating revenue of $1.8 million, as compared to the 2007 operating revenue. 

The net assets of the Harrisburg Redevelopment Authority (HRA) decreased by $569,039 in 2008. Total 
revenues decreased $377,550 from 2007. The major item of decrease was operating grants and contributions 
revenue, which decreased $615,503, and was pattially offset by increased charges for services of $276,273. 
Community Development expenses also increased by $191,489 from 2007. 
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AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

National Recognitions 

For 1984-85 and 1990-91, the City was chosen as an "All-America City", the Nation's highest community 
award, by the National Civic League, Inc. The City's selection from among a large number of nominees was 
due to its demonstrated ability to reverse three decades of previous decline with highly successful economic 
development and the City's ability to solve local problems through effective governmental and community 
partnership and leadership. The judging took special note of the development of programs by the City and 
various groups, including non-profit organizations, churches, historic associations, and effolts by the Harrisburg 
Redevelopment Authority of the City of Harrisburg to deal with substandard and inadequate housing supply. 

In 1989, 1994, 1999,2002,2005 and 2008 the City's Police Bureau was approved as a national accredited 
law enforcement agency by the National Commission on Accreditation for Law Enforcement Agencies. This is 
the highest national recognition that can be awarded to a police agency. Out of over 21,000 law enforcement 
agencies on a federal, state, county, regional, and municipal level, less than 746 hold national accreditation. Re
accreditation now occurs every three years. 

The Harrisburg Advanced Wastewater Treatment Facility (A WTF) received the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency's "1991 National Pretreatment Program Excellence Award". The Award is given in 
categories based on the actual daily flow of publicly owned treatment works. Harrisburg's A WTF won first 
place in the Nation in the "over 20 million gallons per day" categOlY. The Award recognizes Harrisburg as 
implementing effective and innovative environmental protection and pollution control programs, and 
acknowledges the City as demonstrating commitment to the protection and improvement of the Nation's waters 
through the operation of exemplary pretreatment programs. The A WTF also won first place in the Pennsylvania 
Operations Challenge in 1992, 1993, 1995, 1996, 1997, 1998, 1999, 2000 and 2001; and continued to the 
national competition where they placed 16'h in 1992, lO'h in 1993, 13'h in 1995, 4'h in 1996, 8'" in 1997,6'" in 
1998, 7'h in 1999, 8'" in 2000, and 12'h in 2001. These awards illustrate Harrisburg's AWTF as one of the 
nation's top sewerage facilities in overall operation and compliance. In addition, the superintendent of the 
City's A WTF was named the state's Operator of the Year for 1993. 

The City's aggressive flood control and emergency management system, named as a model by the 
Pennsylvania Emergency Management Agency, resulted in Harrisburg being the only community in the state to 
be upgraded in 1991, 1992, 1993 and 2006 by the Federal Emergency Management Agency. This produces a 
overall 15% - 20% reduction in base flood insurance premiums for all City-based property owners annually. 

In 2000, the City was awarded the Best Practices "Simply the Best" award from the Depaltment of Housing 
and Urban Development (HUD) for its Local Based Paint Hazard Control Program. 

In 200 I, the National Association of Housing and Redevelopment Officials (NAHRO) presented to the City 
of Harrisburg's Depaltment of Building and Housing Development the "Award of Excellence" for the Bureau of 
Housing's Homeownership Opportunities Program (HOP) and the Homeownership Impact Loan Program (HIL) 
that make financing for City homes available for low and moderate income buyers. 

Separately, in 2001, the Mid-Atlantic Regional Conference NAHRO (MARC-NAI-IRO) presented the City 
of Harrisburg's, Bureau of Housing and Building Development, the "Award of Excellence for the 
Homeownership Opportunities Program (HOP) and Homeownership Impact Loan Program (HIL). 

In 2002, Harrisburg's Bureau of Vehicle Management, was awarded the National Association of Fleet 
Administrator's "2002 Lany Goill Award" for an innovative idea that eliminated the need for the public sector 
to separately bid for vehicles and other equipment each time new vehicles were needed. This new process has 
saved the City, the Commonwealth, and other pmticipating municipalities time and money. 

In 2004, Speeding's Best Places named the Harrisburg-Lebanon-Carlisle metropolitan statistical area as the 
second least stressful city (area) in the nation, based upon low unemployment rates, shorter commute times, and 
low crime rates. 

xii 



The National Arbor Day Foundation, has for twenty-one consecutive years, including 2008, designated 
Harrisblll'g as a "Tree City U.S.A." 

In 2005, the Harrisburg's WHBG Cable Channel 20 was awarded the Award of Distinction by the 
International Communicator Awards - 2004 Video Competition. The Harrisburg Broadcast Network received 
this honor for a telemarketing fraud episode of the City produced series, "The Smalt Consumer". 

In 2005, the City of Harrisblll'g was named one of 100 Best Communities for Young People, from the 
America's Promise - The Alliance for Youth. The City received this honor in palt because its service system 
that offers support for each of its children as they develop. The City provides health centers onsite at elementary 
schools, low-income dental services for children, and fi'ee inoculation programs as well as full-day kindergarten, 
after-school programs, summer camps, youth councils, peer education programs, and leadership programs. 

In 2005, the City of Harrisblll'g's Vehicle PlII'chasing Program was recognized as a best practice by the 
American Public Works Association. Since its implementation, this program has saved its participants over $10 
million. 

The City of Harrisburg's BlII'eau of Water received the Director's A ward from the Partnership for Safe Water, 
in 2005. This award was given the bureau because of its ability to provide quality water to its community and 
the continued effort to achieve less than .01 NTU year round. 

State Recogllitions 

Just nine years after being listed as the second most distressed city in the nation in 1981 under federal distress 
criteria, Harrisblll'g was selected as the "1990 Outstanding Community of Pennsylvania" by the Pennsylvania 
Chamber of Business and Industry, the highest community recognition in the state. The Mayor, who began his 
first term in office in 1982, was separately named by the Chamber as the" 1990 Outstanding Government Leader 
of Pennsylvania." 

Also, Preservation Pennsylvania, a state historic preservation advocacy organization, gave the City of 
Harrisblll'g its 1996 Local Government Initiative-Historic Preservation Award for the rehabilitation of the 
former Reily Fire Station. The building houses the Greater Harrisburg Fire Museum. 

In 1998, Mayor Stephen R. Reed was presented with the Distinguished Leader Award by the Pennsylvania 
Planning Association. Mayor Reed was cited for his "creativity and entrepreneurial initiatives that have helped 
Harrisburg become a thriving, vibrant community." 

In 1998, the Harrisblll'g Depmtment of Parks and Recreation won folll' state awards fi'om the Pennsylvania 
Recreation and Park Society (PRPS). Three awards were for "Excellence in Programming" for City Island Fun 
Day, the Bell Atlantic Foundation Computer Learning Center in the Brownstone Building at Reservoir Park, and 
the Kipona Festival. The fOlll'th award was for "Excellence in Publications and Promotional Materials" for the 
Harrisblll'g City Calendar. 

In 1996 and 1999, the City's Alternative Revenue and Energy Program received the state's highest 
recognition, the Governor's Award for Environmental Excellence for Achievement in Technological Innovation. 

For 1999, the Harrisburg Department of Parks and Recreation won three state awards from the PRPS which 
were presented in March 2000. These awards were for Excellence in Programming for the Black HistOlY 
Showcase, the Senior Citizens Computer Program in the Brownstone Building at Reservoir Park, and the Junior 
Golf Program. 

In 2001, the Harrisblll'g Police BlII'eau's Traffic Safety Unit received the top state Traffic Law Enforcement 
Award from the Governor's Highway Safety Council for the thhteenth year. 
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For 2001, the Pennsylvania Recreation and Parks Society presented the Harrisburg Department of Parks and 
Recreation with Excellence in Programming awards for the City's Easter Egg Hunt/Youth Health Fair, the 
American MusicfestlKipona and the Countdown Programs. 

In 2001, the Pennsylvania Depat1ment of Community and Economic Development (DCED), Center for 
Community Building presented the Depat1ment of Building and Housing Development an Award of 
Recognition for their Community building efforts and participation in the Pennsylvania Community Building 
Conference. 

Harrisburg's park system won two Centennial Medallion Awards from the American Society of Landscape 
Architects for both Riverfront Park and Reservoir Park. 

For 2002, the Harrisburg Department of Parks and Recreation won a state award from PRPS for Excellence 
in Programming for the City Fishing Derby. 

In 2002, the Pennsylvania Section - American Water Works Association and the nationally based Partnership 
for Safe Water presented the Harrisburg Bureau of Water with the prestigious 2002 Partnership for Safe Water 
Achievement Award, the highest honor for water system operations in the state and the nation. 

In 2003, the Skyline Sports Complex field earned the coveted Fields of Distinction A ward from the Keystone 
Athletic Field Managers Organization. 

The City of Harrisburg was awarded the Cecil C. Furer, Friend of Rural Water Award by the Pennsylvania 
Rural Water Association in 2003. This was presented to the City for its ability to help smaller water systems in 
their times of difficulty. 

In July 2007, the Harrisburg Police Bureau attained Pennsylvania Law Enforcement Accreditation. The 
Bureau is one of only nine law enforcement agencies in the state of Pennsylvania to have the distinction of 
holding both national and state accreditation. Re-accreditation occurs evelY three years. 

Additional Recognitiolls 

After thorough assessment, the City of Harrisburg received an upgraded credit rating of "A" by Standard and 
Poor's Corporation and an "A-" by Fitch Investors Services, Inc., both in 1992. This achievement is 
monumental considering just eleven years earlier Harrisburg could not achieve any credit rating. The City 
continues to maintain these ratings. 

The City of Harrisburg's Capital Area Greenbelt program won the Chesapeake Bay Local Government 
AdvisOlY Committee's 1992 and 1994 Award for Local Innovation. The Capital Area Greenbelt program was 
one of six programs selected to receive the award in the four-state Bay area. The City of Harrisburg was the 
only local government in Pennsylvania to receive the award, with the other recipients from Maryland and 
Virginia. 

In 1992, an independent awards jUly named Mayor Stephen R. Reed as the Entrepreneur of the Year in 
Central Pennsylvania, in the category of Supporter of Entrepreneurs, for leadership in fostering business 
development and growth. It was the first time a public official received this private sector recognition. 

The City of Harrisburg received the Community Service Award from the Central Pennsylvania Chapter of 
the Public Relations Society of America in 1993. This first time award was received for quality public 
information services, practices, and policies. 

In 2000, the City of Harrisburg was the only municipality in North America to receive the International 
Paradigm Award for its cutting-edge use of technology. 

In 2000 and 2002, the International Festival and Events Association honored Harrisburg with four top 
international awards for its special events programs and promotions. 
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In 200 I, the International Festival and Events Association honored Harrisburg with two awards for its special 
events program and promotion. 

The Capital Region Fair Housing Council presented Mayor Stephen R. Reed with an Award of Recognition 
for his personal support of housing programs in the Capital Region on the occasion of their 26'h Anniversaty 
Celebration. 

In 2003, the International Festival and Events Association honored the City of Harrisburg with seven awards 
for it special events programs and promotions. 

In 2003, Mayor Stephen R. Reed was presented with the Community Builder of the Year by the Tri-County 
United Way of Pennsylvania. 

The American Cancer Society presented Mayor Stephen R. Reed with the 2003 John H. Baum Humanitarian 
Award for his personal commitment to the community. This award was presented in memOlY of the late Patriot
News publisher and community leader. 

In 2003, the City of Harrisburg was awarded the "Good Neighbor" award by "Mission of Mercy", a non
profit organization that offers free medical and dental services to the uninsured, working poor, and homeless 
individuals. The City of Harrisburg was presented this award due to its continued efforts to promote the 
program's free medical services. 

In 2004, the Pennsylvania League of Cities and Municipalities awarded the City of Harrisburg with the 
Intergovernmental Cooperation award. 

In 2004, Mayor Stephen R. Reed was presented with the Paul Harris fellow award given to exceptional 
leaders. Reed was cited for "giving back and making things happen for kids". 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded the 
"Distinguished Budget Presentation A ward" to the City of Harrisburg for its 2007 Budget document, which 
marks the eighteenth consecutive year the City received this recognition. This award is the highest form of 
recognition in governmental budgeting. 

GFOA also awarded a "Certificate of Achievement of Excellence in Financial RepOlting" to the City of 
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2007. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award, recognizing conformance 
with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial repOlts. In order to be 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently 
organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to program standards. Such a CAFR 
must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City of Harrisburg has received a 
Certificate of Achievement for the last twenty-one consecutive years (1987 - 2007). We believe our current 
report continues to conform to the Celtificate of Achievement program requirements and we are submitting it to 
GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 

Ackllowledgemefl(s 

The preparation of this report on a timely basis would not have been possible without the efficient and 
dedicated services of the staff of the Bureau of Financial Management. I would especially like to express my 
sincere appreciation to William P. Leinberger, CMA, CFM, Finance Director, and his Accounting Office staff, 
who contributed so significantly to its preparation. 

Assistance above and beyond the normal call of duty was provided by the Bureau of Information 
Technology, City Controller's Office, and City Treasurer's Office. Their assistance made possible the 
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development and/or adaptation of information necessary for financial statement and/or statistical information 
presentation. In addition, the accounting firm of Maher Duessel made substantial contributions by way of 
financial statement presentation, proofing, research and interpretation of recent reporting guidelines and review 
for conformity to Certificate of Achievement Program requirements. 

Appreciation is also expressed to the Mayor and City Council for their interest and support in planning and 
conducting the financial operations of the City in a responsible and progressive manner. 
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Respectfully submitted, 

Robert F. Kroboth, COFM 
Deputy Business Administrator 
Bureau of Financial Management 



Certificate of 
Achievement 
for Excellence 

in Financial 
Reporting 

Presented to 

City of Harrisburg 
Pennsylvania 

For its Comprehensive Annual 

Financial Report 

for the Fiscal Year Ended 
December 31, 2007 

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers 

Association of the United States and Canada to 
government units and public employee retirement 

systems whose comprehensive annual rmancial 
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest 
standards in government accounting 

and financial reporting. 

President 

~/~~ 
Executive Director 

xvii 



CITY OF HARRISBURG 
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 

THE RESIDENTS/CITIZENS OF HARRISBURG 

I 

CITY TREASURER MAYOR ............ , .............. CITY COUNCIL 
Paul P. Wambach Stephen R. Reed 

Emergency Management 
Agency 

r---

Ad Hoc and 
!--- f--

City Solicitor 

Advisory Committees Philip 1. Harper, Esq. 

City Engineer 
- f--

Authorities 

Joseph V. Link 

Mayor's Office for 
Economic Development - '--

Boards and Commissions 

and Special Projects 
Edward L. Nielsen 

Deoartment of -
Administration 

Robert F. Kroboth 

'-Planning 

Department ofBuHding 
I--

Inspe.-:tion & Codes Enforcemcnt 

- and Housing Development Housing Development 

Daniel C. Leooo Grants Administration 

L- Intergovemmental Relations 

Department of 

- Public Safety '---r-Police 

Mayor Stephen R. Rced Fire 

L- Emergency Communications 

Departmcnt of 

- Public Works 
James M. Close 

Department of Parks - Recreation 

- and Recreation - Parks Maintenance 

Tina Manoogian-King Special Events 

_ Shade Tree Services 

xviii 

CITY CONTROLLER 
James J. McCarthy, Jr. 

Linda D. Thompson 
Council President 

Daniel C. Miller 
Council Vice-President 

Patty Kim 
Brad Koplinski 

Gloria Martin-Roberts 

Wanda R. D. Williams 
Susan Brown-Wilson 

City Clerk 

Beth Ann Gabler 

~ Adminislrati\"e Services 
Insurance & Risk Management 

Accounting & Financial Reporting 

Accounts Payable 

Budget Administration 

Debt Management 

Purchasing 
Human Resources Administration 
InfOnllation Technology 
Tax & Utility Administration & 

L- Enforcement 

r--Streds 

Water 
Wastewater 
Trame Control & Plmming 
Solid Waste Col!ection 

Recyc!ables Col!ection 

Vehicle Fleet Maintcnance 
Building Maintenance 

-



CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 

LIST OF ELECTED OFFICIALS 

The City is an Optional Third Class City and is governed by a Plan A, Mayor - Council form of 
government. The current elected officials of the City are shown in the table below: 

Stephen R. Reed 

City Council Members 

Linda D. Thompson, President 
Daniel C. Miller, Vice President 
Patty Kim 
Brad Koplinski 
Gloria E. Mm1in-Robel1s 
Wanda R. Williams 
Susan C. Wilson 

City Controller 

James J. McCarthy, Jr. 

City Treasurer 

Paul P. Wambach 

XIX 

First Sworn In 

January 1982 

January 2002 
January 2006 
JanuaIY 2006 
January 2008 
January 2004 
JanuaIY 2006 
January 2004 

January 1978 

JanuaIY 1992 

Term Expires 

January 2010 

January 2010 
JanuaIY 20 I 0 
January 2010 
January 2012 
JanuaIY 2012 
January 2010 
Janumy 2012 

January 20 I 0 

JanUaIY 2012 





MaherDuessel 
Certified PublicAccountants 

Pittsburgh 
Three Gateway Center 
Six West 
Pittsburgh, PA 15222 

Mail1 412.471.5500 
Fax 412.471.5508 

Harrisburg 
3003 North Front Street 
Suite 101 
Harrisburg, PA 17110 
;\bin 717.232.1230 
Fax 717.232.8230 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Thc Honorable Stephen R. Reed, Mayor 
and Honorable Members of City Council 

City of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 

Buder 
112 Hollywood Drive 
Suite 204 
Butler, PA 16001 

Main 724.285.6800 
Fax 724.285.6875 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Harrisblll'g, Pennsylvania (City), as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2008, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table 
of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility 
is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial 
statements of the Redevelopment Authority of the City of Harrisburg, which represents 1.45 percent, 
19.28 percent, and 4.44 percent, respectively, of the assets, net assets, and revenues of the aggregate 
discretely presented component units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose 
report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for 
the Redevelopment Authority of the City of Harrisburg, is based on the report of the other auditors. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govel'l1l11el/l Audilil/g Sial/dardl' 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
diseiosmes in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our 
Opll110ns. 

In om opinion, based on am audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to in 
the first paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of December 31, 2008, and 
the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then 
ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

The Harrisburg Authority, a discretely presented component unit of the City, inclll'red significant 
financings in December 2003 and, again, in December 2007, to fund the costs of the modernization 
project related to The Harrisblll'g Authority'S Resource Recovery Facility. Additionally, the Resource 
Recovery Fund has experienced significant operating losses, has an accumulated deficit of $120,514,477 
at December 31, 2008, and is in violation of certain covenants under the trust indentures. Additionally, as 
discussed further in Note 25 to the financial statements, the Authority has issued multiple notices of 
material events with respect to certain of the Resource Recovery Facility bonds, which are guaranteed by 
the City. 

Pursuing (he profession while promoting the public good~ 
www.md-cpas.com 



The Honorable Stephen R. Reed, Mayor 
and Honorable Members of City Council 

City of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 
Independent Auditor's Report 
Page 2 of2 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our repOlt dated December 23, 
2009, on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial repolting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal 
control over financial repOlting or on compliance. That report is an integral patt of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and important for assessing the results of our audit. 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis, budgetaty comparison information, and pension plan 
information on pages 3 through 13 and 112 through 117 are not a required patt of the basic financial 
statements, but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. We have applied celtain limited procedures, which consisted principally of 
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required 
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual 
nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, and statistical section are presented for the purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required patt of the basic financial statements. The combining and 
individual nonmajor fund statements and schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and 
statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 
December 23, 2009 



CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
DECEMBER 31, 2008 

This section of the City of Harrisbl\l'g's Comprehensive Annual Financial RepOlt (CAFR) presents 
Management's Discussion and Analysis of the City's financial performance dl\l'ing the year ending December 
31, 2008. Readers are encouraged to consider the information within the context of the preceding Transmittal 
Letter and the following financial statements. The discussion also focuses on the primary government and 
unless otherwise noted, component units are not included. 

Financial Highlights 

• The City of Harrisbl\l'g's assets for the years ending December 31, 2008 and 2007, exceeded its 
liabilities by $46,178,883 and $53,319,004, respectively. 

o Invested in capital assets, net of related debt, in the amount of $65,272,704 and $68,791,001 for 
the years ending December 31,2008 and 2007, respectively, includes all capital assets including 
infrastructure. 

o Restricted net assets with external restrictions imposed by creditors or laws or regulations of 
other governments amounted to $8,174,963 and $5,686,099 for the years ending December 31, 
2008 and 2007, respectively. 

o Unrestricted net assets, which are assets not restricted for any particular pl\l'pose, were 
($27,268,784) and ($21,158,096) for the years ending December 31, 2008 and 2007, 
respectively. 

• At December 31, 2008 and 2007, the fund balance of the City of Harrisburg's governmental funds was 
$16,234,181 and $18,060,228, respectively. 

• The City's total net assets decreased by $7,140,121. This is due primarily to the cl\l'rent year 
implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 45, which requires the 
City to record other post-employment benefits. 

• The fund balance of the governmental funds decreased by $1,826,047 for the year ended December 31, 
2008, primarily due to capital expenditl\l'es in the amount of $4.5 million, paid from the proceeds of a 
capital lease which was recognized in the prior year, and net of the cl\l'rent year Pennsylvania 
Infrastructure Bank loan issuance of $2.4 million. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The financial section of the CAFR consists of five parts in the following order: the independent auditor's report 
on the financial statement audit, Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), the basic financial 
statements, required supplementary information (RSI), and other supplementary information. The basic 
financial statements can be further classified into the following three types: government-wide financial 
statements, fund financial statements, and notes to the financial statements. 

I. Government-Wide Financial Statements The government-wide financial statements provide a 
summaty of the City of Harrisbl\l'g's financial condition in a similar fashion to the private business 
sector. The focus of these statements is the economic resources measl\l'ement and full accrual basis of 
accounting. 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
DECEMBER 31,2008 

All of the City of Harrisburg's net assets are repOlted as the difference between the assets and 
liabilities. Increases and decreases in net assets serve as a good indicator of the financial condition 
improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents information on how net assets changed during the year. All 
changes are recorded as soon as the change occurs even though cash may not be received yet; cash 
flow may even occur in a later fiscal year, such as uncollected taxes and vacation leave earned, but 
not used. The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities distinguish between functions 
of the City that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental 
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs 
through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The City of Harrisburg's governmental 
activities are general government, building and housing development, public safety (police and fire), 
public works, and parks and recreation. The business-type activities of the City include Sewer, 
Sanitation, and Harrisburg Senators Funds. 

2. Fund Financial Statements A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to control resources that 
are separated by activity. Fund accounting is used by the City of Harrisburg to monitor and show 
compliance with budgetmy requirements. Funds are either governmental, proprietary, 01' fiduciary 
funds. 

a. Governmental Funds Governmental funds are used to account for the functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources 
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a 
government's near-term financing requirements. 

Since the focus of governmental fund financial statements is narrower than that of the 
government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented by the 
two in order to better understand the long-term impact of near-term financing decisions. Both 
the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balance provide reconciliation to facilitate the comparison 
between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The City of Harrisburg reports four major governmental funds: (I) the General Fund, which 
accounts for all financial resources of the general government except those required to be 
accounted for in another fund; (2) the Grants Programs Fund, which accounts for the revenues 
and expenditures of federal, state, and other grant programs including the Community 
Development Block Grant Entitlement Program; (3) the Debt Service Fund, which accounts for 
the accumulation of resources, which are principally transfers from other funds, for the payment 
of general long-term obligation principal, interest, and related costs; and (4) the Capital Projects 
Fund, which accounts for financial resources to be used for the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietmy funds). Data 
from all the other governmental funds are combined into a single aggregated presentation. 
Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of 
combining statements in supplementary information. 

4 



CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
DECEMBER 31, 2008 

b. Proprietary Funds The City's proprietary funds are all classified as enterprise funds. They are 
used to account for the operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private 
business enterprises. The intent of the governing body is that the expenses of providing goods 
and services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily 
through user charges or when the governing body has decided that periodic determination of 
revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, 
public policy, management control, accountability, and/or other purposes. 

The City of Harrisburg reports three major enterprise funds: (I) the Sewer Fund, which accounts 
for the revenues and expense associated with the provision of sewage service to the residents 
and commercial and industrial establishments of the City as well as six municipalities 
surrounding the City; (2) the Sanitation Fund, which accounts for the revenues and expenses 
associated with the provision of refuse collection and disposal services to the residents and 
commercial and industrial establishments of the City; and (3) the Harrisburg Senators Fund, 
which accounts for the revenues and expenses associated with the payment of debt on the 
purchase of Harrisburg Senators minor league franchise and financing of a new stadium of the 
Harrisburg Senators, formerly owned by the City. The City does not present any non-major 
enterprise funds. 

c. Fiduciary Funds Fiduciaty funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of 
parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide 
financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City's 
own programs. The City's fiduciary funds are all classified as trust and agency funds. Fiduciaty 
fund financial statements report similarly to proprietaty funds. 

3. Notes to the Financial Statements The Notes give additional information that is necessaty to 
understand fully the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes 
to the financial statements begin immediately following the basic financial statements. 

4. Other Information The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A 
budgetary comparison schedule has been provided for the General Fund, in required supplementaty 
information, to demonstrate compliance with this budget. In addition, this report also presents certain 
required supplementaty information concerning the City's progress in funding its obligation to 
provide pension benefits to its employees. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection 
with non-major governmental funds and agency funds are presented immediately following the 
required supplementaty information. 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
DECEMBER 31,2008 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

CITY OF HARRISBURG 
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

DECEMBER 31, 2008 AND 2007 

Govemillenlal Activities Business-type Activities 
2008 2007 2008 2007 

Current and other assets S 35,832,553 S 41,989,882 S 21,195,485 S 23,407,354 
Capital assets llJ,914,484 112,225,754 46,507,174 44,402,315 

Total assets 149,747,037 154,215,636 67,702,659 67,809,669 

Current and other liabilities 19,859,998 24,657,198 2,529,782 2,417,531 
NOllcllrrcJllliabi[ilies 131,761,713 121,741,521 17,119,320 19,890,051 

Totalliabilitics 151,621,711 146,398,719 19,649,102 22,307,582 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets, 

net of related debt 30,518,850 34,134,373 34,753,854 34,656,628 
Restricted 1,130,021 545,748 7,044,942 5,140,351 
Unrestricted (33,523,545) (26,863)04) 6,254,761 5,705,108 

Totaincl assets S (1,874,674) S 7,816,917 S 48,053,557 S 45,502,087 

Totals 
2008 2007 

S 57,028,038 S 65,397,236 
160,421,658 156,628,069 

217,449,696 222,025,305 

22,389,780 27,074,729 
148,881,033 141,631,572 

171,270,813 168,706,301 

65,272,704 68,791,001 
8,174,963 5,686,099 

(27,268,784) (21,158,096) 

S 46,178,883 S 53,319,004 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the government's financial position. 
The City of Harrisburg's assets exceeded its liabilities by $46,178,883 and $53,319,004 for years ending 
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. 

The largest portion of City of Harrisburg's net assets (141% for 2008 and 129% for 2007) is the City's 
investment in capital assets (i.e., land, archives, building, land and building improvements, equipment and 
furniture, infrastructure); less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. These capital assets are 
used by the City of Harrisburg to provide services to its citizens; consequently, these assets are not available 
for future spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is repOlted net of related debt, it should 
be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must come from other sources, since the assets cannot be 
used to liquidate these liabilities. 

The City of Harrisburg's unrestricted net asset balances of ($27,268,784) and ($21,158,096), respectively, for 
the years ending December 31, 2008 and 2007 result from the recording of unfunded pension liability bonds, 
General Obligation Bonds, Series A and B of 1995, in the amount of $7,345,682 and $10,559,266, 
respectively; vested compensated absences in the amount of $9,075,876 and $8,383,383, respectively, and 
other post-employment benefits of$13,303, 170 and zero, respectively, 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
DECEMBER 3 1,2008 

CITY OF HARRISBURG 
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

Governmental Activities Business-Iype Activities 
2008 2007 2008 2007 

Uevenues 
Program revenues: 

Changes for services S 24,574,751 S 25,500,774 S 19,974,303 S 27,167,086 
Operating grants 

and contributions 9,387,069 11,837,574 137,294 104,607 
Capital grants 

and contributiolls 2,163,278 2,368,927 1,025,582 1,665,268 

General revenues: 
Taxes 27,641,947 28,651,155 
Grants and contributions 

not restricted to spccil1c 
functions 7,340,486 6,886,276 

Other 477,404 750,284 215,292 688,223 

Total revenues 71,584,935 75,994,990 21,352,471 29,625,184 

Expenses 
General government 11,227,267 12,673,605 
Building and housing 6,074,003 8,549,637 

development 
Public safely 43,249,161 29,181,612 
Public works 9,439,071 8,952,746 
Parks and recreation 4,797,981 5,797,490 
Incinerator 714,171 
Tourism 280,072 4,835,059 
Interest on long-tenll debt 5,859,272 5,682,610 
Sewer 15,093,480 13,532,864 
Sanitation 3,380,182 3,085,391 
Harrisburg Senators 677,038 1,571,502 

Total expenses 80,926,827 76,386,930 19,150,700 18,189,757 

Change in net assets 
before transfers (9,341,892) (391,940) 2,201,771 11,435,427 

Transfers (349,699) 1,736,765 349,699 (1,736,765) 

Change in net assets (9,691,591) 1,344,825 2,551,470 9,698,662 

Net assets Janua[y I, 7,816,917 6,472,092 45,502,087 35,803,425 

Net assets, December 31 S (1,874,674) S 7,816,917 S 48,053,557 S 45,502,087 
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Totals 
2008 2007 

S 44,549,054 S 52,667,860 

9,524,363 11,942,181 

3,188,860 4,034,195 

27,641,947 28,651,155 

7,340,486 6,886,276 
692,696 1,438,507 

92,937,406 105,620,174 

11,227,267 12,673,605 
6,074,003 8,549,637 

43,249,161 29,181,612 
9,439,071 8,952,746 
4,797,981 5,797,490 

714,171 
280,072 4,835,059 

5,859,272 5,682,610 
15,093,480 13,532,864 
3,380,182 3,085,391 

677,038 1,571,502 

100,077,527 94,576,687 

(7,140,121) 11,043,487 

(7,140,121) II ,043,487 

53,319,004 42,275,517 

S 46,178,883 S 53,319,004 



CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
DECEMBER 31,2008 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANA LYSIS 
DECEMBER 3 I, 2008 

Revenues by Source· Governmental Activities· 2008 

10% 1% 

• Charges for Services 

o Operating Grants and 
Contributions 

o Capital Grants and 
Contributions 

• Taxes 

o Intergovernmental 

o Other 

Revenues by Source · Governmental Activities· 2007 

9% 1% 

37% 

3% 16% 

• Charges for Services 

o Operating Grants and 
Contributions 

o Capital Grants and 
Contributions 

• Taxes 

o Intergovernmental 

o Other 

Governmental Activities Net assets for governmental activities decreased by $9,69 1,59 I for the year endi ng 
December 3 I, 2008. The basic factors for the change in net assets was the current yea r implementation of 
Governmenta l Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 45, which required the City to record other 
post-employment benefits in the amount of $ I 2.7 milli on, Local Services Tax decreased by approximately 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
DECEMBER 31 , 2008 

$900,000 due to changes in state collection laws and income limits, and approximately $ 180,000 in valuation 
adjustments related to certain City artifacts. 

Net assets for governmental activities increased by $1 ,344,825 for the year ending December 31, 2007. The 
basic factor for the change in the net assets were a 1.5 mill real estate tax increase which , under the full accrual 
basis of accounting, resulted in approximately $2.7 million of additional tax revenue offset by an approximate 
$4 .8 million in valuation adjustments related to certain City artifacts. 
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$10,000,000 

$20,000,000 

$15,000, 

$1 U,UlJU,UUU-r 

Sewer 

Expenses and Program Revenues -
Business-type Activities - 2008 

Sanitation Harrisburg Senators 

Expenses and Program Revenues -
Business-type Activities - 2007 

Sanitat ion Ilarrisburg Senators 

• Expenses 

o Revenues 

• Expenses 

o Revenues 

Busincss-Type Activities Net assets for business-type activities increased by $2,551 ,470 and $9,698,662 for 
the years ending December 31 , 2008 and 2007, respectively. The basic factor for the change in net assets 
during the year ending December 31 , 2008, was primarily due to the current year implementation of 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 45, which required the City to record other 
post-employment benefits in the amount of $900,000. The basic factor for the change in net assets during the 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
DECEMBER 31,2008 

year ending December 31, 2007, was primarily due to the sale of the Harrisburg Senators minor league 
baseball franchise resulting in a gain of approximately $8.5 million. 

Financial Analysis of the City's Funds 

1. Govel'llmental Funds The focus of the City of Harrisburg's governmental funds is to provide 
information on neal' term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is 
useful in assessing the City of Harrisburg's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund 
balance may serve as a useful measure of government's net resources available for spending at the 
end of the fiscal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Harrisburg's governmental funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $16,234,181, an decrease of $1,826,047 in comparison with the 
prior year. 

The General Fund is the City's primal)' operating fund and the largest source of day-to-day service 
delivel),. The Fund Balance of the General Fund decreased by $678,070 for the year ending 
December 31,2008, or -4.75%, from the prior year. The basic factor for the change in the net assets 
is the expenditure of capital lease proceeds in the amount of $4.5 million, and payment of Senators 
debt that was funded through sale proceeds in 2007. 

The Grant Programs Fund does not report a fund balance because revenue equals expenditures. In 
this fund, revenue is recognized only when allowable expenditures are incurred and the legal and 
contractual requirements of the individual programs are met. The Fund Balance of the Debt Service 
Fund decreased by $1,822,143 for the year ending December 31, 2008, or -92.2%, from the prior 
year. This is primarily due to the use of prior year sale proceeds of the Harrisburg Senators minor 
league baseball fi'anchise for 2008 debt service. The Fund Balance of the Capital Projects Fund 
increased by $676.676 for the year ending December 31, 2008, or 45.38%, from the prior year. This 
was due primarily to contributions by local entities towards street paving and firefighting equipment. 

The Fund Balance of the General Fund increased by $13,566,201 for the year ending December 31, 
2007, 01' 1,922%, from the prior year. The basic factor for the change in the net assets is the issuance 
of a capital lease in the amount of approximately $8.3 million to purchase vehicles and equipment, 
and a 1.5 mill real estate tax increase which, under the modified accrual basis of accounting, resulted 
in approximately $3.2 million of additional tax revenue. 

The Grant Programs Fund does not repOli a fund balance because revenue equals expenditures. In 
this fund, revenue is recognized only when allowable expenditures are incurred and the legal and 
contractual requirements of the individual programs are met. The Fund Balance of the Debt Service 
Fund increased by $1,918,688 for the year ending December 31,2007, or 3,335%, from the prior 
year. This is primarily due to $500,000 of guarantee fees on behalf of a Harrisburg Parking Authority 
bond issue and a portion of the sale of the Harrisburg Senators minor league baseball franchise, to be 
used for 2008 debt service. The Fund Balance of the Capital Projects Fund decreased by $2,081,626 
for the year ending December 31, 2007, or -58%, from the prior year. This was due primarily to the 
write-off of prior year's ticket revenue due from the Harrisburg Civic Baseball Club. 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
DECEMBER 3 1,2008 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights On a budgetary basis, the General Fund's actual revenues were 
$1,910,052 more than the final budgeted amounts. This was primarily attributed to $1.5 million of 
unanticipated tax revenue and $265,000 of unbudgeted stop loss recoveries. The General Fund's actual 
expenditures were $3,006,189 less than the final budgeted amounts. This was primarily due to $1.0 million 
in across the board public safety under-spending. 

2. Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

1. Capital assets The City's investment in capital assets for its govel'l1mental activities and business
type activities as of December 31, 2008 amounts to $113,914,484 and $46,507,174 (net of 
accumulated depreciation), respectively. This investment in capital assets includes land, archives, 
buildings, land and building improvements, equipment and fUl'l1iture, and infrastructlll'e. 

Major capital asset events during the current year for govel'l1mental activities included the following: 

• Capital lease proceeds were expended in the amount of $4.5 million for public safety police 
vehicles, fire trucks, and computer equipment. 

• lnfrastructlll'e increased by approximately $2.7 million for City-wide street repaving. 

Major capital asset events dlll'ing the current year for business-type activities included the following: 

• Construction-in-progress increased by approximately $4.0 million for construction within the 
Sewer Fund, paid for through the capital lease with The Harrisburg Authority. 

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found on page 57 of this report. 

2. Long-term debt Other than the required principal and interest payments, the only debt activity in the 
City's govel'l1mental or business-type activities was the issuance of a Pennsylvania Infrastructure 
Bank loan in the amount of $2.4 million to be used to fund City-wide street repaving. 

Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be found on page 60 of this report. 

Economic Factors 

Arguably, the two most significant factors affecting the City are the extent of unfunded federal and state 
mandates and the extent of tax-exempt real estate. Our best estimate is that in the entire City budget, 
approximately 42% of the expense is related to unfunded costs mandated on us by the United States 
Govel'l1ment and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. 

Moreover, the most significant unfunded mandate affecting us is the liberal allowance for tax-exemption that 
exists in Pennsylvania. What was already a broadly-accommodating state law was flll'ther loosened several 
years ago by additional state legislative action. Today, approximately 49% of all real estate in the City is 
exempt from paying any type of taxes under state law. The number of propeliies achieving tax-exemption 
increases by the year. Some of the tax exempt-propeliies are amongst the greatest generators of demand for 
City services, for which they do not pay a dime. This is a continuing inequitable and unfair burden on 
Harrisburg and one that places a higher tax rate on those who pay taxes on their real estate. 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
DECEMBER 31, 2008 

Some of the factors that affect our costs are matters over which a local government has little control. Others are 
only marginally controllable. The following are a number of circumstances that will impact future costs: 

(a) Health care rate increases are projected to be approximately 9.6% for 2009, down from 9.9% for the 
prevIOus year. 

(b) Fuel and energy costs have reached their highest levels in U.S. histOlY the previous year and the City 
has experienced higher expenses for both. The average 2008 retail cost for all grades and 
formulations of gasoline was $3.30 per gallon. Fuel prices for 2009 are expected to decrease to 
$2.37 or 28% during 2009. 

(c) 2009 heating and electricity costs are budgeted to increase over 2008 actual costs, and electricity rate 
caps are expected to come off in 2010 resulting in increases up to 30%. 

(d) Significant decreases in the value of the stock market during 2009 are expected to have a negative 
impact on the City's minimum municipal obligation for the three defined benefit pension plans. 

(e) Increased costs associated with stray animals delivered to the Humane Society shelter have been 
passed along to the City resulting in a 12.4% increase for 2009. 

(f) 2009 salaries for the City's Police, Firefighter, and Non-Uniformed unions are negotiated to increase 
4.0%,4.0%, and 3.0%, respectively. 

(g) The Harrisburg Authority (THA), a component unit of The City of Harrisburg, has various debt 
issues outstanding that the City guarantees. There is a high degree of unceltainty regarding THA's 
ability to operate at a capacity in order to sustain their debt service obligation. The City has had to 
honor those guarantees at various times during 2009. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed for those who have an interest in the City's finances. Questions concerning 
any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to 
Office of the Business Administrator, Rev. Dr. Martin Luther King Jr., City Government Center, 10 NOlth 
Second Street, Suite 30 I, Harrisburg, PA 1710 1. You may also find more information regarding the City of 
Harrisburg at our website www.cityofhbg.com. 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
DECEMBER 31, 2008 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business-type Component 

Activities Activities Total Units Total 
Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,270,721 $ 4,610,640 $ 14,881,361 $ 10,418,620 $ 25,299,981 
Investments, at fair value 4,386,405 1,543,559 5,929,964 5,929,964 
Receivables, net of allowance 
for uncollectible accounts 

Taxes 6,766,244 6,766,244 6,766,244 
Accounts 235,408 3,184,573 3,419,981 5,594,556 9,014,537 
Loans 6,805,595 6,805,595 6,805,595 
Other 185,234 185,234 21,800 207,034 

Internal balances (477,222) 477,222 
Due from component unit 822,037 243,159 1,065,196 1,065,196 
Due from primary government 2,340,676 2,340,676 
Assets held for sale 1,727,384 1,727,384 1,727,384 
Other assets 147,526 920,968 1,068,494 166,238 1,234,732 
Restricted assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 1,298,399 2,159 1,300,558 1,300,558 
Cash with fiscal agents 4,171,731 4,171,731 
Investments, at fair value 3,664,822 10,213,205 13,878,027 84,425,578 98,303,605 

Litigation settlement receivable 5,415,000 5,415,000 
Accrued interest receivable 21,509 21,509 

Future lease rentals receivable from 
primary govcrqrnent 4,830,416 4,830,416 

Capital assets, not being depreciated 25,307,096 9,068,508 34,375,604 19,934,361 54,309,965 
Capital assets, less accumulated 
depreciation and amortization 88,607,388 37,438,666 126,046,054 231,931,455 357,977,509 

Equitable ownership interest 14,000,500 14,000,500 
Deferred charges, net of 
accumulated amortization 21,524,841 21,524,841 

Total assets 149,747,037 67,702,659 217,449,696 404,797,281 622,246,977 

(continued) 
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Liabilities 
Accounts payable and other 
current liabilities 

Matured bond coupons 
Accrued liabilities 
Due to primary government 
Due to component unit 
Unearned revenue 
Liabilities payable from 
restricted assets 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 
Other post-employment 
benefits 
Deferred revenue 
Accrued landfill closure and 
post-closure liability 

Total liabilities 

Net assets 
Invested in capital assets, 
net of related debt 

Restricted for: 
Highways and streets 
Culture and recreation 
Debt service 
Capital projects 
Guarantee agreement 
Water operations 
Other 

Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business-type 

$ 

Activities Activities Total 

2,372,069 261,140 2,633,209 
20,097 20,097 

3,030,681 173,511 3,204,192 

387,667 2,095,131 2,482,798 
14,049,484 14,049,484 

13,819,576 3,558,461 17,378,037 
105,244,439 12,955,387 118,199,826 

12,697,698 605,472 13,303,170 

151,621,711 19,649,102 171,270,813 

30,518,850 34,753,854 65,272,704 

203,308 203,308 
861,055 861,055 

658,397 658,397 
6,386,545 6,386,545 

65,658 65,658 
(33,523,545) 6,254,761 (27,268,784) 

(1,874,674) $ 48,053,557 $ 46,178,883 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
patt of these financial statements. 
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Component 
Units Total 

1,819,549 4,452,758 
20,097 

3,204,192 
923,074 923,074 

2,482,798 
643,096 14,692,580 

16,120,474 16,120,474 

12,424,977 29,803,014 
552,883,259 671,083,085 

13,303,170 
5,763,821 5,763,821 

2,270,163 2,270,163 

592,848,413 764,119,226 

(163,625,152) (98,352,448) 

203,308 
861,055 

16,579,776 17,238,173 
3,895,146 10,281,691 

295,358 295,358 
4,091,374 4,091,374 

65,658 
(49,287,634) (76,556,418) 

$(188,051,132) $(141,872,249) 



CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3 1,2008 

Functions/Programs 

Primary government 
Governmental activities 

General government $ 
Building and housing development 
Public safety 
Public works 
Parks and recreation 
Incinerator 
Tourism 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities 
Sewer 
Sanitation 
Harrisburg Senators 

Total business-type activities 

Expenses 

11,227,267 
6,074,003 

43,249,161 
9,439,071 
4,797,981 

280,072 
5,859,272 

80,926,827 

15,093,480 
3,380,182 

677,038 

19,150,700 

100,077,527 Total primary government ~$;",.==~~== 

Component units 
The Harrisburg Authority $ 
Harrisburg Parking Authority 
Coordinated Parking Fund 
Redevelopment Authority 

65,884,629 
17,769,855 
7,809,802 
5,029,764 

96,494,050 Total component units ,;$;",.=:;;;;;;;;;;,;;;;;;;;;" 

Charges for 
Services 

$ 14,879,393 
2,214,519 
4,215,536 
2,375,503 

175,629 
714,171 

24,574,751 

15,054,421 
4,204,769 

715,113 

19,974,303 

$ 44,549,054 

$ 41,127,328 
12,967,547 
8,229,232 
1,528,759 

$ 63,852,866 

General revenues 
Property taxes 

Program Revenues 

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions 

$ 134,317 
3,561,177 
2,619,985 

963,451 
2,108,139 

9,387,069 

137,294 

137,294 

$ 9,524,363 

$ 

304,897 

$ 304,897 

Real estate transfer ta'Xcs 
Local services ta'Xcs 
Occupational privilege taxes 
Earned income ta'{cs 
Business privilege taxes 
Franchise taxes 
Public utility realty taxes 
Payments in lieu oftaxcs 

Capital 
Grants and 

Contributions 

$ 1,136,239 

990,925 

36,114 

2,163,278 

1,025,582 

1,025,582 

$ 3,188,860 

$ 

250,907 

$ 250,907 

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific functions 
Other income 
Unrestricted investment earnings 

Extraordinary item 
Transfers - internal activities 

Total general revenues, transfers, and extraordinary item 

Change in net assets 

Net assets - January 1,2008 

Net assets - December 31, 2008 
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$ 

$ 

Governmental 
Activities 

4,922,682 
(298,307) 

(35,422,7 I 5) 
(6,100,117) 
(2,478,099) 

714,171 
(280,072) 

(5,859,272) 

(44,801,729) 

(44,801,729) 

15,879,973 
1,044,116 
1,950,258 

85 
3,810,889 
3,980,739 

510,448 
36,288 

429,151 
7,340,486 

477,404 

(349,699) 

35, 110,138 

(9,691,591) 

7,816,917 

(1,874,674) 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Changes in Net Assets 

Primary Government 

$ 

$ 

Business-type 
Activities 

986,523 
961,881 

38,075 

1,986,479 

1,986,479 

215,292 

349,699 

564,991 

2,55 I ,470 

45,502,087 

48,053,557 

Total 

$ 4,922,682 
(298,307) 

(35,422,7 I 5) 
(6,100,117) 
(2,478,099) 

714,171 
(280,072) 

(5,859,272) 

(44,801,729) 

986,523 
961,881 

38,075 

1,986,479 

(42,815,250) 

15,879,973 
1,044,116 
1,950,258 

85 
3,810,889 
3,980,739 

510,448 
36,288 

429,151 
7,340,486 

692,696 

35,675,129 

(7,140,121) 

53,319,004 

$ 46,178,883 

$ 

$ 

Component 
Units 

(24,757,301) 
(4,802,308) 

419,430 
(2,945,201) 

(32,085,380) 

942,855 
3,204,369 
3,580,909 

7,728,133 

(24,357,247) 

(163,693,885) 

(188,051,132) 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 
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Total 

$ 4,922,682 
(298,307) 

(35,422,715) 
(6,100,117) 
(2,478,099) 

714,171 
(280,072) 

(5,859,272) 

(44,801,729) 

986,523 
961,881 

38,075 

1,986,479 

(42,8 I 5,250) 

(24,757,30 I) 
(4,802,308) 

419,430 
(2,945,20 I) 

(32,085,380) 

15,879,973 
1,044,116 
1,950,258 

85 
3,810,889 
3,980,739 

510,448 
36,288 

429,151 
7,340,486 

942,855 
3,897,065 
3,580,909 

43,403,262 

(31,497,368) 

(I 10,374,881) 

$ (141,872,249) 



CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
BALANCE SHEET-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31,2008 

Other Total 
Grant Debt Capital Governmental Governmental 

General Programs Service Projects Funds Funds 

ASSETS 
Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,669,898 $ 4,749,623 $ 173,811 $ 337,299 $ 340,090 $10,270,721 
Investments, at fair value 3,064,895 440,498 357 4,655 876,000 4,386,405 
Receivables, net of allowance 
for uncollectible accounts 

Taxes 6,724,157 42,087 6,766,244 
Accounts receivable 235,408 235,408 
Loans receivable 2,943,994 3,811,201 50,400 6,805,595 
Other receivable 68,835 116,399 185,234 

Due from other funds 1,570,801 685,564 185,998 2,442,363 
Advances and amounts due 
from component units 21,854 800,183 822,037 
Other assets 75,791 5,068 80,859 
Restricted assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 65,658 1,232,741 1,298,399 
Investments, at fair value 3,664,822 3,664,822 

Total assets $23,106,113 $ 9,686,886 $ 174,168 $ 2,774,830 $ 1,216,090 $ 36,958,087 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 750,668 $ 1,456,026 $ $ 512 $ 164,863 $ 2,372,069 
Accrued liabilities 1,445,487 17,035 1,462,522 
Vested compensated absences 189,337 189,337 
Matured bond coupons payable 20,097 20,097 
Due to other funds 1,150,564 429,599 606,475 732,947 2,919,585 
Advances and amounts due to 
component units 387,667 387,667 

Deferred revenue 5,588,403 7,784,226 13,372,629 

Total liabilities 9,512,126 9,686,886 20,097 606,987 897,810 20,723,906 

Fund balances 
Reserved 

Encumbrances 2,688,134 61,493 2,749,627 
Debt service 154,071 154,071 
Capital projects 7,737,852 7,737,852 
Workers' compensation 151,650 151,650 
Revolving loan program 2,796,229 2,796,229 

Unreserved, reported in 
General fund 220,122 220,122 
Capital projects fund 2,106,350 2,106,350 
Special revenue funds 318,280 318,280 

Total fund balances 13,593,987 154,071 2,167,843 318,280 16,234,181 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 23, 106, 113 $ 9,686,886 $ 174,168 $ 2,774,830 $ 1,216,090 $ 36,958,087 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 

18 



CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
DECEMBER 31, 2008 

Fund balances - total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement 
of net assets are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 

Governmental capital assets 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Artifacts held for sale by the City are not financial resources and, 
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 

Other assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures 
and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 

Guarantee and swap fees and bond issuance costs are defen-ed and 
am0l1ized over the life of the guarantee, swap or bond period, but 
are available to pay current-period expenditures and, therefore, 
are not reported in the funds. 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable 
in the cun-ent period and, therefore, are not rep0l1ed in the funds. 

Workers' compensation 
Bonds payable 
Notes payable 
Capital leases payable 
Compensated absences 
Other post-employment benefits 
Accrued interest payable 

Net assets of governmental activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
pmi of these financial statements. 
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$ 

230,387,474 
(116,472,990) 

(3,599,404) 
(47,331,645) 
(50,013,240) 
(9,043,850) 
(8,886,539) 

(12,697,698) 
(1,568,159) 

$ 

16,234,181 

113,914,484 

1,727,384 

5,413,493 

(6,023,681) 

(133,140,535) 

(1,874,674) 



CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 

Revenues 
Taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovernmental revenue 
Department earnings and 
program revenue 

Fines and forfeits 
Investment income 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Current 

General government 
Building and housing 
development 
Public safcty 
Public works 
Parks and recreation 
Tourism 

Capital outlay 
Infrastmcture 
Other 

Debt service 
Principal retirements 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Issuance of debt 
Proceeds from the sale of assets 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances - beginning of year 

Fund balances - end of year 

Grant Debt Capital 
General Programs Service Projects 

$ 26,836, 116 $ S $ 
540,748 

8,629,774 7,236,075 

18,767,299 659,096 756,830 
2,109,236 

366,410 100,072 5,575 24,492 
3,101,717 96,679 599,771 

60,351,300 8,091,922 5,575 1,381,093 

8,666,869 832,967 

1,197,345 4,459,010 16,800 
28,436,434 2,365,532 
5,375,162 
3,725,868 205,836 

97,564 

2,245,948 
4,503,504 

764,306 185,000 9,812,151 302,248 
74,203 389,302 686,792 

48,240,187 8,437,647 10,498,943 7,166,064 

12,111,113 (345,725) (10,493,368) (5,784,971) 

2,400,000 
211,780 361,743 

2,017,497 345,725 8,394,369 4,667,807 
(15,018,460) (84,887) (606,160) 

(12,789,183) 345,725 8,671,225 6,461,647 

(678,070) (1,822,143) 676,676 

14,272,057 1,976,214 1,491,167 

$ 13,593,987 $ $ 154,071 $ 2,167,843 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 

20 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 

963,451 

4,266 

11,236 

978,953 

3,675 

912,198 

915,873 

63,080 

(65,590) 

(65,590) 

(2,510) 

320,790 

$ 318,280 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$26,836,116 
540,748 

16,829,300 

20,187,491 
2,109,236 

507,785 
3,798,167 

70,808,843 

9,503,511 

5,673,155 
30,801,966 

6,287,360 
3,931,704 

97,564 

2,245,948 
4,503,504 

11,063,705 
1,150,297 

75,258,714 

(4,449,871) 

2,400,000 
573,523 

15,425,398 
(15,775,097) 

2,623,824 

(1,826,047) 

18,060,228 

$16,234,181 



CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO 
THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities 
are different because: 

Net change in fund balances M total govenunentai funds 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, 
in the statement of activities, the cost oflilose assets is allocated over 
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 

Capital outlays 
Depreciation expense 

hI the statement of activities, only the loss on sale of artifacts held for sale is 
reported. However, in governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale 
increase financial resources. Thus the change in net assets differs from 
the change in fund blaance by the net book value of the cost of assets sold. 
Additionally, the artifacts held for sale are to be reported at estimated market 
value. The adjustment to estimated market value affects only the statement 
of activities. 

Net book value of artifacts sold 
Adjustment to estimated market value 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current 
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 

Governmental funds report guarantee fees and swap fees as revenues. 
However in the statement of activities, the fees are amortized over the 
guarantee or swap period and reported as investment income. 

Amortization 

'The issuance oflong-ternl debt (i.e., bonds, leases) provides current 
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of 
principal oflong-tenn debt consumes the current financial resources of 
governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. 

Debt isslled or incurred 
Principal repayments 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require 
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not 
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 

Workers' compensation 
Compensated absences 
Post-employment benefits 
Accrued litigation settlement 
Accrued interest 
Amortization of bond issuance costs 
Amortization of bond discounts 

Change in net assets of governmental activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part ofthese financial statements. 
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7.564.488 
(5,875,758) 

(361,601) 
(182,650) 

620,407 

(2,400,000) 
1l,063,705 

(676,567) 
(503,156) 

(12,697,698) 
461,501 
(58,672) 
(33,165) 

(4,617.139) 

$ 

$ 

(1,826,047) 

1,688,730 

(544,251) 

(169,239) 

620,407 

8,663,705 

(18,124,896) 

(9,691,591) 



CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2008 

Harrisburg Tolal 
Sewer Sanitation Senators Proprietary 
Fund Fund Fund Funds 

ASSETS 
Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,132,568 S 478,072 $ $ 4,610,640 
Investments, at fair value 1,091,084 452,475 1,543,559 
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible accounts 

Accounts receivable 2,656,195 528,378 3,184,573 
Due from other funds 515,000 515,000 
Due from component unit 243,159 243,159 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 655,885 265,083 920,968 

Total current assets 9,293,891 1,458,925 265,083 tt,017,899 

Long-tenn assets 
Restricted assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 2,159 2,159 
hlvestmcnts, at fair value 473,300 9,739,905 10,213,205 

Capital assets, not being depreciated 2,526,137 6,542,371 9,068,508 
Capital assets, less accumulated depreciation 
and amortization 37,099,595 152,138 186,933 37,438,666 

Total long-term assets 39,625,732 625,438 16,471,368 56,722,538 

Total assets 48,919,623 2,084,363 16,736,451 67,740,437 
LIABILITIES 

Current liabilities 
Accounts payable 238,038 23,102 261,140 
Accmed expenses 58,tt2 30,696 84,703 173,51 I 
Due to other funds 16,160 21,618 37,778 
Amounts due to component units 1,963,009 132,122 2,095,131 
Current portion of future lease rentals payable 

to component unit 1,728,016 1,728,016 
Current portion of workers' compensation 15,309 183,567 198,876 
Current portion of general obligation bonds payable 47,572 1,180,000 1,227,572 
Current portion of lease rental bonds payable 225,000 225,000 
Current portion of capitalized lease obligations 162,583 162,583 
Current portion of vested compensated absences It,174 5,240 16,414 

Total current liabilities 4,077,390 558,928 1,489,703 6,126,021 

Long-tenn liabilities 
Workers' compensation 47,640 571,230 618,870 
General obligation bonds payable 44,466 44,466 
Lease rental bonds payable 8,286,510 8,286,510 
Capitalized lease obligations 504,317 504,317 
Vested compensated absences 271,507 127,317 398,824 
Other post-employment benefits 348,916 256,556 605,472 
Future lease rentals payable to component unit 3,102,400 3,102,400 

Total long-term liabilities 3,814,929 1,459,420 8,286,510 13,560,859 

Total liabilities 7,892,319 2,018,348 9,776,213 19,686,880 
NET ASSETS 

hlvested in capital assets, net of related debt 34,795,316 (41,462) 34,753,854 
Restricted 

Debt service 658,397 658,397 
Capital projects 6,386,545 6,386,545 

Unrestricted 6,231,988 107,477 (84,704) 6,254,761 

Total net assets $ 41,027,304 $ 66,015 $ 6,960,238 $ 48,053,557 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements, 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS-
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 

Sewer Sanitation 
Fund Fund 

Operating revenues 
Charges for service $ 15,054,421 $ 4,204,769 

Operating expenses 
Salaries and wages 1,836,460 829,245 
Fringe benefits 816,943 1,049,518 
Corrununications 24,408 3,035 
Professional fees 336,532 5,056 
Utilities 1,607,077 1,011 
Insurance 317,589 54,299 
Maintenance and repairs 285,409 137,937 
Contracted services 6,350,598 925,062 
Supplies 730,900 193,186 
Depreciation 1,783,175 149,984 

Total operating expenses 14,089,091 3,348,333 

Operating income 965,330 856,436 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses) 
State subsidy 137,294 
Investment income 50,450 13,473 
Interest expense (613,914) (31,849) 
Gain (loss) on disposal ofcapitai assets (390,183) 
Amortization of bond issue 
costs (292) 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (953,939) 118,918 

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 11,391 975,354 

Capital contribution 1,025,582 
Transfers in 
Transfers out (1,411,337) 

Change in net assets 1,036,973 (435,983) 

Net assets - beginning of year 39,990,331 501,998 

Net assets - end of year $ 41,027,304 $ 66,015 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 
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Harrisburg 
Senators 

Fund 

$ 465,113 

37,386 

37,386 

427,727 

151,369 
(619,485) 
250,000 

(20,167) 

(238,283) 

189,444 

1,761,036 

1,950,480 

5,009,758 

$ 6,960,238 

Total 
Proprietary 

Funds 

$ 19,724,303 

2,665,705 
1,866,461 

27,443 
341,588 

1,608,088 
371,888 
423,346 

7,275,660 
924,086 

1,970,545 

17,474,810 

2,249,493 

137,294 
215,292 

(1,265,248) 
(140,183) 

(20,459) 

(1,073,304) 

1,176,189 

1,025,582 
1,761,036 

(1,411,337) 

2,551,470 

45,502,087 

$ 48,053,557 



CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 

Harrisburg Total 
Sewer Sanitation Senators Proprietary 
Fund Fund Fund Funds 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Received from user charges $ 15,469,645 $ 4,253,483 $ 465,113 $ 20,188,241 
Payments to employees for services (1,846,049) (821,367) (2,667,416) 
Payments for fringe benefits (468,027) (792,962) (1,260,989) 
Payments to suppliers for goods and services (9,368,197) (1,007,695) (10,375,892) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 3,787,372 1,631,459 465,113 5,883,944 

Cash flows from noncapitai financing activities 
Transfers in 1,761,036 1,761,036 
Transfers out (1,411,337) (1,411,337) 
State subsidy 137,294 137,294 
Payment of amounts due to other funds (20,959) (22,831) (43,790) 

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapitai 
financing activities (20,959) (1,296,874) 1,761,036 443,203 

Cash flows from capital and related financing 
activities 

Proceeds from sale of capital asset 250,000 250,000 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (80,063) (3,628,452) (3,708,515) 
Interest paid (31,849) (660,924) (692,773) 
Lease, bond and note payments (2,200,135) ( 194.155) (1,920,000) (4,314,290) 

Net cash used in capital and related 
financing activities (2,280,198) (226,004) (5,959,376) (8,465,578) 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Sales (purchases) of investments (359,831 ) (157,938) 3,581,858 3,064,089 
Investment income received 50,450 13,473 151,369 215,292 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (309,381) (144,465) 3,733,227 3,279,381 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and 
cash equivalents 1,176,834 (35,884) 1,140,950 

Cash and cash equivalents (including restricted 
cash) ~ beginning of year 2,955,734 513,956 2,159 3,471,849 

Cash and cash equivalents (including restricted 
assets) - end of year $ 4,132,568 $ 478,072 $ 2,159 $ 4,612,799 

(continued) 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - ALL PROPRIETARY FUNDS (CONT'D) 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 

Sewer Sanitation 
Fund Fund 

Reconciliation of operating income to 
nct cash provided by operating activities 

Operating income $ 965,330 $ 856,436 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income 
to net cash provided by operating 
activities 

Depreciation and amortization 1,783,175 149,984 
Provision for uncollectible accounts (395,036) 68,634 
Changes in assets and liabilities 

Accounts receivable 810,260 (19,920) 
Other assets (21,589) 1,834 
Direct financing lease 268,510 
Vested compensated absences (9,589) 7.878 
Other post~employment benefits 348,916 256.556 
\Vorkers' compensation (125,038) 289,698 
Accounts payable and other accrued costs 162,433 20,359 

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 3,787,372 $ 1,631,459 

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities 
Amortization of deferred bond issuance costs 
and bond discount $ $ 

Capital assets purchased by The Harrisburg 
Authority on behalf of the Sewer Fund $ 757,072 $ 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 
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Harrisburg Total 
Senators Proprietary 

Fund Funds 

$ 427,727 $ 2,249,493 

37,386 1,970,545 
(326,402) 

790,340 
(19,755) 
268,510 

(1,711) 
605,472 
164,660 
182,792 

$ 465, i13 $ 5,883,944 

$ 24,617 $ 24,617 

$ S 757,072 



CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 
DECEMBER3l,2008 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 

Receivables 
Interest and dividends 

Total receivables 

Investments, at fair value 
Money market funds 
Fixed income funds 
U.S. Government obligations 
U.S. Government agency obligations 
Corporate bonds 
Equity funds 
Common stocks 
U.S. Govenunent agency obligations - STRIPS 

Total investments 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Due to other govemments 
Escrow liabilities 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 

Net assets held in trust for police 
pension benefits (a summary offunding 
progress is presented on page 117) $ 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 

26 

Police 
Pension Agency 

Trust Fund Funds 

$ 1,280,369 

83,621 

83,621 

4,613,296 
11,471,819 
2,090,964 
3,233,928 
1,022,268 

18,443,159 
8,240,470 

1,223,781 

49,115,904 1,223,781 

49,199,525 2,504,150 

416,222 
2,087,928 

$ 2,504,150 

49,199,525 



CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS - POLICE PENSION TRUST FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 

Additions 
Contributions 

Employee 
Employer 

Total contributions 

Investment income 
Interest and dividend income 
Net depreciation in fair value of investments 

Total investment eamings 

Less investment expense 

Net investment income 

Total additions 

Deductions 
Pension benefits 
Administrative expenses 

Total deductions 

Change in net assets 

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits-
January I 

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits -
December 31 

The accompanying notes are an integral 

part of the these financial statements. 
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$ 484,514 
285,274 

769,788 

2,871,970 
(20,056,173) 

(17,184,203) 

(235,588) 

(17,419,791) 

(16,650,003) 

3,455,936 
44,221 

3,500,157 

(20,150,160) 

69,349,685 

$ 49,199,525 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS 
COMPONENT UNITS 

The Harrisburg Authority 

The Harrisburg Authority Component Unit is used to account for the revenues and expenses associated with 
providing water service to residents and commercial and industrial establishments of the City of Harrisburg 
(City) and several surrounding municipalities; providing municipal solid waste disposal, subsequent sale of 
incinerator generated steam to local utility, and the production of electricity for in-house use and sale to a 
public utility. 

Harrisburg Parking Authority 

The Harrisburg Parking Authority Component Unit is used to account for the revenues and expenses associated 
with the ownership and operation of nine parking garages containing approximately 7,421 spaces in the central 
business district of the City, in addition to funds it receives fi'om on-street parking meter charges and five open 
lots. 

Coordinated Parking Fund 

The Coordinated Parking Fund Component Unit (Fund) is used to account for the net operating revenues from 
the components of the coordinated parking system. The components of the coordinated parking system include 
nine parking garages owned by the Harrisburg Parking Authority, two of the City's surface lots, and the City's 
parking meters. The Fund is pledged as security for the debt service payments of the Harrisburg Parking 
Authority Series N Bonds and is currently used to make the debt service payments for such Bonds. 

Redevelopment Authority of the City of Harrisburg 

The Redevelopment Authority of the City of Harrisburg Component Unit is incorporated under the provisions 
of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Urban Development Act Number 385 of May 24, 1945, as amended for 
the purpose of providing redevelopment and other related activities within the City. 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - COMPONENT UNITS 
DECEMBER 31, 2008 

The Harrisburg Coordinated Total 
Harrisburg Parking Parking Redevelopment Component 
Authority Authority Fund Authority Units 

ASSETS 
Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,999,230 $ 2,382,430 $ 1,598,494 $ 1,438,466 $10,418,620 
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for 

uncollectible 5,303,140 138,284 153,132 5,594,556 
Other receivables 21,800 21,800 
Advances and amounts due from primary 
government 207,436 335,208 542,644 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 166,238 166,238 
Current portion of direct financing lease 1,728,016 1,728,016 

Total current assets 12,259,622 2,686,952 1,933,702 1,591,598 18,471,874 

Restricted assets 
Cash with fiscal agents 3,940,646 12 231,073 4,171,731 
Investments 72,530,540 11,895,038 84,425,578 
Litigation settlement receivable 5,415,000 5,415,000 
Accrued interest receivable 21,509 21,509 

Total restricted assets 81,907,695 11,895,050 231,073 94,033,818 

Advances to primary government 1,798,032 1,798,032 
Future lease rentals receivable from primary government 3,102,400 3,102,400 
Capital assets, not being depreciated 11,944,856 7,989,505 19,934,361 
Capital assets, less accumulated depreciation 171,285,466 56,601,739 4,044,250 231,931,455 
Equitable ownership interest 14,000,500 14,000,500 
Deferred charges, net of accumulated amortization 15,501,229 6,023,612 21,524,841 

Total assets 297,799,300 99,197,358 1,933,702 5,866,921 404,797,281 

(continued) 
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The Harrisburg Coordinated Total 
Harrisburg Parking Parking Redevelopment Component 
Authority Authority 

LIABILITIES 
Fund Authoritx Units 

Current liabilities (payable from current assets) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 651,287 1,014,406 2,330 151,526 1,819,549 
Advances and amounts due to primary 
government 325,438 (10,000) 315,438 

Advances and amounts due to component unit (1,149,755) 1,149,755 
Deferred revenue 643,096 643,096 
Current portion of bonds payable 2,865,000 2,865,000 

Total current liabilities (payable from 
current assets) 976,725 3,362,747 1,152,085 151,526 5,643,083 

Current liabilities (payable from restricted assets) 
Accounts payable 7,334,460 7,334,460 
Litigation costs payable 1,834,091 1,834,091 
Accrued bond interest payable 5,469,872 1,225,551 6,695,423 
Deferred revenue 256,500 256,500 
Current portion of due to other governments 30,000 30,000 
Current portion of loan payable 1,275,000 1,275,000 
Current portion of revenue bonds payable 6,840,000 6,840,000 
Current portion of revenue notes payable 914,977 500,000 1,414,977 

Total current liabilities (payable from 
restricted assets) 23,668,400 1,225,551 786,500 25,680,451 

Noncurrent liabilities 
Loans payable 6,958,000 6,958,000 
Revenue bonds payable, net of discount 297,455,805 104,196,595 41,038,706 442,691,106 
Revenue notes payable, net of discount 103,093,321 103,093,321 
Due to other governments 140,832 140,832 
Due to primary government 607,636 607,636 
Deferred revenue 5,465,640 298,181 5,763,821 
Accrued landfill closure and postMclosure 
care liability 2,270,163 2,270,163 

Totalliabilities 440,495,690 109,083,074 1,152,085 42,117,564 592,848,413 

NET ASSETS 

Net assets 
Invested in capital asset, net of related debt (154,022,947) (13,646,455) 4,044,250 (163,625,152) 
Restricted 

Debt service 16,579,776 16,579,776 
Construction 3,895,146 3,895,146 
Guarantee agrccment 295,358 295,358 
Water operations 4,091,374 4,091,374 

Unrestricted (13,535,097) 3,760,739 781,617 (40,294,893) (49,287,634) 

Total net assets $ (142,696,390) $ (9,885,716) $ 781,617 $(36,250,643) $( 188,051 ,132) 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES - COMPONENT UNITS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 

The Harrisburg Authority 
HalTisburg Parking Authority 
Coordinated Parking Fund 
Redevelopment Authority 

Total component units 

$ 

$ 

Expenses 

65,884,629 
17,769,855 
7,809,802 
5,029,764 

96,494,050 

Program Revenues 

Operating 
Charges for Contributions and 

Services Grants 

$ 41,127,328 $ 
12,967,547 
8,229,232 
1,528,759 304,897 

$ 63,852,866 $ 304,897 

General revenues 
Space rental income 
Miscellaneous income 
Unrestricted investment earnings 

Total general revenues and special items 

Capital 
Contributions and 

Grants 

$ 

250,907 

$ 250,907 

Change in net assets before extraordinaIY item 

Extraordinary item: 
Litigation settlement 

Change in net assets 

Net assets - JanuaIY 1, 2008 

Net assets - December 31, 2008 
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The 
Harrisburg 
Authori~ 

$ (24,757,301) $ 

{24,757,301) 

2,335,284 

2,335,284 

(22,422,017) 

3,580,909 

(18,841,108) 

(123,855,282) 

$ {142,696,390) $ 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 

Harrisburg 
Parking 
Authori~ 

(4,802,308) 

(4,802,308) 

819,050 

819,050 

(3,983,258) 

(3,983,258) 

{5,902,458) 

{9,885,716) 

Changes in Net Assets 

Coordinated 
Parking Redevelopment 

Fund Authori~ 

$ $ $ 

419,430 
{2,945,201) 

419,430 {2,945,20 I) 

888,014 
54,841 

30,237 19,798 

30,237 962,653 

449,667 (1,982,548) 

449,667 (1,982,548) 

331,950 (34,268,095) 

$ 781,617 $ (36,250,643) $ 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
patt of these financial statements. 
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Total 

(24,757,301) 
(4,802,308) 

419,430 
(2,945,20 I) 

{32,085,380) 

888,014 
54,841 

3,204,369 

4,147,224 

(27,938,156) 

3,580,909 

(24,357,247) 

(163,693,885) 

(188,051,132) 



CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31 ,2008 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The City of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania (City) was founded by John Harris Il in 1785, established as a 
borough in 1791 and incorporated as a City on March 19, 1860. The City operates as a Mayor-Council 
fmm of government and provides all municipal services to its residents. 

The accounting policies of the City conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America as applicable to governmental units. The following is a summary of the significant 
policies: 

A. Reportillg Elltity 

The City used guidance contained in Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 
14, as amended by GASB Statement No. 39, The Financial Reporting Entity, to evaluate the possible 
inclusion of related entities (Authorities, Boards, Councils, etc.) within its repOl1ing entity. The criteria 
used by the City for inclusion are financial accountability and the nature and significance of the 
relationships. In determining financial accountability in a given case, the City reviews the applicability 
of the following criteria. The City is financially accountable for: 

• Organizations that make up the legal City entity. 
• Legally separate organizations if City officials appoint a voting majority of the organization's 

governing body and the City is able to impose its will on the organization or if there is a potential 
for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens 
on the City, as defined below: 

• Impose its Will - Ifthe City can significantly influence the programs, projects, or activities of, 
or the level of services performed or provided by, the organization. 

• Financial Benefit 01' Bnl'dcn- Exists if the City (I) is entitled to the organization's resources 
or (2) is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the obligation to finance the deficits of, or 
provide support to, the organization or (3) is obligated in some manner for the debt of the 
organization. 

• Organizations that are fiscally dependent on the City. Fiscal dependency is established if the 
organization is unable to adopt its budget, levy taxes, set rates or charges, or issue bonded debt 
without approval by the City. 

Based on the foregoing criteria, the reporting entity has been defined to include all the entities for 
which the City is financially accountable or for which there is another significant relationship. Specific 
information on the nature of the various potential component units and a description of how the 
aforementioned criteria have been considered in determining whether or not to include or exclude such 
units in the City'S financial statements are provided in the following paragraphs. Separately published 
audit repOl1s of the component units and joint venture are available for public inspection in the City's 
Finance Office. 

Blended Component Units 

Some component units, despite being legally separate from the primary government (City), are so 
intel1wined with the primary government that they are, in substance, the same as the primmy 
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government and are repOlted as palt of the primary government. The component unit reported in this 
way is the City of Harrisburg Leasing Authority, 

City o(Harrisburg Leasing Authority 

The City of Harrisburg Leasing Authority was formed pursuant to the Municipal Authority Act in 1986 
for the purpose of acquiring and leasing facilities and equipment to the City, The five-member Board 
of Directors is appointed by the Mayor, The City of Harrisburg Leasing Authority's only financial 
transaction is the financing of City projects, There was no activity during the year ended December 31, 
2008, 

Discretely Presented Component Units 

Component units which are not blended as part of the primalY government are discretely presented, 
which entails reporting component unit financial data in a column separate from the financial data of 
the primaty government. The component units presented in this way are the following: 

• The Harrisburg Authority 
• Harrisburg Parking Authority 
• Coordinated Parking Fund 
• Harrisburg Redevelopment Authority 

The Harrisburg AutllOritv 

The Hal1'isburg Authority was incorporated in 1957 under the provisions of the Municipal Authority 
Act. The entire five-member Board of Directors is appointed by City Council. The Hal1'isburg 
Authority has purchased the water system and incinerator facility from the City and contracts with the 
City to manage the water system, The contract requires that the Mayor prepare an operating expenses 
budget for adoption by the City Council, with final approval by The Harrisburg Authority with the 
inclusion of such operating expenses in The Harrisburg Authority'S annual budget. The Harrisburg 
Authority incurred $9,103,245 in expenses under this agreement in 2008, Additionally, The Harrisburg 
Authority has agreed to adopt rates sufficient to pay the operating expenses budget, as approved, plus 
administrative and debt service expenses, The Harrisburg Authority has contracted with an outside 
vendor to manage the incinerator facility, The Harrisburg Authority has financed the sewer system for 
the City with a lease revenue bond transaction for which the City pledged all sewer system revenues to 
secure the Harrisburg Authority's bonds, 

Harrisburg Parking Authority 

The Harrisburg Parking Authority (Authority) was incorporated in 1972 under the Pennsylvania 
Parking Authority Law of 1947, The five-member Board of Directors is appointed by the Mayor and 
members can be removed from the Board at will, The Authority owns and operates nine parking 
garages containing approximately 7,421 spaces in the central business district of the City, 

In addition to parking charges, the Authority receives funds from on-street parking meter charges and 
five open lots. The City receives the benefit of excess parking revenues through a Cooperation 
Agreement with the Authority and the City has guaranteed all of the Authority's outstanding debt. 
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Coordinated Parking Fund 

The Coordinated Parking Fund (Fund) was established in 1984 through a Cooperation Agreement for 
the Downtown Coordinated Parking System entered into by the City of Harrisburg, The HalTisburg 
Redevelopment Authority, Harristown Development Corporation, Harrisburg Parking Authority, The 
Mayor of Harrisburg, and the Harrisburg City Council. The Harrisburg Parking Authority Board, which 
is appointed by the Mayor and whose members can be removed from the Board at will, administers the 
Fund on behalf of the City. The Fund is pledged as security for the debt service payments of the 
Harrisburg Parking Authority Series N Bonds and is currently used to make the debt service payments 
for such Bonds. 

Harrisburg Redevelopment Authoritv (Redevelopment Autltoritvl 

The Redevelopment Authority was established in 1949 pursuant to the Urban Redevelopment Act of 
1945 (Public Law - 991). The Redevelopment Authority is administered by a five-member Board of 
Directors, all of whom are appointed by the Mayor. The Redevelopment Authority provides a broad 
range of urban renewal and maintenance programs within the City. The Redevelopment Authority also 
coordinates efforts to improve the economic vitality, the housing stock, and overall living conditions 
within the City. The City guarantees some debt of the Redevelopment Authority projects. 

Potential Component Units Excluded 

City of Harrisburg Housing Authority (Housing Autltoritvi 

The Housing Authority was established in 1937 pursuant to the Housing Authorities Law to promote 
the availability of safe and sanitary dwelling accommodations at affordable rents to families of low 
income. The Housing Authority is administered by a five-member Board of Directors, all of whom are 
appointed by the Mayor. 

The Housing Authority operates low rent subsidized housing projects established within the City. The 
Housing Authority manages the acquisition of federal and state funds for the construction of andlor 
improvements to low income propelties and reviews programs with the landlords to ensure compliance 
with various rules and regulations. The City has no financial accountability over the Housing 
Authority's operations. 

The Housing Authority operates and repOlts on a calendar year. 

Harristown Development Corporation (HDCI 

The Harristown Development Corporation was incorporated under the Nonprofit Corporation Law of 
Pennsylvania in 1974, and owns and operates several facilities within the City. HDC is governed by a 
17-member Board of Directors (Board) selected by a nominating committee of the Board. City officials 
do not serve on the Board or nominating committee. The City does guarantee the debt of an HDC 
project, but there is no indication of financial accountability. 

The HDC operates and reports on a calendar year. 
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Harrisburg School District 

In May 2000, the General Assembly of the Commonwealth passed Act 16 of 2000, entitled the 
Education Empowerment Act ("Act 16"), which was signed by the Governor. Soon after passage of 
Act 16, the School District filed a legal challenge to Act 16 as it relates to the Mayor's control of the 
Harrisburg schools and requested immediate injunctive relief from the Commonwealth Court of 
Pennsylvania. While Act 16 legal proceedings were pending, in November 2000, the General 
Assembly of the Commonwealth passed Act 91 of 2000, amending the Education Empowerment Act 
("Act 91"), which was signed by the Governor. Soon after passage of Act 91, the School District filed a 
legal challenge as it relates to the Mayor's control of the Han'isburg schools and requested immediate 
injunctive relief. On December 15, 2000, the Commonwealth COUlt of Pennsylvania denied the 
injunction, thus permitting the implementation of Act 91. Act 91 directed the Mayor of the City to 
assume control of the School District, which was identified by the General Assembly as one of the 
most distressed and underachieving in the Commonwealth as of July 2000. Act 91 directs the Mayor to 
appoint a five-member Board of Directors and an eleven-member Advisory Board to assist him. Act 91 
imposes no financial responsibilities on the City with respect to the School District. By an order dated 
July 22, 2003, the Pennsylvania Supreme Court upheld the amendments to the Pennsylvania 
Educational Empowerment Act which granted control of the Harrisburg School District to the Mayor, 
as confirmed. The Harrisburg School District remains under the budgetary control of an elected school 
board. 

The HalTisburg School District operates and repotts on a fiscal year ending June 30. 

Joint Venture 

The City is a participant with other municipalities in a joint venture that provides services to the 
constituents of all the pmticipants. The City has no financial or equity interest in the joint venture. The 
following is a summary of the significant facts and circumstances for the joint venture for the year 
ended June 30, 2008: 

Name of Organization 

Services Provided 
City Board representation 

Fiscal Year 
Current Assets 
Capital Assets, Net 

Total Assets 
Net Assets 

Operating Revenue 
Operating Loss 
Change in Net Assets 
City Contribution to Operations 
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Cumberland-Dauphin-Hanisburg 
Transit Authority 

Bus Service 

Two of seven members 
June 30 

$ 3,707,334 
$ 25,605,694 
$ 29,372,384 

$ 25,885,333 
$ 6,493,711 
$ (12,911,184) 

$ (1,547,141) 
$ 259,413 
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Related Organizations 

The City Council and Mayor are also responsible for appointing the members of several boards, but the 
City's accountability for these organizations does not extend beyond making appointments. These 
boards include: 

Broad Street Market Authority 
Planning Commission 
Private Industry Council 
Tri-County Regional Planning Commission 
Emergency Planning Committee 
Board of Health 
Historical and Architectural Review Board 
Plumbing Board 
Harrisburg Economic Development Corporation 
Downtown Improvement District, Inc. 
Harrisburg Civic Baseball Club 
Susquehanna Area Regional AirpOlt Authority 

Harrisburg Human Relations Commission 
Harrisburg Mayor's Commission on Literacy 
License and Tax Appeals 
Electrical Code Advisory and Licensing 
Building Code Board of Appeals 
Housing Code Board of Appeals 
Civil Service Board 
Zoning Hearing Board 
Revolving Loan Review Committee 
Harris Com, Inc. 

The amounts the City appropriated to these organizations during the year ended December 31, 2008 
were immaterial to the basic financial statements. 

The City owns the National Civil War Museum and the related artifacts (collectively, the facilities). 
During 2001, the City entered into an agreement to lease the facilities to a not-for-profit organization 
(organization) for $1 per year. After five years, the City can notifY the organization that it would like to 
renegotiate the rent payment based on the organization's ability to pay. The mayor is one oftwenty
five potential board members of the organization. Effective January 2009, the mayor no longer serves a 
a board member for the organization. Payments made by the City, on behalf of the organization, for 
the year ended December 31, 2008, were $40,715. 

B. Govemment-Wide alUl FlInd Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of 
activities) repOlt information on all of the nonfiduciaty activities of the primary government and its 
component units. For the most patt, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these 
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely, to a significant extent on 
fees and charges to external parties for SUppOlt. Likewise, the primary government is repOlted 
separately from cettain legally separate component units for which the primaty government is 
financially accountable. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or segment. Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who 
purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or 
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a patticular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are repOlted instead as general revenues. 
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Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary 
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major 
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are rep0l1ed as separate columns 
in the fund financial statements. 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accollllfing, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are rep0l1ed using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietalY fund and pension trust fund financial 
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, 
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which 
they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are repol1ed using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available. Revenues are considered available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. For this 
purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of 
the CUlTent fiscal period. Real estate, earned income, mercantile, franchise and hotel taxes, 
intergovernmental revenue, departmental earnings, and investment income are all considered to be 
susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other 
govel'llmental fund revenues are recorded as cash is received because they are generally not measurable 
until actually received. In determining when to recognize intergovernmental revenues (grants and 
entitlements), the legal and contractual requirements of the individual programs are used as guidance. 

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, 
principal and interest on general long-term obligations are recognized when due. Prepaid items and 
inventOlY purchases are reported as expenditures in the year when the items are purchased. 
Expenditures for claims, judgments, compensated absences, and employer pension contributions are 
reported to the extent that they mature each period. 

The City rep0l1s deferred revenue on its govel'llmental fund balance sheet. Deferred revenues arise 
when a potential revenue does not meet the "measurable" and "available" criteria for recognition in the 
current period. Deferred revenues also arise when reSOlll'ces are received by the government before it 
has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifYing 
expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the 
govel'llment has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the 
govel'llmental fund balance sheet and revenue is recognized. 
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The City repotts the following major governmental funds: 

Gelleral FUlld - Accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in 
another fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. 

Grallt Programs FUlld - Accounts for the revenues and expenditnres of federal, state, and other grant 
programs including the Community Development Block Grant Entitlement Program. 

Debt Service Flilid - Accounts for the accumulation of resources, which are principally transfers from 
other funds, for the payment of general long-term obligation principal, interest, and related costs. 

Capital Projects FUlld - Accounts for financial resources to be used for the acquisition, construction, 
or improvement of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietaty funds). 

The City repOlts the following major proprietary funds: 

Sewer FUlld - Accounts for the revenues and expenses associated with the provision of sewerage 
service to the residents and commercial and industrial establishments of the City as well as six 
municipalities surrounding the City. 

Sallitatioll Fund - Accounts for the revenues and expenses associated with the provision of refuse 
collection and disposal services to the residents and commercial and industrial establishments of the 
City. 

Harrisburg Senators FUlld - Accounts for the revenues and expenses associated with the payment of 
debt on the purchase of Harrisburg Senators minor league baseball franchise and financing of a new 
stadium of the Harrisburg Senators, formerly owned by the City. 

In addition, the City repolts the following fund types: 

Pension Trust Fund - Accounts for the accumulation of resources for pension benefit payments and 
the withdrawals of qualified distributions of police personnel. 

Agencv FUllds - Account for sihmtions where the City's role is purely custodial in nature (assets equal 
liabilities) and do not involve the measurement of results of operations and do not have a measurement 
focus. The City's agency funds include the school tax collection fund, which is used to account for the 
collection and payment to the school district of property taxes billed and collected on its behalf, the 
payroll and other escrow liabilities fund, which is used to accotmt for the collection and payment of 
miscellaneous escrow liabilities, and the pass-through grant fund, which is used to account for the 
temporary collection and disbursement of pass-through grants. 

The City follows GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting/or Proprietary Funds 
and Other Governmental Entities That Use ProprietG/y Fund Accounting (Statement No. 20), for 
repotting and disclosure purposes. As permitted by Statement No. 20, the City has elected not to apply 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989 
unless the GASB specifically adopts the F ASB Statement or Interpretation. 

As a general rule, the effect of intelfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the enterprise funds and other 
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functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program 
revenues rep01led for the various functions concerned. 

ProprietalY funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses fi'om nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietaty fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of 
the City's enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for 
enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on 
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating 
revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's policy to 
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

D. Cas" and Cas" Equivalellts 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) 
with a maturity of three months or less when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents. 

E. Illvestments 

The City catTies its investments at fair value. The fair value of the City's investments are based upon 
values provided by external investment managers and quoted market price. 

F. Allowance jor Ullcollectible Accoullts 

The allowance for uncollectible accounts is based upon historical ratios established according to 
experience and other factors which in the judgment of City officials deserve recognition in estimating 
possible losses. Management believes that they have adequately provided for future probable losses. 

G. Illterjl/ful Receivables alld Payables 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the 
end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/fi'om other funds" (i.e., the current portion of 
interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the non-current p01lion of interfund loans). 
During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods 
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as "due to/from other 
funds" on the balance sheet. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities 
and business-type activities are repolled in the government-wide financial statements as "internal 
balances." 

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance 
reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for 
appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources. 
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H. Assets Held/or Sale 

Assets held for sale consist of celtain historical artifacts which City Council has authorized to be sold. 
The City carries its assets held for sale at estimated fair value. The fair value of the City's assets held 
for sale are valued at extrapolated appraisal cost, actual sales values, and estimated realizable values. 

I. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, 
dams, and similar items), are repOlted in the applicable governmental or business-type activities 
columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as 
assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two 
years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if historical cost is not 
available. Assets acquired prior to 1982 have been valued by applying an inflation index to current 
replacement cost to determine estimated historical costs. The cost of such assets amounted to 
$2,534,451 at December 31, 2008. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at 
the date of donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially 
extend lives are not capitalized. 

Altifacts, totaling $18,649,000, have been recorded at cost in the governmental activities column of the 
government-wide financial statements and are not being depreciated. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest 
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as patt of 
the capitalized value of the assets constructed. 

Capital assets of the primary government, as well as the component units, are depreciated using the 
straight line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Buildings and improvements 
Equipment and furniture 
Infrastructure 

J. Vested Compensated Absences 

5 to 100 years 
5 to 20 years 

50 to 150 years 

Vested compensated absences represent vested pOltions of accumulated unpaid vacation, sick pay and 
other employee benefit amounts. It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate a limited 
amount of earned but unused vacation, sick pay and other employee benefit amounts, which will be 
paid to employees upon separation from City service. All vested compensated absences are accrued 
when incurred in the government-wide, proprietalY and fiduciaty fund financial statements. A liability 
for these amounts is repOlted in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result 
of employee resignations and retirements. 

K. Long-term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietmy fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable 
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governmental activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond 
premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amOliized over the life of the 
related obligation using the effective interest method. Debt is repOlied net of the applicable bond 
premium or discount. Issuance costs are repOlied as deferred charges and amortized over the term of 
the related obligation. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as 
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount ofthe debt issued is repOlied as 
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are repOlied as other financing sources 
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not 
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

The Harrisburg Authority, and The Harrisburg Parking Authority follow the provisions of GASB 
Statement No. 23, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Rejill1dings of Debt Reported by 
Propl'ietGlY Activities. GASB Statement No. 23 requires that the difference between the reacquisition 
price and the net carrying amount of the defeased debt be deferred and amOliized as a component of 
interest expense over the remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt, whichever is shorter. 
On the balance sheet, the amount of the unamOliized deferred costs of refunding is repOlied as a 
deduction from the new liability. As of December 31, 2008, the unamortized deferred costs of 
refunding recorded by The Harrisburg Authority and the Harrisburg Parking Authority were 
$33,290,715 and $4,265,186, respectively. 

L. Interest Rate Swaps 

The City and its component units have entered into interest rate swap agreements to modify interest 
rates on outstanding debt. Other than the net interest expenditures resulting from these agreements, no 
amounts are recorded in the financial statements. Advance payments to enter into the swap agreements 
are deferred and amortized over the life ofthe issue on the government-wide statements. 

M, Fund Equity and Net Assets 

In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, net assets are classified in the following categories: 

Invested ill Capital Asset~; Net of Related Debt - This categOlY groups all capital assets, including 
infrastructure, into one component of net assets. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding 
balances of debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of these assets 
reduces this category. 

Restricted Net Assets - This category presents external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, 
contributors or laws or regulations of other governments, and restrictions imposed by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted Net Assets - This categOlY represents the net assets of the City, which are not restricted 
for any project or other purpose. 

In the fund financial statements, fund balances of governmental funds are classified in two separate 
categories. The two categories and their general meanings are as follows: 
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Reserved FUfld Balaflce - This category represents that portion of fund equity which has been legally 
segregated for specific purposes. 

Uflreserved FUfld Balaflce - This category represents that portion of fund equity which is available for 
appropriation and expenditure in future periods. 

The City records two general types of reserves. One type is used to indicate that a p0l1ion of fund 
equity is legally segregated for a specific future use. The second type of reserve is used to indicate that 
a pOl1ion of the fund equity is not appropriable for expenditures. Reserves used by the City are as 
follows: 

Governmental Funds 

Reserved (or capital olltlay - An account used to segregate a portion of fund balance for assets 
restricted under tenns of bond indentures, terms of grant agreements, or City Council appropriation for 
the acquisition of capital assets. 

Reserved (or encumbraflces - An account used to segregate a p0l1ion of fund balance for expenditure 
upon vendor performance. 

Reserved (or debt service - An account used to segregate a p011ion of fund balance for assets restricted 
to the payment of generallong-tenn obligation principal and interest maturing in future years. 

Reserved (or workers' compensation - An account used to segregate a p0l1ion of fund balance for 
assets restricted for payment of benefits to claimants in accordance with the provisions of the 
Pennsylvania Workers' Compensation Act. 

Reserved (or revolviflg loafl program - An account used to segregate a p0l1ion of fund balance for 
assets restricted for use by the revolving loan program. 

N. Pensions 

All full-time employees of the City, with the exception of police officers, are covered by an agent
multiple employer public employee retirement system, the Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement System 
(PMRS). Police officers are covered by the Combined Police Pension Plan, a single-employer pension 
plan. Contributions to the plans are made in amounts sufficient to fund current service costs and to fund 
prior and past service costs over a forty-year period. Member employees contribute amounts to the 
plans based on a percentage of salillY. The City funds its pension plans on the basis of normal cost plus 
the amortization of prior service cost over thirty years in accordance with Act 205 - 1984 of the 
Pennsylvania legislature. Pension expense is based upon normal cost plus the equivalent to interest on 
the unfunded prior service costs. As of January 1, 2007, the date of the most recent actuarial valuation, 
the actuarial value of assets exceeded the actuarial accrued pension liability in the Combined Police 
Pension Plan in the amount of$9,001,535. 

O. Risk Maflagement 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to tOl1s; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; elTors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City purchases 
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commercial insurance for all risks of loss except those related to injuries to employees. Settled claims 
have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

The City is self-insured for workers' compensation. As a self-insurer, the City is required to fund an 
already established trust fund, dollar for dollar, once the City has passed a total outstanding liability 
threshold of $3,594,887, as established by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Accordingly, the City 
has established a trust fund for workers' compensation claims. The City provides coverage for up to a 
maximum of $500,000 and $400,000 for each workers' compensation claim for uniform and non
uniform employees, respectively, and has purchased commercial coverage for claims in excess of 
coverage. 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietaty fund types in the fund financial 
statements, the liability for outstanding claims is repOlted in the applicable governmental activities, 
business-type activities or proprietalY fund type statement of net assets. A liability for these amounts is 
repOlted in governmental funds only if they have matured. The City has reserved its General Fund 
balance for the amount of the trust fund. The accrued cost for unpaid claims was $3,999,404 and 
$817,747 in the governmental activities and business-type activities, respectively, at December 31, 
2008. These claims liabilities are discounted to present value at a discount rate of 5% and are based on 
the requirements of GASB Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be repOlted if 
information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability 
has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably 
estimated. 

Change in the claims' liability amounts were as follows: 

Beginning - JanualY 1 
Current year claims and changes in estimates 
Claim payments 

Ending - December 31 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-type 
Activities 

$ 2,922,837 $ 653,086 
1,766,101 356,459 

(1,089,534) (191,799) 

$ 3,599,404 =$====8=17~,7=46= 

P, Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

2008 2007 

$ 3,575,923 $ 3,811,079 
2,122,560 1,054,435 

(1,281,333) (1,289,591) 

$ 4,417,150 $ 3,575,923 

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the 
General Fund, Debt Service Fund, State Liquid Fuels Tax Fund (nonmajor governmental fund), Sewer, 
and Sanitation Funds. Annual budgets are adopted by ordinances passed by City Council. The City has 
established the following procedures relating to the preparation and adoption of the annual budget. 

I. During August, budget preparation packages are prepared aud submitted to the depattment 
heads/bureau chiefs for use in developing financial projections for their expenditures for the 
ensuing year. 

2. The budget staff reviews the depattment heads' /bureau chiefs' expenditure projections and 
submits a first draft to the Business Administrator. Subsequent to the Business Administrator's 
review, the draft and recommendations are forwarded to the Mayor. 
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3. During September, departmental review forms are prepared and submitted to all department 
heads/bureau chiefs for use in developing financial projections for anticipated revenues for the 
ensuing year. 

4. Mayoral hearings are then held with each department to discuss their budgets as submitted and 
allow them to substantiate projected expenditures. 

5. After hearings, the budget staff again reviews the projections and presents to the Business 
Administrator options as to the most viable method of financing them. 

6. A second draft is then given to the Mayor with the balanced budget prepared as a result of 
meetings held between the Mayor, the Business Administrator, and the budget staff. 

7. On the fOUlth Tuesday of November, the final Mayoral recommended budget is presented to 
City Council. 

8. Council holds Budget and Finance Committee meetings to substantiate the proposed budget 
and arrive at any amendments to the budget. 

9. By December 31, the budget, as amended by Council, is legally enacted through the passage of 
an ordinance. 

Appropriations are authorized by ordinance at the fund level with the exception of the General Fund, 
which is appropriated at the functional office or depattment level except for the Office of 
Administration, which has separate budgets for administration and general expenditures. These are the 
legal levels of budgetary control. Administrative control is maintained through the establishment of 
more detailed line-item budgets. 

The Business Administrator may authorize transfers less than $20,000 within a depaltment 01' office. 
While, administratively, City Council approval is required for transfers in excess of $20,000 along 
budget lines, the City considers budgetary authority to be at the office/depmtmentallevel, as it is at this 
higher level that the budget is legally adopted. In the absence of budgeted financing, City Council may 
approve a supplemental appropriation from unappropriated fund balances. Therefore, the legal level of 
control is the department level. There were supplemental appropriations enacted during 2008. 

Q. Encumbrances 

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the 
expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is 
employed as an extension of formal budgetat)' integration in the governmental and proprietat)' fund 
types. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end do not constitute expenditures 01' liabilities. 
Encumbrances outstanding at year-end for unfilled obligations of the current year budget are 
reappropriated in the succeeding year. The City records encumbrances as reservations of fund balance 
in all governmental funds, except grant funds, at year-end. Encumbrance accounting is used in 
proprietary fund types as a tool for budgetat)' control, but reserves are not reported. There were no 
encumbrances outstanding at December 31, 2008 in the proprietat)' funds. The subsequent year's 
appropriations provide authority to complete the transactions as expenditures. Encumbrances 
outstanding at December 31, 2008 consisted of $2,502,086 in the Grant Programs Fund and are not 
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reflected on the governmental funds balance sheet, because they relate to funds which have zero fund 
balances at year-end. 

Encumbrances outstanding which are reflected on the governmental funds balance sheet at December 
31, 2008, by fund type, are presented below: 

General 
Capital Projects 

R. Special af/(I Extraordinary Items 

$ 2,688,134 
61,493 

$ 2,749,627 

Special items are significant transactions or other events within the control of management that are 
either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence. Extraordinary items are transactions or other 
events that are both unusual in nature and infrequent in occurrence. If such items exist during the 
reporting period, they are reported separately in financial statements. 

S. Use of Estimates 

Management of the City has made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the repOliing of 
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities to prepare the financial statements in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Estimates 
also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the repOliing period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

T. Non-Recourse Debt Issue 

The Harrisburg Authority and the Redevelopment Authority participate in various bond issues for 
which they have limited liability. Acting solely in an agency capacity, the Authorities serve as a 
financing conduit, bringing the ultimate borrower and the ultimate lender together to do business. 
Although the Authorities are a party to the trust indentures with the trustees, the agreements are 
structured such that there is no recourse against the Authorities in the case of default. As such, the 
corresponding debt is not reflected on the balance sheet of the Authorities. As of December 31, 2008, 
non-recourse debt issues outstanding of The Harrisburg Authority t'ataled $133,640,000 including 
$1,180,000 on behalf of the City. As of December 31, 2008, non-recourse debt issues of the 
Redevelopment Authority totaled approximately $96,277,000 including approximately $18,700,000 on 
behalf of the City. 

U. Pending Changes in Accounting Principles 

In June 2008, GASB issued Statement No. 53, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative 
Instruments. " This Statement addresses the recognition, measurement and disclosure of infonnation 
regarding derivative instruments entered into by state and local governments. The provisions of this 
Statement are effective for the City's 20 I 0 financial statements. 

In FebrualY 2009, GASB issued Statement No. 54, "Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund 
Type Definitions. " This Statement establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy 
based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the 
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use of the resources repOlted in governmental funds. The requirements of this Statement are effective 
for the City's 2011 financial statements. 

The effect of implementation of these statements has not yet been determined. 

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

Prilllal), Government 

The deposit and investment policy of the City adheres to state statutes and prudent business practices. 
City deposits most be held in insured, federally regulated banks or financial institutions and must be 
fully collateralized in accordance with state statutes. Permissible investments include direct obligations 
of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Governmental agencies; certificates of deposit issued by insured banks, 
bank and trust companies, and savings and loan associations; repurchase agreements not to exceed 30 
days, secured by U.S. Government obligations with collateral to be delivered to a third-paIty custodian; 
shares of registered investment companies whose portfolios consist solely of government securities; 
general obligation bonds of any state, Pennsylvania subdivisions, or any of its agencies or 
instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit of the issuing entity and having the highest rating 
of a recognized bond rating agency; and pooled funds of public agencies of the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania. This policy is in accordance with applicable Pennsylvania statutes. There were no 
deposit or investment transactions that were in violation of either state statutes or the policy of the City 
at December 31, 2008, nor during the year then ended. 

Proceeds from debt and other funds, which are held in bank trust accounts in the City's name and 
administered by trustees for payment of revenue bonds and the enterprise fund portion of general long
term debt, are classified as restricted assets since their use is limited by applicable bond indentures. 

Deposits 

At December 31, 2008, the deposits of the City of Harrisburg, including component units were as 
follows: 

Reconciliation to statement of net assets: 
Governmental activities 

Unrestricted 
Restricted 

Business-type activities 
Unrestricted 
Restricted 

FiducialY funds - agency fund 

Total primalY government 

Component units 
Unrestricted 
Restricted cash 

Total component units 

$ 10,270,721 
1,298,399 

4,610,640 
2,159 

1,280,369 

$ 17,462,288 

$ 10,418,620 
4,171,731 

$ 14,590,351 

Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 
government's deposits may not be returned to it. The City has no policy, other than as presented above, 
that further limits its custodial credit deposit risk. As of December 31, 2008, the City's book balance 

47 



CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2008 

was $17,462,288 and the bank balance was $18,504,119. Of the bank balance, $1,319,446 was covered 
by federal depository insurance and $17,009,790 was collateralized under Act No. 72 of the 1971 
Session of the Pennsylvania General Assembly, in which fmancial institutions were granted the 
authority to secure deposits of public bodies by pledging a pool of assets, as defined in the Act, to 
cover all public funds deposited in excess of Federal DepositOty Insurance limits. The remaining bank 
balance of $174,883 was invested in an extemal investment pool with the Pennsylvania Local 
Government Investment Trust (PLGIT). PLGIT separately issues audited financial statements which 
are available to the public. The fair value of the City'S position in the external investment pool is 
equivalent to the value of the pool shares. The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania is the fonnal external 
regulatOtY oversight for the external investment pool. 

Component units 

The Harrisburg Authority 

The deposit and investment policy of The Harrisburg Authority adheres to state statutes, prudent 
business practices, and the applicable trust indentures, which are more restrictive than existing state 
statutes. Deposits are maintained in demand deposits and certificates of deposit. 

The deposits of The Harrisburg Authority at December 31, 2008 were as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Umestricted 
Restricted under trust indentures 

$ 4,999,230 

and guarantee agreements 3,940,646 

$ 8,939,876 

Custodiul Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 
government's deposits may not be returned to it. The Harrisburg Authority does not have a deposit 
policy for custodial credit risk. As of December 31, 2008, The Harrisburg Authority's book balance 
was $8,939,876 and the bank balance was $9,296,904. Ofthe bank balance, $508,076 was covered by 
federal depository insurance and $8,788,828 was collateralized under Act No. 72 of the 1971 Session 
of the Pennsylvania General Assembly, in which financial institutions were granted the authority to 
secure deposits of public bodies by pledging a pool of assets, as defined in the Act, to cover all public 
funds deposited in excess offederal depositolY insurance limits. 

Harrisburg Parking Authority and Coordinated Parking Fund 

The Parking Authority Law limits the Authority to the type of deposits it may make. Allowable 
deposits include deposits with banks or savings associations that, to the extent not insured, are secured 
by a pledge of direct obligations of the U.S. Government, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, or the City 
having an aggregate market value at least equal to the balance of such deposits. 

The Authority maintains a separate operating account for each component of the coordinated parking 
system and for the Coordinated Parking Fund. Amounts deposited into these accounts are combined 
into one account for investment by the Authority. Interest earned fi'om the investment account is 
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allocated to the operating accounts, including the Coordinated Parking Fund's operating account, based 
on the monthly investment balance. 

Custodial credit risk. At December 31, 2008, the non-pooled book balances of the Authority were 
$864,993 and the bank balances were $876,534. Of the non-pooled bank balances, $250,000 was 
covered by federal depositOly insurance at December 31, 2008. The remainder of the non-pooled bank 
balance at December 31, 2008 was collateralized under Act No. 72 of the 1971 Session of the 
Pennsylvania General Assembly, in which financial institutions were granted the authority to secure 
deposits of public bodies by pledging a pool of assets, as defined in the Act, to cover all public funds 
deposited in excess offederal depositOlY insurance limits. 

The Authority pools celtain of its deposits with the Coordinated Parking Fund. At December 31, 2008, 
the pooled account had a book and bank balance of$3,115,943. Of this balance $2,671,244 was held in 
celtificates of deposit purchased through a third patty, all of which were covered by federal depository 
insurance held in the name of the Authority. The remaining balance of $444,699 was invested in a 
money market fund which carried a AAA rating and had an average weighted maturity of less than one 
year. At December 31,2008, the Authority's position in the pool was $1,517,449 and the Coordinated 
Parking Fund's position in the pool was $1,598,494. 

Redevelopment Authority 

Custodial Credit Risk. As of December 31, 2008, the Redevelopment Authority'S cash and restricted 
cash balances were $1,669,539 and its bank balances were $1,671,926. Of those bank balances, 
$1,238,404 was collateralized with securities held by pledging financial institutions, or by their trust 
departments or agents, but not in the Redevelopment Authority's name. 

II/vestmel/ts 

At December 31,2008, the investments of the City of Harrisburg were as follows: 

Primary Government 
Unrestricted investments 

Money market funds 
External investment pool 

Total unrestricted investments 

Restricted investments 
Money market funds 

Total restricted investments 

Fiduciary funds 
Money market funds 
Fixed income funds 
U.S. Government obligations 
U.S. Government agency obligations 
Corporate bonds 
Equity funds 
Common stocks 

Total fiduciary funds 

Total primary government 
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$ 1,165,348 
4,764,616 

5,929,964 

13,878,027 

13,878,027 

4,613,296 
11,471,819 
2,090,964 
4,457,709 
1,022,268 

18,443,159 
8,240,470 

50,339,685 

$ 70,147,676 
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Component Units 
Restricted investments 

Money market funds 
U.S. Government obligations 
U.S. Government agency obligations 
Commercial paper 
Municipal bonds 

Total component units restricted investments 

$ 50,992,276 
215,633 

15,096,712 
8,382,609 
9,738,348 

$ 84,425,578 

For financial statement purposes, the City's balance held in PLGIT, an extemalinvestmentpool.is 
disclosed as a deposit. 

Primmy Government 

ClIstodial credit risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to an investment transaction 
will fail and the government will not recover the value of the investment or collateral securities that are 
in possession of an outside party. The City has no policy, other than as presented above, that fmiher 
limits its custodial credit investment risk. Of the City's total investments of $70,147,676, $19,807,991 
was held by the counterpatiy's trust department or agent not in the City's name. 

The City uses an external investment pool to ensure safety and maximize efficiency, liquidity, and 
yield for the City's funds. These funds are invested in the Pennsylvania Treasurer's INVEST Program 
for Local Governments and Nonprofits (INVEST) which separately issues audited financial statements 
which are available to the public. The fair value of the City's position in the external investment pool is 
equivalent to the value of the pool shares. The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania provides external 
regulatoty oversight of the pool. 

Concelltratioll of credit risk. The City places no limit on the amount the City may invest in anyone 
issuer. At December 31, 2008, there were no investments that represent more than 5 percent of the 
City's total investments. 

Credit risk. The City does not have a formal policy relating to credit risk of investments. The City's 
money market, external investment pool, and fixed income investments had the following level of 
exposure to credit risk as of December 31, 2008: 

Fair Value Rating 

Money market funds $ 18,491,323 AAA 
Money market funds $ 1,165,348 Unrated 
External investment pools $ 4,764,616 AAA 
Fixed income funds $ 11,471,819 AA+ 
U.S. Government agency obligations $ 4,457,709 AAA 
Corporate bonds $ 241,352 A+ 
Corporate bonds $ 177,701 A 
Corporate bonds $ 340,063 A-
Corporate bonds $ 263,152 BBB+ 

Interest rate risk. The City does not have a formal policy that limits investment maturities as a means 
of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The following is a 
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list of the City's money market, external investment pool, and fixed income investments and their 
related average maturities: 

Investment Type 

Money market funds 
External investment pool 
Fixed income funds 
U.S. Government obligations 
U.S. Government agency 

obligations 
Corporate bonds 

Total 

Workers' COl1lpellSatioll 

Fair Value 

$ 19,656,671 
4,764,616 

ll,471,819 
2,090,964 

4,457,709 
1,022,268 

$ 43,464,047 

Less than I 
year 

$ 19,656,671 
4,764,616 

303,204 

$ 24,724,491 

Investment Maturity (in Years) 

1-5 6-10 More than 
years years 10 years 

$ $ $ 

ll,471,819 
1,493,464 342,950 254,550 

920,577 1,466,425 1,767,503 
671,486 350,782 

$ 14,557,346 $ 2,160,157 $ 2,022,053 

In accordance with the provisions of the Pennsylvania Workers' Compensation Act, the City has 
secured an exemption from the necessity of insuring its workers' compensation liability and has elected 
to maintain a separate fund to provide a reserve for claimants entitled to benefits. Since inception, a 
total of $600,000 has been deposited in a bank trust account through December 31, 2008. Interest of 
$1,515,348 has been earned on the deposits and claims of $700,000 have been paid from the trust 
account from inception tlu'ough December 31, 2008. During 2006, the City withdrew $1,300,000 to 
fund operating deficits of the General Fund. At December 31, 2006, the City had deposited $1,050,000 
back into the fund, giving the City total assets held as reserves of $1,165,348 at December 31, 2008, of 
which $151,650 is included in the General Fund, $734,528 is included in the Sewer Fund and $279,170 
is included in the Sanitation Fund as investments at December 31, 2008. 

COlllponent Units 

The HarrisblirgAlithoritv 

The restricted investments of the Authority at December 31, 2008 were as follows: 

Money market funds 
U.S. Government agency obligations 
U.S. Govemment obligations 
Corporate bonds 
Municipal bonds 

Total 

$ 43,535,048 
15,096,712 

215,633 
3,944,799 
9,738,348 

$ 72,530,540 

Certain proceeds of revenue bonds, as well as celiain resources set aside for their repayment, are 
classified as restricted assets on the statement of net assets, because their use is limited by applicable 
trust indentures or other agreements. 

Custodial Credit Risk. The Harrisburg Authority does not have a formal investment policy for 
custodial credit risk. All of The Harrisburg Authority's investments are held by the counterpatiy's trust 
depaltment or agent not in The Han'isburg Authority's name. 
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Concentratioll of Credit Risk. The Harrisburg Authority places no limit on the amount The Harrisburg 
Authority may invest in anyone issuer. More than five percent of The Han'isburg Authority's 
investments are held as follows: 

Fair Value % ofTotal 

Federal National MOltgage Association $ 8.286,911 11.43% 
Resolution Funding Corporation - STRIPS $ 6,215,801 8.57% 
General Obligation Pension Bonds - Illinois State $ 5,534,172 7.63% 
American General Finance $ 3,944,799 5.44% 

Credit Risk. The Harrisburg Authority does not have a formal policy that would limit its investment 
choices with regard to credit risk. The Harrisburg Authority's money market funds and fixed income 
investments had the following level of exposure to credit risk as of December 31, 2008: 

Fair Value Rating 

Money market funds $ 43,535,048 AAA 
U.S. Government agency obligations - STRIPS $ 6,215,801 AAA 
U.S. Govermnent agency obligations $ 8,880,911 AAA 
Corporate bonds $ 3,944,799 Unavailable 
Munic ipal bonds $ 6,653,979 AA 
Municipal bonds $ 812,080 A 
Municipal bonds $ 2,272,289 Unavailable 

Illterest Rate Risk. The Harrisburg Authority does not have a formal policy that limits investment 
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair valne losses arising from increasing interest 
rates. The following is a list of The Harrisburg Authority's money market and fixed income 
investments and their related average maturities: 

Fair 
Value 

Money market funds $ 43,535,048 $ 
U.S. government 

agency obligations 15,096,712 

U.S. govcnmlcnt 
obligations 215,633 

Corporate bonds 3,944,799 
Municipal bonds 9,738,348 

Total $ 72,530,540 $ 

Harrisburg Parking Authori!J' 

Less than I 
year 

43,535,048 $ 

8,637,419 

215,633 
3,944,799 

56,332,899 $ 

Investment Maturity (in Years) 

1-5 
years 

6-10 
years 

$ 

1,931,887 

$ 1,931,887 

$ 

Greater than 
10 years 

6,459,293 

7,806,461 

$ 14,265,754 

The bond indentures related to the Authority's parking revenue bonds and the purchase agreement 
executed between the Authority and Allegheny Electric Cooperative, Inc. (AEC) in 1987 (Purchase 
Agreement) required the establishment of various funds and accounts. The unexpended amounts in 
these funds and accounts as of December 31, 2008, and the related interest receivable are restricted for 
designated purposes under the bond indentures and the Purchase Agreement. 

52 



CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31 , 2008 

Allowable investments as outlined in the Authority's intemal investment policy include certificates of 
deposit, repurchase agreements with financial institutions having assets in excess of $500,000,000, 
direct obligations of the U.S. Government, or as permitted in the individual trust indentures. 

Custodial Credit Risk. The Authority does not have a fonnal investment policy for custodial credit 
risk. The securities are held by the counterparty, not in the Authority's name. 

Concentration of credit risk. The Authority places no limit on the amount the Authority may invest in 
anyone issuer. More than 5% of the Authority's investments were held with the following issuers: 

Restricted: 
Commercial paper: 

General Electric Capital Corporation 

Yorktown Capital, LLC 

Fair Value 

$ 2,632,797 

$ 1,805,013 

Percent of 

Investments 

22.13% 

15.17% 

Credit risk. The Authority does not have a formal policy that would limit its investment choices with 
regard to credit risk. The Authority's money market funds and fixed income investments had the 
following level of exposure to credit risk as of December 31, 2008: 

Restricted: 

MoneYlnarketfunds 
Commercial paper 

$ 

$ 

Fair Value 

7,457,228 

4,437,810 

Rating 

AAA 

Al 

Interest rate risk. The Authority does not have a formal policy that limits investment maturities as a 
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. At December 
31, 2008, the Authority's money market and fixed income investments have an average maturity of less 
than one year. 

3. PROPERTY TAXES 

Based upon assessed valuations provided by the County of Dauphin (the County), the City bills and 
collects its own propeliy taxes. Delinquent accounts are turned over to the County which collects the 
taxes on behalf of the City. The schedule for propeliy taxes levied for 2008 is as follows: 

JanuaIy I, 2008 
Janumy 31, 2008 
JanuaIY 31 - March 31,2008 
April I - May 31, 2008 
June I - December 31, 2008 
January I, 2009 
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The City is permitted by the Third Class City Code to levy real estate taxes up to 25 mills on evelY 
dollar of assessed valuation for general City purposes. However, under an order of COlllt dated 
December 20, 1982, the City was authorized to exceed the statutory general millage rate, up to a 
maximum of30 mills. 

The real property tax imposed by the City in 2008 was 4.78 mills on improvements and 28.67 mills on 
land. Both land and improvements are assessed at 100% of market value, with an effective combined 
equivalent single millage rate of 10.0898 mills. 

Property taxes are recorded as of the date levied. Amounts not collected within sixty days after the end 
of the year are deferred in the governmental funds. 

In addition, City taxes may be paid in four installments due on or before Janumy 31, March 31, May 31 
and July 31 of the tax year with no discount period allowed. Any delinquent installment is subject to a 
penalty of 10%. 

4. INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS 

The composition of interfund balances at December 31, 2008 is as follows: 

Due from Due to 
Primary Government Other Funds Other Funds 

General Fund $ 1,570,801 $ 1,150,564 
Grant Programs Fund 685,564 429,599 
Capital Projects Fund 185,998 606,475 
Nonmajor governmental funds 732,947 

Total governmental funds 2,442,363 2,919,585 

Sewer Fund 515,000 16,160 
Sanitation Fund 21,618 

Total proprietary funds 515,000 37,778 

Total primary government $ 2,957,363 $ 2,957,363 

These amounts represent short-term receivables and payables for unsettled transactions and shOlt-term 
borrowings between funds for the purposes of cash flow. 
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Due from 
Primary 

Government! 
Component 

Component Units Units 

PrimalY Government 
General Fund $ 21,854 
Capital Projects Fund 800,183 
Sewer Fund 243,159 
Sanitation Fund 

Component Units 

Total $ 1,065,196 

Advances 
Due to Advances to from 

Component Primary Component 
Units! Government! Units! 

Primmy Component Primmy 
Government Units Government 

$ $ $ 387,667 

1,963,009 
132,122 

1,065,196 2,482,798 

$ 1,065,196 $ 2,482,798 $ 2,482,798 

The composition of intelfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2008 is as follows: 

Transfers Transfers 
PrimalY Government In Out 

General Fund $ 2,017,497 $ 15,018,460 
Grant Programs Fund 345,725 
Debt Service Fund 8,394,369 84,887 
Capital Projects Fund 4,667,807 606,160 
Nonmajor governmental funds 65,590 

Total governmental funds 15,425,398 15,775,097 

Sanitation Fund 1,411,337 
Harrisburg Senators Fund 1,761,036 

Total proprietmy funds 1,761,036 1,411,337 

Total primary government $ 17,186,434 $ 17,186,434 

Interfund transfers were made primarily to fund debt service and to move excess cash, per budgeted 
transfers, to provide for capital project fund expenditures. 

5. INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE, RECEIVABLES, AND PAY ABLES 

The General Fund intergovernmental revenue for the year ended December 31,2008 is as follows: 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Pension System Aid 
Harrisburg Parking Authority, excess parking revenue 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Capital fire protection 
Utilities payments in lieu oftaxes from other governments 
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$ 2,590,486 
4,750,000 
1,253,000 

36,288 

$ 8,629,774 
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The City also participates in a number of state and federal grant programs. Revenues from these 
programs are as follows: 

Grant Programs Fund 
Community Development Block Grant 
Lead Based Paint Grant 
HOME Program 
Redevelopment Assistance Grant 
Federal Emergency Management Agency grants 
Capital improvement grants 
Other state/federal grants 

$ 3,030,791 
326,500 
690,560 
553,123 

1,834,501 
507,242 
293,358 

$ 7,236,075 

The Grant Programs Fund had deferred revenue of $3,973,025 at December 31, 2008, representing 
payments received in advance for various grant programs. The remaining deferred revenues of 
$3,811,20 I represent deferred loans receivable. 

6. RESTRICTED ASSETS 

Revelllle BOlld alld Gelleral Obligatioll Note Proceeds 

Proceeds fi'om debt and other funds, which are held in bank trust accounts and administered by 
trustees, are classified as restricted assets in the enterprise funds since their use is limited by applicable 
bond indentures. 

7. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 

City Council passed a resolution requiring the administration to develop a plan by FebrualY 2007, to 
sell certain historical artifacts owned by the City. At a minimum, the plan was to include a timeframe 
for the sale of the artifacts, all of which were to be liquidated no later than December 15, 2008; the 
process used by the administration to determine the value and accomplish the sale of the artifacts; 
provide for qumterly reporting by the City Treasurer of the mtifacts sold, original purchase price, and 
the amounts received from the sale of the artifacts; ensure that all funds received from the sale of the 
altifacts were deposited with a local financial institution and used to payoff the interest and principal 
of the City's Revenue Bonds, Series of 2006; and provide a detailed listing of all costs and expenses 
associated with the sale of the artifacts. 

The cost of the artifacts to be sold amounted to $7,843,648. At December 31, 2008, the City has sold 
artifacts with an approximate cost of $2.1 million. The proceeds of the sale, through December 31, 
2008, amounted to approximately $1.7 million. 

Additionally, mtifacts bought by the City from a certain vendor have been deemed to be inauthentic. 
The City is currently pursuing damages against this vendor. Such artifacts had a cost value of 
approximately $2.1 million. An appraisal of a pOltion of the artifacts was extrapolated to the entire 
population purchased from this vendor. This extrapolation resulted in decreasing the estimated fail' 
value of these artifacts to $73,000. 
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Finally, the City has determined, through consultation with industry experts, that the remammg 
artifacts have a value of approximately 40% of the remaining cost. This valuation resulted in a 
decrease in the estimated fail' value of the remaining artifacts in the amount of approximately $2 
million. 

S. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2008 is as follows: 

Prill/my Government 

Beginning Retirements 
of Year Additions and Dispositions End of Year 

Governmental activities 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land $ 6,518,271 $ 139,825 $ $ 6,658,096 
Artifacts 18,649,000 18,649,000 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 25,167,271 139,825 25,307,096 

Capital assets, being depreciated 
Buildings 64,012,532 64,012,532 
Improvements 16,299,157 222,056 16,521,213 
Equipment and furniture 26,676,717 4,544,214 31,220,931 
Infrastructure 90,667,310 2,658,393 93,325,703 

Total capital assets, being depreciated 197,655,716 7,424,663 205,080,379 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings (25,147,664) (1,587,372) (26,735,036) 
Improvements (5,390,932) (369,830) (5,760,762) 
Equipment and furniture (24,549,743) (1,119,014) (25,668,757) 
Infrastructure (55,508,894) (2,799,542) (58,308,436) 

Total accumulated depreciation ( 110,597,233) (5,875,758) (116,472,991) 

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 87,058,483 1,548,905 88,607,388 

Govcmmental activities, capital assets, net $ 112,225,754 $ 1,688,730 $ $ 113,914,484 
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Beginning 
of Year 

Blisiness~type activities 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land $ 361,421 
Construction in progress 4,749,427 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 5,110,848 

Capital assets, being depreciated 
Buildings 35,262,349 
Improvements 2,685,962 
Equipment and furniture 40,071,066 
Infrastructure 13,790,448 

Total capital assets, being depreciated 91,809,825 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings (17,575,603) 
Improvements (723,277) 
Equipment and furniture (28,157,042) 
Infrastructure (6,062,436) 

Total accumulated depreciation (52,518,358) 

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 39,291,467 

Business-type activities, capital assets, net $ 44,402,315 

Retirements 
Additions and Dispositions 

$ $ 
4,347,843 (390,183) 

4,347,843 (390,183) 

117,745 

117,745 

(676,090) 
(28,286) 

(1,131,833) 
(134,337) 

(1,970,546) 

(1,852,801) 

$ 2,495,042 $ (390,183) 

Depreciation and am011ization expense was charged to functions/programs as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General government $ 
Building and housing development 
Public safety 
Public works 
Parks and recreation 

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 

Business-type activities: 
Sewer $ 
Sanitation 
Harrisburg Senators 

Total depreciation expenses - business-type activities $ 
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End o[Year 

$ 361,421 
8,707,087 

9,068,508 

35,262,349 
2,685,962 

40,188,811 
13,790,448 

91,927,570 

(18,251,693) 
(751,563) 

(29,288,875) 
(6,196,773) 

(54,488,904) 

37,438,666 

$ 46,507,174 

1,408,497 
109,187 

1,030,748 
2,684,162 

643,164 

5,875,758 

1,783,175 
149,984 
37,387 

1,970,546 
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Component Units 

The Han"isburg Authority: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Artifacts $ 
Construction in progress 

Total capital assets, not 
being depreciated 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Land improvements 
Buildings and improvements 
Fumiture and fixtures 
Machinery and equipment 

Total capital assets being depI~ciated 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 

The Harrisburg Authority, 
capital assets, net $ 

HalTisburg Parldng Authority: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land $ 

Construction in progress 

Total capital assets, not 
being depreciated 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Land improvements 
Buildings and improvements 
Fumiture and fixtures 
Machinery and equipment 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

less accumulated depreciation 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 

Harrisburg Parking Authority, 
capital assets, net $ 

Beginning 
of Year 

351,865 
3,264,265 

3,616,130 

1,223,614 
116,757,412 

328,075 
99,680,847 

217,989,948 

(44,513,471) 

(44,513,471) 

173,476,477 

177,092,607 

Begimling 
of Year 

6,939,212 
245,038 

7,184,250 

127,922 
85,497,406 

322,291 
2,218,452 

88,166,071 

(27,366,868) 

(27,366,868) 

60,799,203 

67,983,453 
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Additions! Retirements! 
Transfers In Transfers Out End of Year 

$ $ $ 351,865 
11,592,990 (3,264,264) 11,592,991 

11,592,990 (3,264,264) 11,944,856 

1,223,614 
3,264,264 120,021,676 

44,477 372,552 
1,020,965 (26,786) 100,675,026 

4,329,706 (26,786) 222,292,868 

(6,509,237) 15,306 (51,007,402 ) 

(6,509,237) 15,306 (51,007,402) 

(2,179,531) (11,480) 171,285,466 

$ 9,413,459 $ (3,275,744) $ 183,230,322 

Additious! Retirements! 
Transfers In Transfers Out Eud of Year 

$ $ $ 6,939,212 
956,224 (150,969) 1,050,293 

956,224 (150,969) 7,989,505 

127,922 
307,919 (1,328,850) 84,476,475 

4,240 326,531 
3,528 2,221,980 

315,687 (1,328,850) 87,152,908 

(3,192,501) 8,200 (30,551,169) 

(3,192,501) 8,200 (30,551,169) 

(2,876,814) (1,320,650) 56,601,739 

$ (1,920,590) $ (1,471,619) $ 64,591,244 
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Beginning Additions! Retirements! 
of Year Transfers In Transfers Out End o[Year 

Harrisburg Redevelopment Authority: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Construction in progress $ 3,853,765 $ 294,184 $ (4,147,949) $ 

Total capital assets, not 
being depreciated 3,853,765 294,184 (4,147,949) 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Buildings and improvements 4,147,949 4,147,949 

Total capital assets being depreciated 4,147,949 4,147,949 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and improvements (103,699) (103,699) 

Total accumulated depreciation (103,699) (103,699) 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 4,044,250 4,044,250 

Harrisburg Redevelopment Authority, 
capital assets, net $ 3,853,765 $ 4,338,434 $ (4,147,949) $ 4,044,250 

9. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2008 is as follows: 

Primary Govemmeni 

Beginning Accretion! Current 
of Year Additions Amortization Retirements End of Year Portion 

Govcrnmental activities: 
Workers' compensation 

claims $ 2,922,837 $ 1,766,101 $ $ (1,089,534) $ 3,599,404 $ 875,375 

Bonds payable (Notc 10) 52,081,3t8 2,451,329 (7,201,002) 47,331,645 6,133,365 

Notes pa}.ble (Note 12) 47,109,546 2,400,000 2,165,810 (1,662,116) 50,013,240 2,266,815 

Capital lease 

obligations (Note 14) 11,244,437 (2,200,587) 9,043,850 2,259,913 

Vested compensated 

absences 8,383,383 4,449,381 (3,756,888) 9,075,876 2,284,108 

Govenunental activities 
Long-tenn liabilities $ 121,741,521 $ 8,6t5,482 $ 4,617,139 $ (15,910,127) $ 119,064,Ot5 $ 13,819,576 
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Beginning 
of Year Additions 

Business-type activities: 

Workers' compensation 

claims $ 653,086 $ 356,459 

Bonds payable (Note 10) 11,739,267 

Capital lease 

obligations (Note 14) 861,055 

Vested compensated 

absences 416,949 379,989 

Lease rental payable 

(Note 14) 6,219,694 

Business-type activities 
Long-ternl liabilities $ 19,890,051 $ 736,448 

Workers' compensation claims and compensated 
general fund and the enterprise funds. 

Componellf Units 

Beginning 
of Year Additions 

The Harrisburg Authority: 

loans payable (Note 13) $ $ 8,233,000 

Bonds payable (Note 10) 325,170,000 69,420,000 

Notes payable (Note 12) 106,50 I ,072 

Total bonds and notes 

payable 431,671,072 77,653,000 

Less: 

Deferred loss on 

refunding (24,969,795) (14,341,493) 

Unamortized premium 1,733,787 (382,393) 

The Harrisburg Authority 
long-teml liabilities $ 408,435,064 $ 62,929,114 
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Accretion! Current 
Amortization Retirements End of Year Portion 

$ $ (191,799) $ 817,746 $ 198,876 

11,969 (1,967,688) 9,783,548 1,452,572 

(194,155) 666,900 162,583 

(381,700) 415,238 16,414 

(1,389,278) 4,830,416 1,728,016 

$ 11,969 $ (4,124,620) $ 16,513,848 $ 3,558,461 

absences typically have been liquidated by the 

Accretion! Current 
Amortization Retirements End of Year Portion 

$ $ $ 8,233,000 $ 1,275,000 

(61,870,000) 332,720,000 6,840,000 

(866,773) 105,634,299 914,977 

(62,736,773) 446,587,299 9,029,977 

2,732,973 3,287,600 (33,290,715) 

1,889,125 3,240,519 

$ 4,622,098 $ (59,449,173) $ 416,537,103 $ 9,029,977 
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Begilllling Accretion! Current 

ofYcar Additions Amortization Retirements End of Year Portion 

Harrisburg Parking Authority: 

Bonds payable (Note 10) $ 112,830,000 $ $ $ (2,175,000) $ 110,655,000 $ 2,865,000 

Less: 

Deferred loss Oil 

refunding (4,693,267) 428,081 (4,265,186) 

Unamortized premium 765,657 (93,876) 671,781 

Harrisburg Parking Authority 
Long-term liabilities $ 108,902,390 $ $ 334,205 $ (2,175,000) $ 107,061,595 $ 2,865,000 

Redevelopment Authority: 

Bonds payable (Note 10) $ 93,590,000 $ $ $ $ 93,590,000 $ 

Notes payable (Note 12) 500,000 500,000 500,000 
Due to other governments 170,832 170,832 30,000 

Totallong-temlliabilities 94,260,832 94,260,832 530,000 

Less: 

Unamortized discount (54,794,855) 2,243,561 (52,551,294) 

Redevelopment Authority 
Long-term liabilities $ 39,465,977 $ $ 2,243,561 $ $ 41,709,538 $ 530,000 

10. BONDS PAYABLE 

Bonds payable at December 31, 2008 are as follows: 

Primary Government 
Total 

Governmental Business-type Primary 
Activities Activities Govcmment 

Bonds payable $ 47,331,645 $ 9,842,038 $ 57,173,683 
Unamortized discount (58,490) (58,490) 

Total bonds payable $ 47,331,645 $ 9,783,548 $ 57,115,193 

Component Units 
111< Hanoisburg Total 

Harrisburg Parking Redevelopment Component 
Authority Authority Authority Units 

Bonds payable $ 332,720,000 $ 110,655,000 $ 93,590,000 $ 536,965,000 

Deferred loss on refunding (33,290,715) (4,265,186) (37,555,901) 
Unamortized premium (discount) 4,866,520 671,781 (52,551,294) (47,012,993) 

Total bonds payable $ 304,295,805 $ 107,061,595 $ 41,038,706 $ 452,396,106 
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Bonds payable are accounted for in the following activities: 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities 

General Obligation Bonds 
Series A and B of 1995 $ 7,253,644 $ 92,038 
Series A-I ofl997 1,180,000 
Series D of 1997 34,796,691 

Total general obligation bonds 42,050,335 1,272,038 

Revenue Bonds 
Senators Revenue Bonds 

Series A-2 of2005 8,570,000 
Less: Unamortized discount (58,490) 
Lease Revenue Bonds 

Series of2006 5,281,310 

Total revenue bonds 5,281,310 8,511,510 

Total bonds payable $ 47,331,645 $ 9,783,548 
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Total 
Primary 

Government 

$ 7,345,682 
1,180,000 

34,796,691 

43,322,373 

8,570,000 
(58,490) 

5,281,310 

13,792,820 

$ 57,115,193 
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Bonds payable are accounted for in the following component unit: 

111e Harrisburg 
Harrisburg Parking 
Authority Authority 

Revenue Bonds: 
Water Revenue Bonds, Series of2008 $ 69,420,000 $ 

Water Revenue Bonds, Series A 0[2004 37,045,000 
Water Revenue Bonds, Series A, B, C 

and D of2002 48,825,000 
Water Revenue Bouds, Series A of2001 4,785,000 
Sewer Revenue Refunding, Series of 1992 6,925,000 
Sewer Revenue Refunding, Second and 

Third Series of 1989 6,925,000 
Resource Recovery Facility Bonds, Series 

A, D, E and F of2003 147,555,000 
Resource Recovery Facility Bonds, Series 

Aofl998 11,240,000 
Office and Parking Revenue Bonds: 

Series K of2000 11,800,000 
SeriesJ of2001 28,290,000 
Series N of2003 5,265,000 
Series 0 of2003 11,820,000 
Series P of2005 16,625,000 
Series R of2007 16,965,000 
Series T of2007 19,890,000 

Guaranteed Revenue Bonds, Series 
AaudBofl998 

Less: Deferred loss on refunding and 
unamortized premium (discount) (28,424,195) (3,593,405) 

Total bonds payable $ 304,295,805 $ 107,061,595 

Total Total 
Redevelopment Component 

Authority Units 

$ $ 69,420,000 
37,045,000 

48,825,000 
4,785,000 
6,925,000 

6,925,000 

147,555,000 

11,240,000 

11,800,000 
28,290,000 
5,265,000 

11,820,000 
16,625,000 
16,965,000 
19,890,000 

93,590,000 93,590,000 

(52,551,294) (84,568,894) 

$ 41,038,706 $ 452,396,106 

Under the terms of its respective debt agreements, the City is required to maintain celtain balances in 
restricted trust accounts, to make timely payments to the trustee or to a sinking fund for principal and 
interest, and to insure and maintain assets acquired with the proceeds ofthe debt. 

Management believes that the City has complied in all material respects with the terms of its respective 
debt agreements, However, under the continuing disclosure undeltaking, the City has covenanted to 
file its secondmy market disclosures within 270 days of the end of their fiscal year. Additionally, the 
various trust indentures require the City to submit its audited financial statements to the trustee within 
180 days, The financial statements were not completed by either date, In addition, there is ongoing 
litigation regarding the City's obligation under certain guarantees of The Harrisburg Authority's debt, 
as discussed in Note 25, 
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The composition of bonds outstanding included in the primalY government at December 31, 2008 is as 
follows: 

General Obligation Bonds 

5.6%-6.84%, General Obligation Bonds, Series A and B of 1995, dated December 15, 
1995, principal payable in annual installments of$3,539,892 to $3,805,790 through April 
1,2010, to be serviced through general revenues of the city and through sewer operating 
revenues and State Liquid Fuels Funds, issued to fund the City's unfunded actuarial 
accrued pension liability. $ 7,345,682 

7.75%, Federally Taxable General Obligation Bonds, Series A-I of 1997, dated January 5, 
1998, principal payable in a final annual installment of $1,180,000 on September I, 2009. 
These bonds are included in the City's enterprise fund and are to be serviced through fund 
operations, issued to retire the General Obligation Note, Series A of 1996, which was 
originally issued to acquire the Harrisburg, Senators, an AA minor league baseball team, 
and construct the scoreboard and various stadium improvements. 

5.15%-5.52%, General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series D of 1997, dated December 
30,1997, principal payable in semi-annual installments of$781,538 to $3,904,684 
through September 15, 2022, to be serviced through general revenues of the City, issued to 
advance refund the City's General Obligation Bonds, Series B-1 of 1997, which was 
originally issued to fimd certain capital projects of the City. 

Revenue Bonds 
4.25% -5.29%, Senators Revenue Bonds, Series A-2 of2005, dated January 2005 Series A 
2 matures at various amounts fi'om 2006 through 2030, issued to renovate the baseball 
stadium. 

5.00%-6.95%, Revenue Bonds, Series of2006, dated December 2006, principal payable 
in annual installments of$660,164 through May 2016, to be serviced through general 
revenues of the City, issued to finance the lease payments of the McCormick Public 
Service Center. 

Total primary government bonds payable 

Less: unamortized discount 

Net primary govermnent bonds payable 
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1,180,000 

34,796,691 

8,570,000 

5,281,310 

57,173,683 

(58,490) 

$ 57,115,193 
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The composition of bonds outstanding included in the component units at December 31, 2008 is as 
follows: 

The Harrisburg Authority 
Revenue Bonds 

4.88%-5.25%, Water Revenue Bonds, Series of2008 dated August 2008. Series of 
2008 matures at various amounts from 2025 through 2031. $ 69,420,000 

1.5%-5.0%, Water Revenue Bonds, Series A of2004 dated August 2004. Series A 
matures at various amounts from 2005 through 2023. 37,045,000 

4.50%-6.00%, Water Revenue Bonds, Series A,B,C, and D of2002 dated July 3, 2002. 
Series A matures at various amounts from 2023 through 2029. Series B matures at 
various amounts from 2011 through 2017. Series C matures in 2029. Series D matures 
at various amounts from 2010 tlll'ough 2011. 48,825,000 

3.40%-5.75%, Water Revenue Bonds, Series A of2001, dated May 2001. The bonds 
mature at various amounts from 2002 through 2015. 4,785,000 

6.0%-6.8%, Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series of 1992 dated March 3,1992, 
principal payable in various amounts through 2012 and are collateralized by lease 
rentals paid by the City to the Authority. 6,925,000 

6.8%-7.15%, Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Second and Third Series of 1989. The 
first Series matured on January 1, 2002 and the Second and Third Series mature at 
various amounts through 2012. 6,925,000 

4.45%-6.25%, Resource Recovery Revenue Bonds, Series A,D,E and F of2003. Series 
A mature at various amounts from 2018 through 2034. Series D mature at various 
amounts from 2017 to 2033. Series E and F mature at various amounts from 2009 to 
2017. 147,555,000 

4.45%-5.00%, Resource Recovery Revenue Bonds, Series A of 1998. Series A mature 
at various amounts from 2006 through 2021. 11,240,000 

Total The Harrisburg Authority 332,720,000 

Less: deferred loss on refunding and unamortized premium (28,424,195) 

Net The Harrisburg Authority $ 304,295,805 
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Harrisburg Parking Authority 
Revenue Bonds 

Variable rate, Series K Bonds, dated June 1,2000, consisting oftenn bonds maturing 
December 2023 and December 2024. The interest rate varies approxinlately at SIFMA 
and was 2.03% at December 31,2008. $ 11,800,000 

2.8%-5.00%, Series J Bonds, dated September 1,2001, consisting of serial bonds 
maturing from September 1, 2003 to September 1,2022 in annual instalhnents of various 
amounts. 

2.5%-4.3%, Series N Bonds, dated October 28, 2003, consisting of serial bonds 
maturing from November 15,2004 to November 15, 2016 in annual installments of 
various amounts. 

1.5%-5.00%, Series 0 Bonds, dated November 18, 2003, consisting of serial bonds 
maturing from August I, 2004 to August 1,2016 in annual installments of various 

28,290,000 

5,265,000 

amounts. 11,820,000 

3.30%-5.70%, Series P Bonds, dated July 15,2005, consisting of serial bonds maturing 
from September 1,2007 to September 1,2027 in annual installments of various amounts. 16,625,000 

3.60%-5.00%, Series R Bonds, dated JanuaIY 11, 2007, consisting of serial bonds 
maturing from May 15,2010 to May 15,2036 in annual instalhnents of various amounts. 16,965,000 

3.50%-4.50%, Series T Bonds, dated December 15, 2007, consisting of serial bonds 
maturing from May 15, 2009 to May 15,2030 in annual installments of various amounts. 19,890,000 

Total Harrisburg Parking Authority 110,655,000 

Less: deferred loss on reftmding and unamortized premium (3,593,405) 

Net Harrisburg Parking Authority $ 107,061,595 

Redevelopment Authority 
Revenue Bonds 

Series A and B Bonds, dated December 19, 1998, consisting of term bonds maturing 
from 2016 to 2033 in annual installments of various amounts. 

Less: unamortized discount 

Net Redevelopment Authority 

Total component unit bonds payable 
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$ 93,590,000 

(52,551,294) 

$ 41,038,706 

$ 452,396,106 
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The Harrisburg Authority 

The Harrisburg Authority has entered into seven derivative product agreements, which consist of debt 
service forward delivery agreements with a financial intermediary that result in a forward swap of 
interest earned on amounts placed in debt service sinking fund and swap agreements. In exchange for 
cash payments to The Harrisburg Authority at the inception of the agreements totaling approximately 
$5,188,198, at December 31,2008, the financial intermediaty has the right, under the debt service 
forward delivelY agreement, to invest the funds on hand in the sinking fund and retain the investment 
earnings. The amounts received were recorded as deferred revenue in The Harrisburg Authority's 
financial statements because the substance of these agreements effectively is to pay The Harrisburg 
Authority cUlTently for interest that normally would be earned in later years. The deferred revenue 
resulting from these transactions of $3,595,328 at December 31, 2008, is being amOltized over the 
respective life of each agreement under a method that approximates the interest method. 

On August 22, 2008, The Harrisburg Authority issued Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series of 
2008 (2008 Bonds) in the amount of $69,420,000. The proceeds of the 2008 Bonds, together with 
available monies, will be applied to: (i) currently refund the outstanding balance of The Harrisburg 
Authority'S Variable Rate Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series A of 2003, (ii) fund a swap 
termination payment payable to Societe Generale pursuant to an outstanding interest rate swap 
agreement on the 2003 Water Revenue Bonds, Series A (previously referred to as the LIBOR Swap 
and the SIFMA Swap), (iii) fund a deposit to the 2008 Debt Service Reserve Fund Account, and (iv) 
pay the costs and expenses associated with the issuance of the 2008 bonds. The Harrisburg Authority'S 
current refunding increased its total debt service payments through the year 2031 by $30.7 million and 
created an economic loss (difference between the present values of the old and new debt service 
payments) of $10.3 million. This comparison of the 2008 Bonds (use to refund the 2003A Bonds and 
terminate the related fixed payor swaps) to the variable rate 2003A Bonds (for purposes of this 
calculation assuming a 3.5% variable bond rate) plus the estimated swap cash flows assumed a 3.5 
swap receipt. 

Harrisburg Parking Authority 

In Febl'll3ly 2000, the Authority entered into (i) a debt service reserve fund forward purchase 
agreement with Lehman for investment of monies in the Series F Debt Service Reserve Account 
securing the Series F Bonds, (ii) a debt service reserve forward delivelY agreement with Bank of 
America, N.A. (BofA) for the investment of moneys in the Series G and H Debt Service Reserve Fund 
securing the Authority'S Series G Bonds and Series H Bonds, and (iii) a debt service reserve forward 
delivelY agreement with BofA for the Series I Debt Service Reserve Fund securing the Series I Bonds. 
The Authority received fees of $68,584, $280,000, and $210,000 respectively, when it entered into the 
agreements. In September 2001, the Authority refunded the Series I Bonds with its Series J Bonds, and 
the Series I debt reserve fund agreement was amended to apply to the Series J Debt Service Reserve 
Account securing the Authority's Series J Bonds. Similarly, the Series G and H debt reserve fund 
agreement was amended to apply to the Series 0 Bonds issued to refund 01' otherwise retire the Series 
G and H Bonds. In connection with that November 2003 amendment, BofA paid the Authority an 
additional fee of $252,000. The Series F debt reserve fund agreement was amended in FeblualY 2004 
to apply to the debt service reserve fund securing the Series N Bonds issued to refund the Series F 
Bonds. The defen'ed revenue is being amortized over the respective life of the agreement under a 
method that approximates the interest method. AmOltization for the year ended December 3 I, 2008, 
totaled $51,121. 
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The debt service requirements for Series F Bonds are payable solely from and are secured by a pledge 
of (I) all the right, title, and interest of the Authority in and to the Coordinated Parking Fund, (2) all 
amounts on deposit and investment securities in any fund or account establ ished under the related bond 
indenture, (3) a guaranty by the City, and (4) a municipal bond insurance policy. Amounts on deposit 
in the Coordinated Parking Fund are to be transferred to the Debt Service Fund created under the bond 
indenture and used to make required debt service payments on the Series F Bonds. These Bonds have 
been defeased through the issuance of "Harrisburg Parking Authority Guaranteed Parking Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series N of2003." 

Debt service on the Series G and Series H Bonds was payable from ceJiain Capital Replacement 
Reserve Funds held by the Authority established under the Cooperation Agreement. 

The Series G and Series H Bonds were also secured by a pledge of (1) all amounts on deposit and 
investment securities in any fund established under the related bond indenture, (2) the City's guaranty, 
and (3) a municipal bond insurance policy. The annual payment of debt service on the Series G and 
Series H Bonds is subordinated to provision of funds to cover 130% of the debt service on the 
Authority Series F Bonds. The Series H Bonds have been defeased through the issuance of the 
Authority "Guaranteed Parking Revenue Bonds, Series 0 of2003." 

The City has guaranteed the payment of debt service on a majority of the Authority'S bonds and notes 
pursuant to celiain Guaranty Agreements. Concurrent with the execution of the Guaranty Agreements, 
the Authority also executed celiain Reimbursement Agreements with the City whereby the Authority 
agreed to reimburse the City for any payments made by the City under the aforementioned Guaranty 
Agreements. 

The Authority bond indentures contain certain financial and repOliing covenants. At December 31, 
2008, the Authority was in compliance with such covenants. 
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The annual requirements to amOliize all bonds outstanding as of December 31, 2008, using interest 
rates in effect at December 31, 2008 for variable rate issues, are as follows: 

General Oblisatton Revenue Total 
PrinciEal Interest PrinciEal Interest PrinciEai Interest 

Primary Government 
2009 $ 6,700,773 $ 290,677 $ 885,164 S 728,029 $ 7,585,937 $ 1,018,706 
2010 5,788,415 601,585 895,164 633,578 6,683,579 1,235,163 
2011 3,904,684 590,316 905,164 589,875 4,809,848 1,180,191 
2012 3,706,528 793,472 920,164 545,362 4,626,692 1,338,834 
20lJ 3,511,400 988,600 930,164 500,042 4,441,564 1,488,642 
2014-2018 14,884,166 7,585,834 3,530,490 1,859,072 18,414,656 9,444,906 
2019-2023 4,826,407 4,386,112 1,990,000 1,267,922 6,816,407 5,654,034 
2024-2028 2,565,000 678,242 2,565,000 678,242 
2029-2030 1,230,000 65,860 1,230,000 65,860 

43,322,373 15,236,596 lJ,851,310 6,867,982 57,173,683 22,104,578 

Less unamortized discount (58,490) (58,490) 
Primar)' Government, net $ 43,322,373 $ 15,236,596 $ lJ,792,820 S 6,867,982 S 57,115,193 $ 22,104,578 

I Iarrisburg Authority 
2009 $ $ $ 6,840,000 S 17,514,277 $ 6,840,000 $ 17,514,277 
2010 9,240,000 17,659,227 9,240,000 17,659,227 
2011 9,490,000 14,799,897 9,490,000 14,799,897 
2012 9,875,000 lJ,045,894 9,875,000 lJ,045,894 
20lJ 6,865,000 12,734,199 6,865,000 12,734,199 
2014-2018 49,980,000 60,193,001 49,980,000 60,193,001 
2019-2023 76,930,000 47,356,274 76,930,000 47,356,274 
2024-2028 77,730,000 29,569,578 77,730,000 29,569,578 
2029-2033 78,570,000 10,310,747 78,570,000 10,310,747 
2034 7,200,000 450,000 7,200,000 450,000 

332,720,000 223,633,094 332,720,000 223,633,094 
Less deferred loss on refunding 

and unamortized premium (28,424,195) (28,424,195) 
The Harrisburg Authority, net $ $ $ 304,295,805 S 223,633,094 $ 304J95,805 $ 223,633,094 

Harrisburg Parking Authority 
2009 $ $ $ 2,865,000 S 4,789,799 $ 2,865,000 S 4,789,799 
2010 3,710,000 4,683,324 3,710,000 4,683,324 
2011 3,525,000 4,546,472 3,525,000 4,546,472 
2012 3,665,000 4,410,379 3,665,000 4,410,379 
2013 3,805,000 4,272,617 3,805,000 4,272,617 
2014-2018 23,210,000 18,510,296 23,210,000 18,510,296 
2019-2023 31,790,000 12,529,610 31,790,000 12,529,610 
2024-2028 28,925,000 5,568,192 28,925,000 5,568,192 
2029-2033 7,075,000 1,363,837 7,075,000 1,363,837 
2034-2036 2,085,000 94,838 2,085,000 94,838 

110,655,000 60,769,364 110,655,000 60,769,364 
less deferred loss on refunding 

and unamortized premium (3,593,405) (3,593,405) 

Harrisburg Parking 
Allthority, net $ $ S 107,061,595 S 60,769,364 $ 107,061,595 $ 60,769,364 
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11. 

Redevelopment Authority 
2014-2018 $ $ $ 18,470,000 S $ 18,470,000 $ 
2019-2023 37,430,000 37,430,000 
2024-2028 21,270,000 21,270,000 
2029-2033 16,420,000 16,420,000 

93,590,000 93,590,000 

Less unamortized discount 152,551,294) 152,551,294) 

Redevelopment Authority, net $ $ S 41,038,706 S $ 41,038,706 S 

Total $ 43,322,373 $ 15,236,596 S 466,188,926 S 291,270,440 $ 509,511 299 $ 306,507,036 

DEFEASANCE OF DEBT 

The City and its component units defeased general obligation and other bonds in prior years by placing 
the proceeds of net bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt selvice payments on the 
old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liabilities for the defeased bonds are not 
included in the City's financial statements. At December 31,2008, the following bonds outstanding are 
considered defeased: 

City of Harrisburg 
General Obligation Bonds, Series A of 1995 

The Harrisburg Authority 
Water Revenue Bonds, Series A of 1999 
Resource Recovery Revenue Bonds, Series A of 1998 
Resource Recovery Revenue Bonds, Series B of 1998 
Resource Recovery Revenue Bonds, Series C of 1998 
Seventh Street Office & Parking Revenue Bonds, Series A of 1998 
Seventh Street Office & Parking Revenue Bonds, Series B of 1998 
Resource Recovery Revenue Notes, Series A 0[2000 
Resource Recovery Revenue Notes, Series B of2000 

Harrisburg Parking Authority 
Guaranteed Parking Revenue Bonds, Series 2001 Bonds 

$ 35,415,000 

4,510,000 
17,400,000 
7,415,000 
3,315,000 

12,605,000 
6,185,000 
4,195,000 
3,050,000 

16,540,000 

$ 110,630,000 

12. NOTES PAYABLE 

The City of Harrisburg entered into various promissory notes under Section 108 of the Housing and 
Community Development Act of 1974 (Public Law 93-383), as amended. The proceeds from the notes 
are provided to administer acquisition, relocation, and clearance of City properties. 

As collateral, the City of Harrisburg pledged all grants approved or for which the City may become 
eligible under Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, and 
program income derived from disposition by sale or lease of any real property to the extent acquired or 
rehabilitated with the guaranteed loan funds, including any interest eamed on such disposition 
proceeds. 

Interest payments are required to be made to the Federal Financing Bank on the daily unpaid principal 
balances. 
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The composition of promissOlY notes outstanding under Section 108 (included in governmental 
activities) at December 31,2008 is as follows: 

6.15%, Section 108 Note, dated May 13, 2000, interest payable semiannually and 
principal payable in annual installments of$195,000 to $335,000, through August 1,2019, 
to be serviced through general revenues of the City. $ 2,850,000 

5.34%, Section 108 Note, dated September 14,2006, interest payable semiannually and 
principal payable in annual installments of$210,000 to $225,000, through August I, 2026, 
to be serviced through general revenues of the City. 3,795,000 

6,645,000 

The composition of notes payable included in the primaty government at December 31, 2008 is as 
follows: 

5.15% - 5.52%, General Obligation Refunding Notes, Series F of 1997, dated December 
31,1997, principal payable in annual installments of$1,599,709 to $3,751,786 beginning 
September 15, 1999 through September 15,2022, to be serviced through general revenues 
ofthe City, issued to currently refund the City's General Obligation Bonds, Series of 1995, 
which was originally issued to pay for certain capital projects of the City. 

1.59% - 4.13%, Pennsylvania Infrastructure bank loans, principal payable through March 
26, 2018, to be serviced through general revenues of the City, used to fund City street 
resurfacing projects. 

Total primary government notes payable 

40,638,419 

2,729,821 

43,368,240 

$ 50,013,240 

During Februaty 2008, the City issued a Pennsylvania Infrastructure bank loan in the principal amount 
of $2,400,000 to be used for sundty purposes. The loan bears interest at 4.125% and is payable though 
2018. 
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The composition of notes payable included in the component units at December 31, 2008 is as follows: 

The Harrisburg Authority 

1.536% - 3.071%, The Harrisburg Authority, 1998 Guaranteed Sewer Revenue Notes, 
Series A and B, payable through 2018, to finance projects related to the sewer collection 
system. 

5.72%, The Harrisburg Authority, 2002 Guaranteed Resource Recovery Notes, Series A 
payable through 2022, to fund acquisition of equipment and engineering studies and 

$ 1,959,299 

working capital. 15,620,000 

3.70% - 5.0%, The Harrisburg Authority, 2003 Guaranteed Resource Recovery Notes, 
Series Band C payable beginuing 2025 through 2034, to advance refund a portion of the 
1998 Series A Bonds, all of the outstanding 1998 Series Band C Bonds, all ofthe 
outstanding 2000 Series A and B Notes. 53,370,000 

4.50%, The Harrisburg Authority, 2007 Guaranteed Resource Recovery Limited 
Obligation Notes, Series C payable in 2010, to fund the working capital component of the 
Retrofit Completion Project. 23,920,000 

6.0%, The Harrisburg Authority, 2007 Guaranteed Resource Recovery Limited Obligation 
Notes, Series D payable in 2010, to fund the Reimbursement Project. 10,765,000 

Total The Harrisburg Authority 105,634,299 

Less: unamortized discount (1,626,001) 

Net The Harrisburg Authority $ 104,008,298 

Redevelopment Authority 
3.75%,2000 Infrastructure Bank Loan, for bridge financing of the Transportation Center 
improvements until grant money is received and is payable in annual installments through 

and on December 31, 2009. ";$;;,,,.==5~0;,0,~0;;;00~ 

Total component units notes payable $ 104,508,298 
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The annual requirements to amortize all notes payable outstanding as of December 31, 2008, using 
interest rates in effect at December 31, 2008 for variable rate issues, are as follows: 

Year Ending December 31, 

Primary Government 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014-2018 
2019-2023 
2024-2026 

Component Units: 

Year Ending December 31, 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014-2018 
2019-2023 
2024-2028 
2029-2033 
2034 

Less: unamortized discount 

2009 
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Governmental Activities 
Principal Interest 

$ 2,266,815 $ 566,522 
2,758,547 675,344 
4,338,156 980,350 
4,162,197 1,129,981 
4,006,198 1,273,933 

17,629,636 8,239,275 
14,206,691 12,926,408 

645,000 75,026 

$ 50,013,240 $ 25,866,839 

The Harrisburg Authorit~ 
Principal Interest 

$ 914,977 $ 3,246,784 
35,648,253 3,198,699 

1,021,597 3,264,418 
1,080,014 3,212,781 
1,139,506 3,153,804 
6,669,952 14,796,001 
5,790,000 12,897,922 

17,725,000 11,076,735 
28,985,000 5,979,470 

6,660,000 333,000 

105,634,299 61,159,614 
(1,626,001) 

$ 104,008,298 $ 61,159,614 

Redevelopment Authority 
Principal Interest 

$ 500,000 $ 18,806 
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13. LOANS PAYABLE 

The composition ofloans payable included in the component units at December 31, 2008 is as follows: 

The Harrisburg Authority 

4.00% - 8.00%, The Harrisburg Authority, 2008 Covanta Construction Loan, payable 
through 2018, to perform the Retrofit completion work at the Resource Recovety Facility $ 8,233,000 

During 2007, the Authority entered into a First Amendment and Management and Professional 
Services Agreement with a waste management facility operator (operator). As patt of that agreement, 
the operator agreed to advance the costs incurred in the retrofit completion up to $25,500,000. At 
December 31,2008, the Authority had drawn down $8,233,000. This loan constitutes subordinate debt 
of the Authority pursuant to the provisions of the Authority's various debt indentures. No interest 
accrues until July 1,2010, at which time simple interest begins to accrue at the rate of 4% per annum 
until July I, 2011 and at a rate of 8% per annum thereafter. Interest is payable beginning August I, 
20 II and continuing thereafter in quarterly installments due and payable on the first day of each 
calendar quatter. Principal is to be paid beginning on July I, 2009 in quarterly installments due and 
payable on the first day of each calendar quatter based on a 10-year, mOitgage-style amOltization 
schedule. This loan is guaranteed by the City. 

The annual requirements to amOitize all loans payable outstanding as of December 31, 2008 are as 
follows: 

Component Units: 
The Harrisburg Authori~ 

Year Ending December 31, Principal Interest 

2009 $ 1,275,000 $ 
2010 1,912,500 
2011 1,339,590 75,410 
2012 271,539 288,461 
2013 293,922 266,078 
2014-2018 1,875,539 924,461 
2019-2021 1,264,910 144,226 

$ 8,233,000 $ 1,698,636 

14. LEASES 

Future Lease Relltals Payable to Compollellt Unit 

On October I, 1984, the City entered into a supplemental lease agreement pursuant to the refunding of 
The Harrisburg Authority's Guaranteed Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series of 1978. The 1984 Second 
Supplemental Agreement of Lease provides for rental payments in an amount sufficient to retire bonds 
issued to finance the cost of major construction improvements to the sewage conveyance and treatment 
system. Also included are interest and administrative costs of The Harrisburg Authority. 
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On Januaty 15, 1988, the City entered into a Third Supplemental Agreement of Lease and a Collection 
System Lease pursuant to the issuance of The Harrisburg Authority's Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series A 
and B of 1988. The Third Supplemental Agreement of Lease was entered into providing for rental 
payments in an amount sufficient to retire bonds issued to finance the Series A Project relating to the 
sewage conveyance and treatment system. The Collection System Lease was entered into providing for 
rental payments in an amount sufficient to retire bonds issued to finance the Series B Project relating to 
the sewage collection system. 

In accordance with the lease agreements, the City is required to make the following minimum annual 
lease rental payments: 

Authority 
Basic Lease Administrative 

Lease year ending December 31, Rental Expense Total 

2009 $ 1,858,081 $ 160,000 $ 2,018,081 
2010 1,861,382 250,000 2,111,382 
2011 1,855,496 250,000 2,105,496 

Total minimum lease payments 5,574,959 $ 660,000 $ 6,234,959 

Less amount representing interest (744,543) 

Present value of net minimum lease payments 4,830,416 
Current pOltion 1,728,016 

Long-tenn portion $ 3,102,400 

The net book value of equipment held under capital leases included in capital assets was $14,559,669 
at December 31, 2008. Capital improvements to these systems under the lease agreements were 
$757,072 during 2008. 

The City is required under the terms of the Second Supplemental Agreement of Lease, the Third 
Supplemental Agreement of Lease and Collection System Lease to make additional rental payments 
within 190 days after the end of each year, equal to excess funds in the Sewer Fund as defined in the 
respective lease agreements. There were no excess funds at December 31, 2008 and, accordingly, no 
additional payment was due. 

Capitalized Lease Obligatiolls 

The City leased certain equipment under long-term lease agreements which were classified as capital 
leases. During the year ended December 31, 2004, the City refinanced all of the then existing capital 
leases into a consolidated master capital lease. Additional capital leases were issued during the years 
ended December 31, 2005 and 2007. As of December 31, 2008, the governmental activities and the 
business-type activities included equipment and furniture under capital leases had a net book value of 
$6,817,369 and $454,129, respectively. 
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The future mmlmum payments under capital 
payments at December 31, 2008 are as follows: 

Year endin!!, December 31, 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 

Total minimum lease payments 

Less alllount representing interest 

Present value of future minimum lease payments 

Transportation Center Lease Income 

leases and the present value of the 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities 

$ 2,584,794 $ 187,065 
2,195,962 165,952 
1,831,641 146,420 
1,537,049 130,794 

730,599 41,786 
730,598 41,785 
125,962 7,205 
125,963 7,204 
125,937 7,223 

9,988,505 735,434 

(944,655) (68,534) 

$ 9,043,850 $ 666,900 

minimum lease 

Total 

$ 2,771,859 
2,361,914 
1,978,061 
1,667,843 

772,385 
772,383 
133,167 
133,167 
133,160 

10,723,939 

(1,013,189) 

$ 9,710,750 

The Redevelopment Authority, through the Transp0l1ation Center Fund, leases space to a commercial 
rail company and other tenants with lease ending dates vmying through 2013. These leases are 
noncancellable operating leases. Minimum rentals on noncancellable leases through 2013 are as 
follows: 

Lease lear endin~ December 31, 

2009 $ 656,337 
2010 580,833 
2011 502,377 
2012 483,517 
2013 484,552 

Total minimum lease payments $ 2,707,616 
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Operatillg Lease 

The Redevelopment Authority leases space from a commercial rail company through 2013. The 
minimum lease payments for the term of the lease are as follows: 

Lease year ending December 31, 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 

Total minimum lease payments 

$ 

$ 

134,838 
134,838 
134,838 
134,838 
134,838 

674,190 

The lease is adjusted annually on Januaty I for the National Consumer Price Index. The above amounts 
do not reflect the annual CPI increase. Management does not anticipate a significant increase in the 
above amounts. Total rental expenses for the year ended December 31,2008 approximated $134,838. 

15. INTEREST RATE SWAPS 

Compollellt Ullits 

rhe Harrisburg Authority 

Variable Rate Issues alld Illterest Rate Swaps 

In connection with its incurrence of long-term indebtedness, The Harrisburg Authority, from time to 
time, has issued several series of variable rate bonds and notes and entered into related interest rate 
swap and cap agreements with respect to cel1ain of these variable rate issues. A description of the 
variable rate issues and, where applicable, the related interest rate swap or swaps, and cap follows. 

2003 Water Revenue Bonds, Series A 

Objective of the illterest rate swaps. In October 1999, The Harrisburg Authority entered into a contract 
with Societe Generale, New York Branch (Societe Generale), obligating The Harrisburg Authority to 
issue on June II, 2003, its fixed rate, Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series A of 2003 in the 
principal amount of $49,725,000 (2003 Series A Fixed Rate Bonds). Proceeds of the 2003 Series A 
Fixed Rate Bonds were to be applied to redeem in July 2003 The Harrisburg Authority's 1993 Water 
Revenue Bonds, Series B, then outstanding. To reduce the amount of debt service to be paid on the 
2003 Series A Fixed Rate Bonds, The Harrisburg Authority by agreement reached with Societe 
Generale on April 12, 2002, terminated its obligation to issue the 2003 Series A Fixed Rate Bonds and 
agreed to pay Societe Generale a termination payment of $6, 175,000. To fund the termination payment 
and the current refunding of the 1993 Water Revenue Bonds, Series B, The Harrisburg Authority on 
April 12, 2002 entered into a forward bond purchase agreement to issue its Variable Rate Water 
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series A of 2003 (2003 Water Revenue Bonds, Series A) on or about July 
10,2003. 
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On April 12, 2002, The Harrisburg Authority, in order to lock in fixed bOl1'0wing costs for its 2003 
Water Revenue Bonds, Series A, also entered into a forward interest swap agreement with Societe 
Generale; on that date, Societe Generale paid The Harrisburg Authority an upfront payment of 
$1,415,000. Under the swap agreement, Societe Generale agreed to pay to The Harrisburg Authority (i) 
amounts calculated at a floating rate per annum based on 67 percent of one-month LIBOR, on a 
notional amount equal to a specified portion of the scheduled principal amount of the 2003 Water 
Revenue Bonds, Series A, and (ii) amounts calculated at a floating rate per annum determined under 
the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association Municipal Swap Index (SIFMA Index) on a 
notional amount equal to another specified portion of the scheduled principal amount of the 2003 
Water Revenue Bonds, Series A. The Harrisburg Authority is obligated to pay Societe Generale 
amounts calculated at respective agreed-upon fixed rates based upon the separate notional amounts 
described above, and which fixed rates were determined in April 2002 and were calculated to take into 
account the upfront payment of $1,415,000 paid by Societe Generale to The Harrisburg Authority. The 
forward interest rate swap agreement was scheduled to become effective on or about July 10, 2003, the 
anticipated issue date of the 2003 Water Revenue Bonds, Series A. The purpose of entering into the 
forward interest rate swap was to hedge against the risk of interest rate changes with respect to the 
2003 Water Revenue Bonds, Series A, and to fix its effective borrowing costs with respect to the 2003 
Water Revenue Bonds, Series A hedged by the forward interest rate swap agreement. The forward 
interest rate swap agreement became effective on July II, 2003, the date on which The HalTisburg 
Authority issued the 2003 Water Revenue Bonds, Series A, in the principal amount of$56,535,000. 

Terms. As described above, the interest rate swap agreement which The HalTisburg Authority entered 
into with respect to its 2003 Water Revenue Bonds, Series A consisted of two separate components, a 
LIBOR-based swap with $25,275,000 of outstanding principal amount of 2003 Water Revenue Bonds, 
Series A as the notional amount (LIBOR Swap) and a SIFMA-based swap with $25,605,000 of 
outstanding principal amount of2003 Water Revenue Bonds, Series A as the notional amount (SIFMA 
Swap). Under the LIBOR Swap, The Harrisburg Authority paid Societe Generale interest on the 
corresponding notional amount at a fixed rate of 4.710% per annum, and received fi'om Societe 
Generale interest on such notional amount at a floating rate equal to 67% of one-month LIBOR. Under 
the SIFMA Swap, The Harrisburg Authority paid Societe Generale interest on the corresponding 
notional amount at a fixed rate of 5.105% per annum, and received in return interest at a floating rate 
equal to the SIFMA Index. Under the LIBOR Swap and the SIFMA Swap, The Harrisburg Authority 
had effectively hedged $50,880,000 principal amount of its 2003 Water Revenue Bonds, Series A, 
while $5,655,000 principal amount of such Bonds remains unhedged. The fixed rates payable by The 
Harrisburg Authority under the LIBOR Swap and the SIFMA Swap were determined in April 2002 
when The Harrisburg Authority entered into the forward interest rate swap agreement with Societe 
Generale and take into account Societe Generale's upfront payment of $1,415,000 paid to The 
Harrisburg Authority in April 2002. The notional amount of each of the LIBOR Swap and the SIFMA 
Swap decreased as the outstanding principal amount of the corresponding 2003 Water Revenue Bonds, 
Series A decreases through mandatory sinking fund redemption. 

Termillatioll Evellt. Both the LIBOR Swap and the SIFMA Swap were terminated with the issuance of 
The Harrisburg Authority's Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series of 2008 (2008 Water Revenue 
Bonds), issued on August 22, 2008. A pOltion of the 2008 Water Revenue Bonds were used to pay a 
$9,742,000 termination fee. 

Objective of the illterest rate swaps. In August 2006, The Harrisburg Authority entered into two 
Constant Maturity Swaps with Deutsche Bank AG, New York Branch (Deutsche Bank) to enhance the 
2003A interest rate swap agreements with the objective to increase the expected cash flows and 
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effectively lower the over all cost of borrowing of the 2003 Water Revenue Bonds, Series A by 
conveliing the tenor of the interest rate on the Societe Generale payment leg of each of the underlying 
swaps from receiving a short-term rate to a long-term rate. The Constant Maturity Swaps became 
effective on July 15,2007 and have been transferred to the 2008 Water Revenue Bonds. 

Terms. The Constant Maturity Swaps, which The Harrisburg Authority entered into with respect to its 
2008 Water Revenue Bonds, consist of two separate components, a LIB OR-based Constant Maturity 
Swap with $25,275,000 of outstanding principal amount of2008 Water Revenue Bonds as the notional 
amount (LIBOR CMS) and a SIFMA-based Constant Matlll'ity Swap with $25,020,000 of outstanding 
principal amount of 2008 Water Revenue Bonds as the notional amount (SIFMA CMS). Under the 
LIB OR CMS, The Harrisburg Authority receives interest on the cOll'esponding notional amount at a 
floating rate of 60.15% of the ten-year USD-ISDA-Swap Rate (ten-year LIBOR swap rate) and pays 
Deutsche Bank a floating rate based on 67% of one-month LIBOR. Under the SIFMA CMS, The 
Harrisburg Authority receives interest on the cOll'esponding notional amount at a floating rate of 
85.44% ofUSSMQIO (ten-year SIFMA swap rate) and pays Deutsche Bank a floating rate based on 
the SIMF A Index. The notional amount of each of the LIBOR CMS and SIFMA CMS decreases as the 
outstanding principal amount of the corresponding 2008 Water Revenue Bonds decreases through 
mandatOlY sinking fund redemption. Effective November 17,2008, both the LIBOR CMS and SIFMA 
CMS were suspended until January 15, 20 II. For executing these suspensions, The Harrisburg 
Authority received a total of$I.25 million from Deutsche Bank. 

Fair value. As of December 31, 2008, it would cost The Hall'isburg Authority $163,447 to tenninate 
the LIBOR CMS and it would cost the Counterparty $54,042 to terminate the SIFMA CMS with 
Deutsche Bank. The fair values take into consideration the prevailing interest rate environment and the 
specific terms and conditions of each swap. All fail' values were estimated using the zero-coupon 
discounting method. This method calculates the future payments required by the swap, assuming that 
the current forward rates implied by the yield curve are the market's best estimate of future spot 
interest rates. These payments are then discounted using the spot rates implied by the current yield 
curve for a hypothetical zero-coupon rate bond due on the date of each future net settlement payment 
on the swaps. Where applicable, future payments are adjusted taking into account volatilities, time, and 
other variables. 

Credit risk. As of December 31, 2008, The Harrisblll'g Authority was not exposed to credit risk, with 
respect to the LIB OR CMS, because the swap had a negative fair value. However, should interest rates 
change and the fair value of the LIBOR CMS become positive, The Harrisburg Authority would be 
exposed to credit risk in the amount of the respective LIBOR CMS agreement's fair value. As of 
December 31, 2008, The Harrisburg Authority was exposed to credit risk in the amount of the SIFMA 
CMS agreement's fair value. Deutsche Bank was rated A+ by Standard & Poor's and Aal by Moody's 
Investors Service as of December 31, 2008. To mitigate the potential for credit risk, if Deutsche Bank's 
credit rating falls below AJA2, the parties agree to negotiate in good faith a credit suppOli annex to the 
Constant Maturity Swap Agreement, which would require Deutsche Bank to collateralize its 
obligations with a combination of cash, TreaslllY Seclll'ities, and Agency Notes. 

Terminatioll risk. The Harrisburg Authority or Deutsche Bank may terminate the Constant Maturity 
Swap Agreement if the other patry defaults under the terms of the agreement. If at the time of 
termination, the Constant Maturity Swaps have negative fair values, The Harrisburg Authority would 
be liable to Deutsche Bank for a payment equal to the swap's fair value. 
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Yield Curve Risk. The Constant Maturity Swaps expose The Hal1'isburg Authority to yield curve risk 
should the following occur: (i) 67% of one-month LIBOR minus 60.15% of the ten-year USD-ISDA
Swap rate become positive and/or (ii) the SIFMA Index minus 85.44% of the ten-year SIFMA Swap 
Rate (USSMQIO) become positive. The negative effects of the yield curve risk are caused by an 
inversion of the associated yield curve resulting in The Hal1'isburg Authority paying a higher overall 
cost of borrowing. 

Swup paymellts alld associated debt. Effective November 19, 2008, both the LIBOR CMS and SIFMA 
CMS were suspended until January 15, 20 II, for a payment to The Harrisburg Authority in the amount 
of$I,250,000. 

Subsequellt Evellt, As of November 20,2009, it would cost the Counterparty $996,751 and $750,769 
to terminate the LIBOR CMS and SIFMA CMS with The Harrisburg Authority, respectively. 

Deutsche Bank was rated A+ by Standard & Poor's and Aal by Moody's Investor Service as of 
November 20, 2009. 

Series of 2004, Water Revenue Refunding Bonds 

Objective of the illterest rate swaps. In August 2004, The Hanisburg Authority issued Series of 2004, 
Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, in the principal amount of $37,455,000 (2004 Water Revenue 
Bonds). The Series of 2004 Bonds bear interest at a fixed rates ranging from 1.5% to 5%. In an effort 
to lower The Harrisburg Authority's net interest cost on the 2004 Water Revenue Bonds, The 
Harrisburg Authority entered into the 2005 Basis Swap, on the then outstanding bonds, in the notional 
amount of$37,360,000. 

In August 2006, The Harrisburg Authority amended the 2005 Basis Swap with Bank of America 
(formerly Merrill Lynch) with the objective to enhance the 2005 Basis Swap by increasing the 
expected cash flows on the Basis Swap and effectively lowering the overall cost of borrowing of the 
2004 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds. The amendment covelis the tenor of the interest rate on Bank 
of America's payment leg of the Basis Swap fi'om a shoti-term rate to a long-term rate. 

Terms, Under the 2005 Basis Swap, The Harrisburg Authority periodically pays an amount to Bank of 
America equal to interest on an amount corresponding to the then outstanding aggregate principal 
amount of the 2004 Water Revenue Bonds computed on the basis of the then applicable SIFMA 
Municipal Swap Index (SIFMA Index) and Bank of America periodically pays an amount to The 
Harrisburg Authority equal to interest on the Notional Amount computed on the basis of 50 basis 
points plus 67% of the monthly LIBOR Index. The notional amount of the 2005 Basis Swap decreases 
as the outstanding principal amount of the corresponding 2004 Water Revenue Bonds decreases 
through maturing principal. 

The 2006 amendment coverts The Harrisburg Authority's receipt rate from 67% of one-month LIB OR 
plus a spread of 50 basis points to 69% of the five-year USD-ISDA-Swap Rate (five-year LIBOR Swap 
Rate). The amendment became effective on July 15, 2007. 

Fair value, As of December 31, 2008, it would cost The Harrisburg Authority $1,553,847 to terminate 
the 2005 Basis Swap, as amended, with Bank of America. The fair values take into consideration the 
prevailing interest rate environment and the specific terms and conditions of each swap. All fair values 
were estimated using the zero-coupon discounting method. This method calculates the future payments 
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required by the swap, assuming that the current forward rates implied by the yield curve are the 
market's best estimate of future spot interest rates. These payments are then discounted using the spot 
rates implied by the current yield curve for a hypothetical zero-coupon rate bond due on the date of 
each future net settlement payment on the swaps. 

Credit risk. As of December 31, 2008, The Harrisburg Authority was not exposed to credit risk, 
because the swap had a negative fair value. However, should interest rates change and the fair value of 
the swap become positive, The Harrisburg Authority would be xposed to credit risk in the amount of 
the swap agreement's fair value. Bank of America was rated A by Standard & Poor's and A2 by 
Moody's Investors Service as of December 31, 2008. To mitigate the potential for credit risk, if Bank 
of America's credit rating falls below A2/A, the patties agree to negotiate in good faith a credit support 
annex to the swap agreement, which would require Bank of America to collateralize its obligations 
with a combination of cash, Treasury Securities, and Agency Notes. 

Basis risk. The amended 2005 Basis Swap exposes The Harrisburg Authority to basis risk because The 
Harrisburg Authority is receiving payments based on 69% of the five-year LIBOR Swap Rate from 
July 15,2007 to the Termination Date of July 15, 2023 while making payments to Bank of America 
based on the SIFMA index. The Harrisburg Authority is receiving payments based on a taxable rate 
which may be different from the amount The Harrisburg Authority pays to Bank of America, which is 
based on the SIFMA Index, a tax-exempt rate. As of December 31, 2008, the interest rate The 
Harrisburg Authority was paying under the 2005 Basis Swap was .9 percent, where as the interest The 
Harrisburg Authority was receiving at 69% of the five-year LIBOR Swap Rate was 1.48 percent. 

Termination risk. The Harrisburg Authority or Bank of America may terminate the swap agreement if 
the other patty defaults under the swap agreement. The swap may be terminated by The Harrisburg 
Authority if Bank of America's credit quality rating falls below "A-" as repOlted by Standard & Poor's 
or "A3" as reported by Moody's Investors Service. If at the time of termination the swap has negative 
fair value, The Harrisburg Authority would be liable to Bank of America for a payment equal to the 
swap's fair value. 

Swap payments and associated debt. Using rates as of December 3 I, 2008, debt service requirements 
of the 2004 Water Revenue Bonds and net swap payments, assuming current interest rates and floating 
rates under the swap agreement remain the same for their term, were as follows. As these rates vary, 
net payments under the 2005 Basis Swap agreement on the 2004 Water Revenue Bonds will vary. 

2004 Water Revenue Bonds 

Fiscal Year Ending Swap Agreement 

December 3 I, Principal Interest Payments, Net Total 

2009 $ 125,000 $ 1,833,498 $ (214,861) $ 1,743,637 
2010 125,000 1,829,748 (214,136) 1,740,612 
2011 125,000 1,825,060 (213,411) 1,736,649 
2012 135,000 1,820,872 (212,686) 1,743,186 
2013 140,000 1,816,080 (211,903) 1,744,177 

2014-2018 6,170,000 8,984,500 (1,045,131) 14,109,369 
2019-2023 30,225,000 4,408,750 (511,415) 34,122,335 

$ 37,045,000 $ 22,518,508 $ (2,623,543) $ 56,939,965 

82 



CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2008 

SlibseqlleJtt Evellt. As of November 20, 2009, it would cost the Counterparty $1,255,967 to terminate 
the 2005 Basis Swap, as amended, with Bank of America. 

Bank of America was rated A by Standard & Poor's and A2 by Moody's Investor Service as of 
November 20,2009. 

2003 Guaranteed Resource Recovery Revenue Bonds, Series Dl and D2 

Objective of tile illterest rate swaps. The Harrisburg Authority's asset/liability strategy is to have a 
combination of fixed and variable-rate debt. On December 30, 2003, The Harrisburg Authority issued 
its $96,480,000 Guaranteed Resource Recovety Facility Revenue Bonds, Series D of 2003 (2003 
Resource Recovety Bonds, Series D) consisting of $31,480,000 Subseries D-I (2003 D-I Bonds) and 
$65,000,000 Subseries D-2 (2003 D-2 Bonds). The 2003 D-I Bonds initially bear interest at a fixed 
rate of 4.00% to December I, 2008, and the 2003 D-2 Bonds at a 5.00% fixed rate to December I, 
2013. After the expiration of these respective initial rate periods, the 2003 D-I and D-2 Bonds are 
subject to conversion to different interest rates for different interest rate periods. To convet1 the interest 
rate on the 2003 D-I and 2003 D-2 Bonds to a synthetic variable rate, The Harrisburg Authority 
entered into fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps, thereby achieving a variable rate while eliminating 
the need for a liquidity facility and annual remarketing services, and avoiding basis risk associated with 
the weekly remarketing of its variable rate debt, had it issued the 2003 D-I Bonds and 2003 D-2 Bonds 
as weekly floating rate bonds. 

Terms. With respect to its 2003 Resource Recovety Bonds, Series D, The Harrisburg Authority entered 
into an interest rate swap agreement with Royal Bank of Canada (RBC), which swap agreement 
consists of two components: (i) a swap with the outstanding principal amount of the 2003 D-I Bonds to 
December I, 2008 as the notional amount (D-I Swap) and (ii) a swap with the outstanding principal 
amount of the 2003 D-2 Bonds to December 1,2013 as the notional amount (D-2 Swap). Under the D
I Swap, which terminated on December I, 2008, The Harrisburg Authority pays RBC floating amounts 
calculated by applying a floating rate per annum detennined by reference to the SIFMA Index, and The 
Harrisburg Authority receives fixed amounts calculated by applying a fixed rate of 2.66% per annum 
on the notional amount under the D-I Swap. Under the D-2 Swap, scheduled to terminate on December 
I, 2013, The Harrisburg Authority pays interest on the notional amount under the D-2 Swap at a 
floating rate determined by reference to the SIFMA Index, and receives interest on such notional 
amount at a rate of3.37% per annum. 

The D-I Swap contains an embedded interest rate cap, providing that the floating rate to be paid by 
The Harrisburg Authority shall not exceed 12% to June 1,2006, and shall not exceed 6% fi'om June I, 
2006 to the D-I Swap termination date of December I, 2008. The D-2 Swap contains a similar 
embedded cap, capping at 12% the floating rate to be paid by The Harrisburg Authority to June I, 
2006, and providing a 6% cap from June 1,2006 to December I, 2013, the termination date of the D-2 
Swap. The HatTisburg Authority also entered into an interest rate cap agreement (D-IID-2 Cap) with 
RBC, which was to become effective on December I, 2008. The D-l/o-2 Cap provided that RBC 
would pay the excess, if any, between the SIFMA Index and 6% on a notional amount equal to the 
scheduled principal amount of the D-I Bonds and the D-2 Bonds outstanding after December 1,2008 
and December 1,2013, respectively. In May 2004, The Harrisburg Authority and RBC amended the D
IID-2 Cap to provide for RBC to pay the excess between 68% of L1BOR and 6%, rather than the 
excess between SIFMA and 6%. The Harrisburg Authority received $1,1 06,000 as a result of this 
amendment. 
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On August 31, 2005, The Harrisburg Authority elected to supplement the 0-1 and 0-2 Swaps in order 
to effectively fix the interest rate on its obligations through the final maturity date of the 20030 Bonds 
scheduled to be outstanding from time to time (initially $96,480,000). The new agreement (2005 
Swap), which The Harrisburg Authority entered into with RBC, with a notional amount equal to the 
principal amount of the 20030 Bonds, $96,480,000, consists of a variable to fixed interest rate swap. 
The 2005 Swap provides, effective June I, 2006 and continuing until December I, 2033, The 
Harrisburg Authority pay a fixed rate not exceeding 3.35% and (i) receive from June I, 2006 to May 
31,2008 the same SIFMA-based variable rate and (ii) receive from June 1,2008 to December 1,2033 
a LIBOR-based variable rate equal to 68% of one month LIB OR. 

On April 28,2006, The Harrisburg Authority terminated the pOllion of the 2005 Swap from June I, 
20 II through December 21, 2033. Under the revised agreement, effective June I, 2006, The Harrisburg 
Authority pays a fixed rate not exceeding 3.35% through June 1,2011 and (i) receives SIFMA-based 
variable rate through June I, 2008 and (ii) receives 68% of one-month LIBOR from June I, 2008 to 
June 1,2011. As a result of the patlial termination, The Harrisburg Authority received $4,027,000. 

On December I, 2008, The Harrisburg Authority remarketed and convelled $31,280,000 Guaranteed 
Resource RecovelY Facility Revenue Bonds, Subseries D-I of 2003, to a long-term rate period of 
December 1,2008 to December I, 2010 with a coupon rate of 6.75% with a yield rate of 5.5% and a 
price of 102.337%. 

Fair vallie. As of December 31, 2008, it would cost the Counterpatty $4,558,958 to terminate the D-2 
Swap and the embedded 0-2 Cap. The fair values take into consideration the prevailing interest rate 
environment and the specific terms and conditions of each swap. All fair values were estimated using 
the zero-coupon discounting method. This method calculates the future payments required by the 
swap, assuming that the current forward rates implied by the yield curve are the market's best estimate 
of future spot interest rates. These payments are then discounted using the spot rates implied by the 
current yield curve for a hypothetical zero-coupon rate bond due on the date of each future net 
settlement payment on the swaps. 

As of December 31,2008, it would cost The Harrisburg Authority $6,403,158 to terminate the 0-110-2 
Cap. The Harrisburg Authority is obligated to make semi-annual payments of $284,616 beginning 
December I, 2006 to and including December I, 2033 for a total obligation of$II,707,282 as payment 
for the 0-110-2 Cap. 

As of December 31, 2008, it would cost The Harrisburg Authority $5,624,156 to terminate the 2005 
Swap. 

Credit risk. As of December 31, 2008, The Harrisburg Authority was not exposed to credit risk on the 
0-110-2 Cap, or the 2005 Swap, because they had a negative fair value. However, should interest rates 
change and the fair value of the swaps become positive, The Harrisburg Authority would be exposed to 
credit risk in the amount of the swap agreement's fair value. The Harrisburg Authority is exposed to 
credit risk on the 0-2 Swap and the embedded 0-2 Cap in the amount of the swap agreement's fair 
value. As of December 31, 2008, RBC was rated Aaa by Moody's Investors Service and AA- by 
Standard & Poor's. To mitigate credit risk, if RBC's rating falls below A3 by Moody's Investors 
Service or A- by Standard & Poor's, the 0-2 Swap and the 2005 Swap will terminate. 

Interest rate risk. The Harrisburg Authority has interest rate risk after June I, 20 II because the 2005 
Swap has been terminated from that date to the final maturity of the 2003 Resource RecovelY Bonds, 
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Series D, The Harrisburg Authority has no interest rate risk with regard to the 2003 Resource Recovery 
Bonds, Series D prior to June 1,2011. 

Termillatioll risk. The Harrisburg Authority or RBC may terminate the D-2 Swap if the other party 
defaults under the D-2 Swap. In addition, The Harrisburg Authority may terminate the D-2 Swaps 
agreement without cause at any time on 20 days notice, at fair market value. If at the time of 
termination the D-2 Swap has a negative fair value, The Harrisburg Authority would be liable to RBC 
for that payment. 

Swap paymellfs alld associated debt. Using interest rates as of December 31, 2008, principal and 
interest requirements of the 2003 D-1 Bonds and 2003 0-2 Bonds fixed-rate debt and net swap 
payments through the swap termination dates were as follows. As rates set f011h in the 0-1 and 0-2 
Swaps agreement vary, net swap payments will valy. 

Basis risk. The Harrisburg Authority is subject to basis risk, because the interest on the variable rate 
arm of the 2005 Swap is based on one month LIB OR and the variable rate interest rate on the D-2 
Swap is based on SIFMA. Although expected to correlate, the relationships between different indexes 
vmy and that variance could adversely affect The Han'isburg Authority's calculated payment, and as a 
result, cost savings or synthetic interest rates may not be realized. 

Fiscal Year Ending 0-1 Bonds 2005 

December 31, Principal Interest Swap • Total 

2009 $ $ 2,124,900 $ 961,210 $ 3,086,110 

2010 2,124,900 961,210 3,086,110 

20 II 1,023,100 480,605 1,503,705 

$ $ 5,272,900 $ 2,403,025 $ 7,675,925 

'Computed: (3.35%-.2967%) x $31,480,000 through June I, 20II 

Fiscal Year Ending D-2 Bonds 2005 

December 31, Principal Interest D-2 Swap- Swap ,. Total 

2009 $ $ 3,250,000 $ (l,605,500) $ 1,984,710 $ 3,629,210 

2010 3,250,000 (1,605,500) 1,984,710 3,629,210 

2011 3,250,000 (l,605,500) 992,355 2,636,855 

2012 3,250,000 (1,605,500) 1,644,500 

2013 3,250,000 (l,605,500) 1,644,500 

$ $ 16,250,000 $ (8,027,500) $ 4,961,775 $ 13,184,275 

'Computed: (.9%-3.37%) x $65,000,000 
'-Computed: (3.35%-.2967%) x $65,000,000 through June 1,2011 

Subsequent Evellt.- As of November 20,2009, it would cost the Counterpmiy $5,438,379 to terminate 
the D-2 Swap and the embedded D-2 Cap. As of November 20, 2009, it would cost The Harrisburg 
Authority $4,719,654 to terminate the D-1ID-2 Cap. As of November 20, 2009, it would cost The 
Harrisburg Authority $5,669,373 to terminate the 2005 Swap. 
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RBC was rated AA- by Standard & Poor's and Aaa by Moody's Investor Service as of November 20, 
2009. 

2003 Guaranteed Resource Recovery Revenne Notes, Series B 

These Notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 3.70 percent through June 15, 2010. Thereafter, it is 
expected that the Notes will bear interest at a tax-exempt weekly rate equal to the SIFMA index plus 75 
basis points on each date of determination. The debt service schedule on the previous pages uses a rate 
of 4.1 percent for debt service requirements subsequent to June IS, 2010. 

2002 Water Revenue Bonds, Series B 

These Bonds bear interest at a tax-exempt weekly rate, 4.5 percent at December 31, 2008. 

2002 Water Revenue Bonds, Series C 

These Bonds bear interest at a taxable weekly rate, 6 percent at December 31, 2008. 

1998 Guaranteed Sewer Revenue Notes, Series A 

These Notes bear interest at a variable rate, 2.4375 percent at December 31,2008. 

16. PENSION PLAN 

Plall Descriptioll 

The City has foUl' defined benefit pension plans. Two of the plans, Non-uniformed Employees' Plans A 
and B, are controiled by provisions of Ordinance-Bill No. 49-1984, adopted pursuant to Act 15. On 
January 2, 2002, the assets of Plans A and B were combined, but the requirements for eligibility and 
benefits remain separate. The Combined Firefighters' Plan is controiled by provisions of Ordinance
Bill No. 44-2002. For these plans, the City contributes to the Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement 
System (PMRS), an agent multiple-employer Public Employees Retirement System (PERS). The 
remaining plan, the Combined Police Pension Plan, was established January I, 1999 under Ordinance
Bill No. 44-1998. This ordinance withdrew the Police Officers' Plan A and Police Officers' Plan B 
from PMRS, and established an amended and restated pension plan for police officers of the City. The 
combined Police Pension Plan is a single-employer pension plan and is controlled by a separate 
independent board of trustees. 

The plans have been established to covel' substantially ail full-time employees. Employees become 
eligible for participation in a plan immediately upon employment and become fully vested after 20 
years of service for City A plans, 10 years for City B and Combined Firefighters' Plans and 20 years 
for the Combined Police Pension Plan. The plans have been established by City ordinance in 
accordance with the authority for municipal contributions required by Act 205-1984 (Act 205) of the 
Pennsylvania legislature, as amended by Act 189-1990. The plans require covered employees to 
contribute a percentage oftotal compensation. 

PMRS issues publicly available financial repOits that include financial statements and required 
supplementary information. The PMRS report may be obtained by writing to Pennsylvania Municipal 
Retirement System, P.O. Box 1165, Harrisburg, PA 17108-1165 01' by calling 1-800-622-7968. 
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In addition, the City of Harrisburg Police Pension Board issues a separate publicly available financial 
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the Combined 
Police Pension Fund. That repOlt may be obtained by writing to the City of Harrisburg Police Pension 
Board, The Reverend Dr. Mattin Luther King, Jr. City Government Center, iO North Second Street, 
HarrisburgPA 17101 or by calling 717-255-6507. 

The benefits provided by the plans differ by employment group and are based upon average 
compensation and length of service. Normal benefits are calculated at 2.5% pel' year of credited service 
multiplied by the final average annual salary for the Non-uniformed Employees' A and Combined 
Firefighters' plan. In no case may the benefit exceed 50% of the final average annual salary. The 
benefits provided by the Non-uniformed Employees' B plan are calculated at 2.0% pel' year of credited 
service multiplied by the final average annual salmy. In no case may the benefit exceed 75% of the 
final average annual salary. For members who complete 20 01' more years of service, the benefits 
provided by the Combined Police plan are calculated at 50% of the participant's average monthly 
compensation, plus an incremental pension equal to 2.5% of the average monthly compensation for 
each complete year of service over 20 years, up to a maximum of 65% of average compensation. 
Additionally, members who have attained 27 01' more years of service shall receive 70% of average 
compensation. 

The plans provide retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries. 
Cost-of-living allowances are provided at the discretion of the plans. 

In addition, Non-uniformed Employees' Plan A is closed to new entrants. 

FlIl/dil/g Policy 

Act 205 requires that annual contributions be based upon the plan's minimum municipal obligation 
(MMO). The MMO is based upon the plan's bi-annual actuarial valuation. 

Contributions by the City are determined under the en!ly age normal method. Unfunded past service 
liability is amortized over the average future service of active palticipants. 

Employee contributions to the plan are based on a percentage of compensation. Non-uniformed 
employees are required to contribute 4.0-6.0% and 5.0% of annual compensation for plans A and B, 
respectively. Fire employees contribute 5% of annual compensation, while police employees contribute 
5% of annual compensation plus $1 pel' month. An interest rate of 6.0% is applied to the non
uniformed and fire employees accounts. Employees' accumulated contributions plus interest (if 
applicable) will be returned upon termination 01' death if no other benefits are payable under the plan. 
The plans are also eligible to receive an allocation of state aid from the General Municipal Pension 
System State Aid Program which must be used for pension funding. Any funding requirements 
established by the MMO in excess of employee contributions and state aid must be paid by the 
municipality in accordance with Act 205. 

The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania allocates foreign fire and casualty insurance premium collections 
to aid individual municipalities. The monies received must be contributed to the pension plans 01' used 
to pay debt service on unfunded pension liability bonds. Significant actuarial assumptions used to 
compute the actuarially determined contribution requirements are the same as those used to compute 
the annually required contribution. State aid received in excess of the City's statutOlY funding 
requirement was not deposited to the pension plans but was utilized to fund debt service on the City'S 
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unfunded pension liability general obligation bonds issued in 1995 in accordance with Act 205 as 
amended. 

The City had been patticipating in Level III of the State Act 205 Pension Plan RecovelY Program, 
utilizing the l5-year delayed implementation of funding standard provision and amOltizing the 
unfunded actuarial accrual liabilities under its pension plans established at Januaty 1, 1985, over 40 
years on the basis of level percentage of future payroll amOltization. Prior to 1996, the allocation of 
general municipal pension system state aid the City received under Act 205 was based upon the City's 
costs of its pension plans, since this amount was less than the amount determined under the unit value 
calculation. 

In an effOlt to increase the amount of general municipal pension system state aid received by the City 
for its pension plans, the City passed a resolution in December 1995, to rescind its prior election to 
amOitize the unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities of its plans established at Januaty 1, 1985, over 40 
years using level percentage of payroll amortization, and began amortizing these amounts over 30 
years using level dollar amortization. The January 1, 1996 actuarial valuation of the pension plan was 
prepared on the basis ofJO-year level dollar amortization. The 1996 State aid received by the City was 
based upon the January 1, 1995 actuarial valuation reports, which reflected 40-year level percentage of 
payroll amortization. The 1997 State aid received by the City was based upon the Januaty 1, 1996 
actuarial valuation reports using 30-year level dollar amortization. 

Also, the City contributed $60,626 in 1995 in addition to its statutOlY funding requirement, or MMO 
payments, in order to satisfY the full MMO for each plan in 1995 without regard to the 15-year phase
in provision. This allowed the City to determine the MMOs for its plans for 1996 without utilizing the 
delayed implementation of funding standard provision that required that the City make a contribution 
in 1996 to each plan, which was at least equal to the contribution made by the City to each plan during 
1995. This reduced the total MMO for each ofthe City's "A" plans beginning in 1996. 

Administrative costs, including the investment manager, custodial trustee, and actuarial services, are 
charged to the plan and funded through investment earnings. Benefits and refunds of the defined 
benefit pension plan are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. 
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Actuarial Assumptions 

The infonnation presented was detennined as part of the actuarial valuation at the date indicated. 
Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation date follows: 

Police 
Non-Uniformed Employees' Firefighters' Officers' 

PlanA PlanB Combined Combined 

Actuarial valuation date 1/1/07 1/1/07 1/1/07 111/07 

Actuarial cost method Entry age Entry age Entry age Entry age 
Nannal normal normal Nannal 

Amortization method Level dollar, Level dollar, Level dollar, Level dollar, 
closed closed closed closed 

Remaining amortization period 14 years 14 years II years 13 years 

Asset valuation method Fair value Fair value Fair value Fair value 

Actuarial assumptions 
Investment rate of 6.0% net of 6.0% net of 6.0% net of 8.0% net of 

return expenses expenses expenses expenses 

Projected salary increases 4.5% 4.5% 4.5% 5.0% 

Anllual Required COlltributioll alld Net Pellsioll Obligation 

The City's annual pension cost and net pension obligation to the Plans at December 31, 2008 are as 
follows: 

Annual required contribution 
Contributions made 

Change in net pension obligation 
Net pension obligatiol1- beginning of year 

Net pension obligatiol1- end of year 

Three Year Trend [llformation 

Non-Uniformed Employees' - Plan A 

December 31, 2006 
December 31, 2007 
December 31, 2008 

$ 

89 

Non-Uniformed Employees' Firefighters' 
Police 

Officers' 
Combined Plan A Plan B Combined 

$ $ 

$ $ 
=== 

Annual 
Pension 

CostCAPC) 

$ 

$ 

Percentage 
ofAPC 

Contributed 

% 

$ 285,274 
285,274 

$ 

Net Pension 
Obligation 

$ 
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Non-Uniformed Employees' - Plan B 

December 31, 2006 
December 31, 2007 
December 31, 2008 

Firefighters' Combined 

December 31, 2006 
December 31, 2007 
December 31, 2008 

Police Officers' - Combined 

December 31, 2006 
December 31 , 2007 
December 31, 2008 

Annual 
Pension 

Cost (APC) 

$ 

Annual 
Pension 

Cost (APC) 

$ 

Annual 
Pension 

Cost (APC) 

$ 512,593 
523,803 
285,274 

Percentage 
ofAPC Net Pension 

Contributed Obligation 

% $ 

Percentage 
ofAPC Net Pension 

Contributed Obligation 

% $ 

Percentage 
ofAPC Net Pension 

Contributed Obligation 

100% $ 
100 
100 

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as patt of the Januaty 1, 2007 
actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions for the 
Non-Uniformed Employees' Plan and Combined Firefighters' Plan include (a) a 6.00% investment rate 
of return (net of administrative expenses) and (b) projected salary increases of 4.50% per year. The 
actuarial assumptions for the combined Police Pension Fund include (a) an 8% investment rate of 
return (net of administrative expenses) and (b) projected salary increases of 5% per year. The 
assumptions do not include postretirement benefit increases, which are funded by State appropriation 
when granted. The actuarial value is determined using market values determined by the trustee. 

Cettain pension information and calculations are based upon actuarial valuations performed as of 
Januaty 1, 2007. The next actuarial valuation will be performed as of Januaty 1,2009 and will take into 
account subsequent declines in market value of investments being held in the pension plans. While the 
exact impact is not known, it is expected that the market declines will negatively impact the funding 
status of the pension plans and increase the future funding requirements ofthe pension plans. 

17. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

The City adopted GASB Statement No. 45, "Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for 
Postemployment Benefits Other than Pension, "prospectively for the year ended December 31,2008. 

Plall Descriptiolls 

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 16, the City provides certain post-employment 
healthcare benefits to its retirees through one single-employer, defined benefit other post-employment 
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benefit (OPEB) plan. However, within this one plan, there are four groups of employees with different 
types of benefits. A separate financial statement is not issued for the plan. 

Section 9 of the Basic Labor Agreement between the City of Harrisburg and the Fraternal Order of 
Police, Capital City Lodge No. 12, effective Januaty I, 2004, establishes retiree's eligibility for post
retirement life insurance and medical benefits. 

Retired prior to December 31, 1991: 

Benefits: The health care coverage cunently includes medical, prescription drugs, dental and 
vision. The City would pay the cost of coverage for the retiree, including spouse and 
dependents, from retirement until the retiree's Medicare eligibility. If retiree dies, coverage for 
spouse and dependents continues until the spouse reaches Medicare eligibility. Currently, two 
retirees have been "grandfathered" and the City continues to pay for coverage after Medicare 
age. Eligibility is suspended if the retiree has available coverage from a subsequent employer or 
through the spouse's employer. 

Retire after Janumy 1, 1992: 

Eligibility: Any officer that is eligible for the Police Pension Plan benefits 

Benefits: The health care coverage currently includes medical, prescription drugs, dental, vision 
and life insurance. The City would pay the full premium for paid-up life insurance in the 
amount of $5,000 for the retiree only. The City would pay the cost of coverage medical, 
prescription drug, dental, and vision for the retiree, including spouse and dependents. Eligibility 
is suspended if the retiree has available coverage from a subsequent employer or through the 
spouse's employer. 

Firefighters 

Article 14, Section 2a and 2b and Atticle 15 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement between Local 
Union No. 428 of the International Association of Firefighters (AFL-CIO), effective January 1,2006, 
establishes retiree's eligible for post-retirement medical and life insurance benefits, respectively. 

Retired prior to December 31, 1986: 

Benefits: The health care coverage currently includes medical, prescription drugs, dental and 
vision. The retiree would pay the cost of coverage for the retiree and his or her spouse. If the 
retiree dies, the spouse may continue coverage. In such case, the spouse would pay for the full 
cost of coverage. Eligibility is suspended if the retiree has available coverage from a 
subsequent employer or through the spouse's employer. 

Retired between Jam/my 1, 1987 and December 31, 1992: 

Benefits: The health care coverage currently includes medical, prescription drugs, dental and 
vision. The City would pay the cost of coverage for the retiree. The retiree must pay for any 
additional coverage for his or her spouse and dependents .. If the retiree dies, the spouse may 
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continue coverage, in which case the spouse would pay for the full cost of coverage. Eligibility 
is suspended if the retiree has available coverage from a subsequent employer or tlu'ough the 
spouse's employer. 

Retire ajlerJanumy 1, 1993: 

Eligibility: Any firefighter that is eligible for the Fire Pension Plan A or Plan B benefits 

Benefits: The health care coverage currently includes medical, prescription drugs, dental, vision 
and life insurance. The City would pay the full premium for paid-up life insurance in the 
amount of $5,000 for the retiree only. The City would pay the cost of coverage medical, 
prescription drug, dental, and vision for the retiree, including spouse through Medicare 
eligibility. Once Medicare eligible, the City will reimburse the retiree for the Medicare Part B 
premium. If the retiree dies, the City continues full coverage for the spouse and eligible 
dependents. If the firefighter dies in the line of duty, the City continues full coverage for the 
spouse and eligible dependents. Eligibility is suspended if the retiree has available coverage 
from a subsequent employer or through the spouse's employer. 

Non-uniformed management employees: 

An inter-office memo, distributed by the Mayor to City management employees, establishes retirees' 
eligibility for post-employment medical benefits. 

Refire prior fo AuguSf 4, 2002: 

Benefits: The health care coverage currently includes medical, prescription drugs, dental and 
vision. The retiree would pay the full cost of coverage for the retiree and his or her spouse. If 
the retiree dies, the spouse may continue coverage. In such case the spouse and any eligible 
dependents would pay for the full cost of coverage. Currently, four retirees have been 
"grand fathered" and the City continues to pay the cost full coverage. Eligibility is suspended if 
the retiree has available coverage from a subsequent employer or through the spouse's 
employer. 

Refire ajler August 5, 2002 alld hired prior fo Janumy 31, 2008: 

Eligibility: Any non-uniform management employee who IS eligible for the Non-uniform 
Pension Plan benefits. 

Benefits: The health care coverage currently includes medical, prescription drugs, dental, 
vision, and life insurance. The City would pay the full premium for paid-up life insurance in the 
amount of $5,000 for the retiree only. The City would pay the cost of coverage for medical and 
prescription drug for the retiree and spouse. The retiree would pay for any additional coverage 
for eligible dependents. Retiree would pay for dental and vision coverage. If retiree dies, full 
coverage for spouse and eligible dependents continues. In such case, the City would pay the 
full medical and prescription drug premium for the spouse and the spouse would pay for 
coverage for any eligible dependents. Eligibility is suspended if the retiree has available 
coverage from a subsequent employer or through the spouse's employer. 
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Retire after August 5, 2002 and hired after February 1, 2008: 

Eligibility: Any non-uniform management employee who IS eligible for the Non-uniform 
Pension Plan benefits. 

Benefits: The health care coverage currently includes medical, prescription drugs, dental, 
vision, and life insurance. The City would pay the full premium for paid-up life insurance in the 
amount of $5,000 for the retiree only. The City would pay the cost of coverage for medical 
coverage for the retiree. The retiree would pay for any additional coverage for spouse and any 
eligible dependents. Retiree would pay for prescription drug, dental, and vision coverage. If 
retiree dies, full coverage for spouse and eligible dependents continues. In such case, the 
spouse and eligible dependents would pay the full cost of coverage. Eligibility is suspended if 
the retiree has available coverage from a subsequent employer or through the spouse's 
employer. 

Non-uniformed union employees: 

Articles X, XI and XII of the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the City and the Local 521 
American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees District Council 90, effective JanuaIY 
1,2007, establish retirees' eligibility for post-retirement life insurance and medical benefits. 

Retire prior to December 31, 1996: 

Benefits: The health care coverage currently includes medical, prescription drugs, dental, and 
vision. The retiree would pay the cost of coverage for the retiree and his or her spouse and 
eligible dependents. If the retiree dies, the spouse may continue coverage. In such case, the 
spouse and any eligible dependents would pay for the full cost of coverage. Eligibility is 
suspended if the retiree has available coverage from a subsequent employer or through the 
spouse's employer. 

Retire between Janllmy 1,1997 alld December 31,2001: 

Benefits: The health care coverage currently includes medical, prescription drugs, dental, and 
vision. The City would pay fifty percent of the premium for single coverage. The retiree would 
pay the remaining fifty percent of the premium for single coverage. For any coverage other than 
single coverage, the retiree would pay the difference. Retiree would pay full premiums for 
prescription drug, dental, and vision. If retiree dies, full coverage for spouse and eligible 
dependents continues. In such case, the spouse and eligible dependents would pay for the full 
cost of coverage. Eligibility is suspended if the retiree has available coverage from a 
subsequent employer or through the spouse's employer. 

Retired between Jam/my 1, 2002 and May 30 2007, except between Jam/my 1, 2004 alld April 30, 
2004: 

Benefits: The health care coverage currently includes medical, prescription drugs, dental, and 
vision. The City would pay sixty percent of the premium for single coverage. The retiree 
would pay the remaining forty percent of the premium for single coverage. For any coverage 
other than single coverage, the retiree would pay the difference. Retiree would pay full 
premiums for prescription drug, dental, and vision. If retiree dies, full coverage for spouse and 
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eligible dependents continues. In such case, the spouse and eligible dependents would pay for 
the full cost of coverage. Eligibility is suspended if the retiree has available coverage from a 
subsequent employer or through the spouse's employer. 

Retired between Janllmy 1, 2004 and April 30, 2004: 

Benefits: The health care coverage currently includes medical, prescription drugs, dental, and 
vision. The City would pay the cost of coverage for the retiree. Retiree would pay for additional 
premiums for coverage for his or her spouse and eligible dependents. The City would pay for 
seventy-five percent of the coverage for prescription drug for the retiree. Retiree would pay for 
the remaining twenty-five percent of the coverage for prescription drug and for any additional 
coverage for his or her spouse and any eligible dependents. Retiree must pay for full coverage 
for dental and vision coverage. If retiree dies, full coverage for spouse and eligible dependents 
continues. In such case, the spouse and eligible dependents would pay for the full cost of 
coverage. Eligibility is suspended if the retiree has available coverage from a subsequent 
employer or tlu'ough the spouse's employer. 

Retire ajierJlIne 1,2007: 

Eligibility: Non-uniform union employee must be eligible for the Non-Uniform Pension Plan 
benefits. 

Benefits: The health care coverage currently includes medical, prescription drugs, dental, 
vision, and life insurance. The City would pay the full premium for paid-up life insurance in the 
amount of $5,000 for the retiree only. The City would pay the full cost single coverage or a 
percentage thereof based on the retiree's age and years of service. Otherwise, the retiree would 
pay the full cost of coverage. For any coverage other than single, the retiree would pay the 
difference in the premiums. Retirees would pay for prescription drug, dental, and vision 
coverage. If retiree dies, full coverage for spouse and eligible dependents continues. In such 
case, the spouse and eligible dependents would pay for the full cost of coverage. Eligibility is 
suspended if the retiree has available coverage from a subsequent employer or through the 
spouse's employer. 

Fllnding Policy amI AlIlIlIal OPEB Costs 

The City's contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. For the year 
ended December 31,2008, the City contributed $4,533,440 to the OPEB Plan. 

The City has opted to not fully fund the OPEB contributions and will continue to fund the annual 
OPEB costs on a pay-as-you-go basis. 

The City would pay the cost of coverage for the police, fire, non-uniform management and non
uniform union retirees (including dependents) based on the various criteria described above. 

The City'S annual OPEB costs are calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer 
(ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 
45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover 
normal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a 
period not to exceed thirty years. 
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Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of repOlied amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, 
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan 
and the ARC are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and 
new estimate are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress presents multiyear trend 
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time 
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 

Actuarial Methods alld Assumptiolls 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan and include 
the types of benefits provided at the time of the valuation and on the historical pattern of sharing of 
benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and 
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of shOli-term volatility in 
actuarial accrued liabilities consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculation. The projections 
of benefits for financial repOliing purposes do not explicitly incorporate the potential effects oflegal or 
contractual funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the employer and plan members 
in the future. 

Information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows: 

Valuation date 

Actuarial cost method 

Actuarial assumptions 
Interest rate 

SalalY increases 

Amortization period 
Healthcare cost trend 

rate 

1111200S 

Enhy age normal, level dollar 

95 

4.5% 
5.0% 

30 year open period 

S.5% 
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AllllualOPEB Cost al/d Net OPEB Obligatiol/ 

The City's annual OPEB costs and net OPEB obligations to the Plan for the year ended December 31, 
2008 were as follows: 

Annual required contribution 
Contribution made 

Change in Net OPEB Obligation 
Net OPEB Obligation, beginning 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 17,068,863 
(4,371,165) 

12,697,698 

Business-type 
Activities Total 

$ 767,747 $ 17,836,610 
(162,275) (4,533,440) 

605,472 13,303,170 

Net OPEB Obligation, ending $ 12,697,698 $ 605,472 $ 13,303,170 

Three- Year Trelld Illformatioll 

NetOPEB 
AnnualOPEB Percentage of Obligation 

Year Cost (AOC) AOC Contributed (Asset) 

2008 $ 17,836,610 25.42% $ 13,303,170 
2007 N/A N/A N/A 
2006 N/A N/A N/A 

N/A - Not Applicable; 2008 is implementation year for GASB Statement No. 45. 

FUl/ded Statlls al/d Schedule of FUl/dillg Progress 

Actuarial UAALasa 

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage 

Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered 

Valuation Assets - EnUy Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (alb) (c) (b-alc) 

11112008 $ $ 184,123,955 $ 184,123,955 0.00% $ 29,200,000 630.56% 

Note: Valuation as of 111/2008 represents the initial valuation for the Plan as required under GASB 
Statement No. 45. 
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18. SEGMENT INFORMATION 

The Harrisburg Authority supports two separate segments. The Water Segment accounts for the 
provision of basic water service to customers of the Harrisburg Water System. The Resource RecovelY 
Segment accounts for the activities at the Harrisburg Resource Recovery and Steam Generating 
Facility (Resource RecovelY Facility), which converts waste into energy. Selected segment information 
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008, is as follows: 

Resource 
Water Fund Recovery Fund 

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
Assets 

Current assets 
Other current assets $ 5,755,005 $ 3,400,438 
Due from (to) other funds 236,105 (621,929) 
Due from the City of Harrisburg 42,459 

Total current assets 6,033,569 2,778,509 

Restricted assets 35,037,620 29,659,195 
Capital assets 68,513,184 114,365,273 
Other noncurrent assets 5,309,991 10,135,212 

Total assets 114,894,364 156,938,189 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities 

Other current liabilities 3,354,769 820,892 
Due to the City of Harrisburg 162,339 163,099 

Total current liabilities 3,517,108 983,991 

Liabilities payable from restricted assets 3,989,487 15,979,154 
Noncurrent liabilities 139,305,279 260,433,087 
Due to the City of Harrisburg 551,202 56,434 

Total liabilities 147,363,076 277,452,666 

Net assets 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt (36,560,086) (117,814,726) 
Restricted 2,126,115 3,580,909 
Unrestricted 1,965,259 (6,280,660) 

Total net assets $ (32,468,712) $ (120,514,477) 
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CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

Resource 
Water Fund Recovery Fund 

Operating revenues $ 17,713,499 $ 22,198,705 

Operating expenses 
Operating 9,121,374 20,492,707 
Administration 300,000 212,175 
Depreciation 2,160,812 4,348,425 

Total operating expenses 11,582,186 25,053,307 

Operating income (loss) 6,131,313 (2,854,602) 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses) 
Investment income 965,645 777,242 
Miscellaneous revenue (expense) (674,025) 84,252 
Interest expense (9,798,083) (14,301,588) 
Amortization of bond issuance costs (436,398) (1,201,515) 

Total nonoperating expenses (9,942,861 ) (14,641,609) 

Change in net assets before extraordinary item (3,811,548) (17,496,211) 

Extraordinary item 3,580,909 

Change in net assets (3,811,548) (13,915,302) 

Net assets-
January I, 2008 (28,657,164) (106,599,175) 

Net assets-
December 31, 2008 $ (32,468,712) $ (120,5 14,477) 

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 9,007,354 $ 4,720,845 
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (3,200,823) 13,182,864 
Net cash used in capital and related 
financing activities (6,502,765) (16,969,923) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (696,234) 933,786 

Cash and cash equivalents, January I, 2008 5,395,896 1,852,529 

Cash and cash equivalents, December 31, 2008 $ 4,699,662 $ 2,786,315 
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19. EXTRAORDINARY ITEM 

The Harrisburg Authority has pursued standard civil litigation against the original designer and 
contractor of the Resource RecovelY Facility's retrofit project. On October 28, 2009, a settlement was 
entered into by all pmties. Pursuant to the settlement, The Harrisburg Authority is to receive 
approximately $5.4 million in settlement payments, with $1,8 million due to the attomeys representing 
The Harrisburg Authority in this matter. 

20. ACCUMULATED DEFICITS 

Harrisburg Parking Authority 

The Authority, a component unit, has an accumulated deficit of $9,885,716. The deficit resulted from 
losses on the extinguishment of debt in the amount of $2,549,981 and $992,836 in 1994 and 1993, 
respectively. This loss is essentially the cost of canying old bonds during the escrow period, and is 
increased by cumulative net loss of $6,342,899. 

rhe Harrisburg Authority 

The rate covenant calculation required under applicable trust indentures peltaining to The Harrisburg 
Authority's Resource RecovelY Facility financing has not been met for the year ended December 31, 
2008. If the facility fails to generate sufficient revenues to pay debt service on the Resource RecovelY 
Facility Revenue Bonds, Series A, D, E, and F of 2003, the Resource Recove!Y Facility Revenue 
Notes, Series Band C of 2003, the Resource RecovelY Facility Subordinate Variable Rate Revenue 
Notes, Series A of2002 or the Resource RecovelY Facility Revenue Bonds, Series A of 1998, or ceases 
revenue generating operations, or if other monies set aside for such purposes are insufficient, the City 
will be required to pay principal and interest on such bonds and notes when due pursuant to respective 
Guaranty Agreements among the City, The Harrisburg Authority, and the respective trustees for the 
bonds and notes. The County of Dauphin (County) has provided a secondmy guarantee of the Resource 
RecovelY Facility Revenue Bonds, Series D and E of 2003, collectively, in the maximum aggregate 
principal amount not to exceed $113,000,000 by entering into a County Bond Guaranty Agreement 
with The Harrisburg Authority and the trustee for such bonds. The Resource RecovelY segment has 
incurred substantial accumulated losses, which have caused the segment to experience cash flow 
difficulties. 

The Water and Resource Recovery segments of The Harrisburg Authority have accumulated deficits at 
December 31, 2008 of $32,468,712 and $120,514,477, respectively. The deficits are primarily due to 
The Harrisburg Authority not charging enough to cover depreciation expense incurred since acquisition 
and not funding amortization of bond discounts, deferred bond issuance costs and deferred losses on 
refundings. Management anticipates that the deficits will be reduced in the Water segment through 
future profitability improvements. 

The incinerator, operated as a component of the Resource Recovery Facility of The Harrisburg 
Authority, as required by the Environmental Protection Agency, was temporarily closed so that The 
Harrisburg Authority could undertake a modernization program. A significant financing was completed 
in December 2003 to fund the costs of the project. Additionally, the Resource RecovelY Fund has 
experienced significant operating losses, has an accumulated deficit of $120,514,477 at December 31, 
2008, and is in violation of celtain covenants under the trust indentures. The Authority has issued 
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multiple notices of material events with respect to celtain bonds of the Resource Recovery Facility. 
Many ofthe above items were due to delays and incompletion of the facility as originally anticipated. 

In the fall of 2007, The Harrisburg Authority developed a recovery plan for the Resource RecovelY 
Facility that requires completion of construction of the facilities to bring the three burners on line and 
up to operating efficiently. The Harrisburg Authority engaged Covanta Energy, Inc. (Covanta) to 
manage and operate the Facility and to provide professional services. Included in Covanta's Agreement 
with The Harrisburg Authority is a construction management agreement to oversee the completion of 
construction. The recovery plan also included increased disposal fees and tipping fees and infusion of 
capital for construction and working capital. The Harrisburg Authority's recovery plan was presented 
and approved by the City and County in November 2007. 

The completion of the retrofit project and correction of design flaws caused by the original contractor 
are funded by a loan from Covanta to pay for such work. Payment of the debt service on the Covanta 
loan will be fi'om revenue generated from the facility when all three burners are operating (although the 
Covanta loan is subordinate in payment to The Harrisburg Authority's prior debt relating to the 
Resource RecovelY Facility) and from the City's guaranty to pay debt service in the event of 
insufficient revenues being generated from the facility to pay principal of and interest on the Covanta 
loan. 

The Harrisburg Authority also obtained funding for a working capital loan to cover costs and debt 
service during the expected time period for completion of the retrofit project by the issuance of capital 
appreciation notes. Such notes for the working capital loan were issued in December of 2007 and will 
mature on December of 2010. Revenues from the Resource RecovelY Facility were not pledged as 
security for the working capital loan. The working capital loan was guaranteed by the City and the 
County on the assumption that the working capital loan would be refinanced into long term debt prior 
to or, at the latest, by December 2010. At the time of closing on the working capital loan, it was 
anticipated that the City and the County would guarantee any long term debt issued to take out the 
working capital loan. 

Due to delays in completing construction in that resulted in a revenue shortfall, the project has not met 
debt covenant coverage requirements. The covenant requirements will be closely monitored during the 
construction phase and following completion of construction. 

In 1993, The Harrisburg Authority purchased the Resource RecovelY Facility from the City. In 
consideration, The Harrisburg Authority paid the City approximately $30 million. The Agreement of 
Sale allows for a maximum purchase price of $55 million, with the final purchase price to be based on 
the financial capability of the Resource RecovelY Facility. The balance of the purchase price is to be 
paid to the City only after The Harrisburg Authority completes financing of the improvements to the 
Facility described earlier, in such amount as is set forth in a report of The Harrisburg Authority'S 
consulting engineer celtifYing that facility revenues upon completion of such improvements is 
sufficient to pay all operating expenses, debt service, and any other facility funding requirements. 
There were no additional payments required during the year ended December 31, 2008. 

Harrisburg Redevelopment Authority 

The Redevelopment Authority net asset (deficit) at December 31, 2008 is related to the 1998 Series A 
and B bond issuances. Since no asset is recorded related to these debt issuances, the total debt 
outstanding reduces unrestricted net assets. The outstanding debt on these issuances is $41,387,706. 
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These debt issuances reduced the govemmental activities net assets from a positive $744,456 to the 
deficit balance of $40,294,250. The City of Harrisburg guarantees the payment of those bond 
issuances. In addition, the Redevelopment Authority wiII gain title to certain buildings in the year 2016 
in relation to the issuance ofthese bonds. 

Funds sufficient to provide for the Redevelopment Authority's Transportation Center deficits are to be 
made from future activities according to management. In addition, a reservation of fund balance has 
been made in the Redevelopment Authority's General Fund in the amount of $22,262. The reservation 
in the amount of $23 1,073 in the Redevelopment Authority's Transpoltation Center Fund is assets held 
from a debt issuance to be used for construction expenses or repayment of debt. 

21. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

In the nonnal course of business, there are outstanding various commitments and contingent liabilities 
in addition to the normal encumbrances for the purchase of goods and services. 

Federal and State 

Under the terms of federal and state grants, periodic audits are required and celtain costs may be 
questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the terms of the grants. Such audits could lead 
to reimbursement to the grantor agencies. City management believes disallowances, if any, will be 
immaterial. 

Construction Commitments 

Primary Govemment 

The City has contractual commitments for construction, engineering and licensing related to the City 
propelties of approximately $806,354. 

Component Units 

The Harrisburg Authority 

The HatTisburg Authority entered into an Administrative Services and Interim Operation and 
Maintenance Agreement (Interim Agreement) with a Covanta for operation and management of the 
Resource Recovery Facility effective Januaty 2, 2007 through March 31, 2007. During the interim 
agreement period, Covanta provided all day-to-day administrative services, provided a Construction 
Plan and coordinated all constl1lction, stalt-up performance testing, operation and maintenance services 
for the Facility. The Harrisburg Authority deposited $100,000 with Covanta, which was used to pay for 
the first arising reimbursable expenses under the Agreement. On the 15th and 30th day of each month, 
The Harrisburg Authority paid Covanta 1I24th of the annual amount set fOlth in the estimated 
operating budget. Each month, Covanta reconciled the actual reimburseable expenses to the payments 
made by the Authority. For all reimburseable expenses incun'ed during the month in excess of such 
payments, Covanta submitted an invoice for such excess by the 10th day of the following month, which 
was to be paid by the Authority within 30 days. Reimbursable expenses are defined in the agreement. 
The Harrisburg Authority also paid an administrative service charge to Covanta in the amount of II % 
of reimbursable expenses. The Interim Agreement was extended, on a month to month basis, through 
Janumy 31, 2008. 
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The Harrisburg Authority entered into a Management and Professional Services Agreement with 
Covanta to provide constlUction and operations management services for a period of ten years and the 
Retrofit Completion work. The terms and conditions of this agreement are substantially the same as the 
Interim Agreement, except that the management fee is $875,000 per month, escalated annually each 
calendar year. As of December 2008, Covanta has asserted a claim against The Hml'isburg Authority 
for approximately $1.3 million for reimbursable expenses and management fees, a substantial portion 
of which was incurred during the year ended December 31,2008 and is included in accounts payable of 
The Hall'isburg Authority at December 31, 2008. 

During the year ended December 31,2008, The Harrisburg Authority entered into various construction 
contracts related to the construction of the Resource RecovelY Facility. The original amount of the 
contracts, including change orders, was $8,700,560. At December 31, 2008, the balance remaining 
under these contracts was $4,333,460, with $3,204,997 recorded in accounts payable. 

Harrisburg Parking Authority 

On February 25, 2005, the Authority executed an agreement with PSEA, whereby the Authority agreed 
to acquire PSEA property in order to construct the South Street Garage. The consideration for the 
PSEA real property is the long-term parking rights in sixty-four parking spaces, which have a final 
determination value of $13,750 per parking space upon the completion of the parking garage. The 
initial option period to acquire these parking rights commenced on the date the South Street Garage 
was completed and made available for use by PSEA and expires on the fifth anniversary of such date. 
In addition to this option, the Authority also agreed to lease to PSEA up to eighty-nine parking spaces 
at the South Street Garage. At its option, PSEA may extinguish the discounted lease rate at the River 
Street Garage, on some or all of its discounted leased spaces, in exchange for the remaining term of the 
discount as per the agreement between PSEA and the Authority dated August 25, 1999. When all sixty 
spaces at the River Street Garage for which PSEA has a right to a discount has been extinguished, no 
fmiher discounts will accrue or be available to PSEA. All rights to discounts will expire based upon 
the expiration of the term of discount available to PSEA at the River Street Garage. The period of the 
agreement is for twenty-five years. In March 2008, PSEA exercised this option and acquired sixty 
parking rights at $13,750 each, totaling $825,000. 

On January 11, 2007, the Authority entered into an agreement with Harrisburg University of Science 
and Technology (University), whereby the Authority intends to purchase a condominium unit in a 
building to be constructed by the University. The condominium unit will consist of seven floors of 
parking facilities which will include approximately 392 parking spaces. The total purchase price of 
this unit is $14,000,000, which was financed through the issuance of the Guaranteed Parking Revenue 
Bonds, Series R of2007. The agreement required an earnest money deposit in the amount of$IOO,OOO 
payable upon execution of the agreement and twenty-four equal monthly payments of $579,167, 
commencing Janumy 2007. As of December 31, 2008, $14,000,500 represents the Authority'S portion 
of equitable ownership interest in the property. All required payments have been made as of December 
31,2008. 

In addition to the aforementioned agreement, the Authority also entered into an Option to Purchase 
agreement with the University on Janumy II, 2007, whereby the Authority agrees to lease three 
hundred parking permits to the University for the right to park in the condominium unit. The 
agreement commences when the construction of the garage is complete and when the legal title to the 
parking units has been conveyed to the Authority. The first year's rent for the leased spaces shall be the 
fair market rate, multiplied by 300 for parking spaces located within the central business district 
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parking garages owned and operated in the City by the Authority. The Authority also grants the 
University a total of five options to purchase the parking units, the first option commencing on Januaty 
II, 2017, and the remaining options commencing on each succeeding five-year anniversaty date. The 
options shall be exercisable with at least six months advance written notice by the University to the 
Authority. The period of this agreement is thirty years. 

Downtown Coordinated Parking Fund 

Parking revenue generated from nine parking garages, on-street parking meters and City-owned surface 
lots, net of expenses, are deposited to the Downtown Coordinated Parking Fund (CPF). The 
"Cooperation Agreement for Downtown Coordinated Parking System," dated June 27, 1984, as 
amended and restated on December 3, 1991, as further amended on March 16, 1994, requires the 
Harrisburg Parking Authority (HPA) to deposit, at least quarterly, the new revenues from the garages, 
parking meters, city lots and any unrestricted administrative fund balance into the Coordinated Parking 
Fund. The CPF currently secures the HPA Series N Bonds of 2003. Any excess fund balance is 
transferred to the City of Harrisburg annually. During the year, the City received a refund of 
$4,750,000 representing excess amounts deposited into the system for 2008. 

Guarantees 

The City is contingently liable under various agreements which guarantee debt of entities not included 
in the primaty government's financial statements aggregating $447,931,843 at December 31,2008, and 
maturing at various dates through 2034. Of the $447,931,843, $441,118,870 is for guarantees of 
component unit debt. 

Capital Area Transit (CAT) entered into an agreement to receive federal matching funds for the 
purchase of 30 new replacement buses and for the enhancement of its service, through the addition of 
new bus routes and expansion of existing routes. CAT authorized and issued its Revolving Revenue 
Note of 2003 (CAT 2003 Note) in the amount of $1 ,400,000. As an inducement to CAT to unde/take 
the authorization and issuance of the CAT 2003 Note, the City of Harrisburg, Cumberland County and 
Dauphin County agreed to make certain annual payments to CAT through December 31, 2011. These 
payments are to be utilized to pay the debt service on the CAT 2003 Note. The City of Harrisburg 
agreed to pay $243,168 to CAT on an annual basis. 

The Harrisburg Authority guaranteed a line-of-credit on behalf of the National Civil War Museum. The 
maximum amount available under the line-of-credit is $500,000. As required by the agreement, 
$250,000 has been placed in a separate account and this amount is included on the Statement of Net 
Assets as restricted cash and cash equivalents. 

Landfill Closure al/(I Post-closure Care Costs 

State and federal laws and regulations require The Harrisburg Authority to properly close and place a 
final impermeable cover on its Ash Residue Disposal Landfills when they no longer accept waste and 
to perform certain ongoing maintenance and monitoring activities at the site for up to thitty years after 
closure. The original estimated total cost of closure and post-closure care costs was $1,670,206, based 
on an agreement with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania pursuant to state regulations and was subject 
to change with inflation, deflation, technology, or applicable laws and regulations. During 2007, under 
the original closure and post closure agreement, The Harrisburg Authority was required by state 
regulations and its permit to make quarterly payments of$30,014 to the Consolidated Closure Trust. 

103 



CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2008 

On December 31, 2007, the original consolidated trust was terminated and a new account was 
established, At that time, The Harrisburg Authority estimated the closure and post-closure costs to be 
$1,442,617, A variable rate promissOlY note (Line of Credit) was entered into with a financial 
institution for $1,442,617, The line of credit supports the Letter of Credit #1805 issued to the 
Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection, On May 5, 2008, this promissOlY note was 
amended to $2,355,713 based on a revised closure and post-closure cost estimate, 

In an eff0l1 to extend the life of the landfill, in April 2008, The Harrisburg Authority began mining the 
ash to recover ferrous and nonferrous metals contained in the ash residue, Beginning in August 2008, 
the ash from the processed metal was removed from the landfill and taken offsite, This resulted in 
reduced ash volume thereby further extending the life of the landfill area, To maintain continued ash 
disposal operations, a plan was prepared to extend the site life of the landfill until an expansion can be 
permitted and constructed, It is expected to take four years to complete the pennitting and initial 
constmction process, During that four-year period, mining and off-site disposal of processed ash will 
continue, as well as off-site transp0l1ation of ash generated by the facility, 

The Harrisburg Authority has accrued $2,270,163 for landfill closure and post-closure care costs as of 
December 31, 2008, which represents the use of 96.4% of the estimated capacity of the disposal area, 
Based on the annual usage at December 31, 2008, the estimated remaining life of the landfill is 
approximately six months. Under the new closure and post-closure agreement, The Harrisburg 
Authority is required by state regulations and its permit to make quarterly payments of $170,000 to the 
Consolidated Closure Trust. The Harrisburg Authority is in compliance with those requirements at 
December 31, 2008. 

As of December 31, 2008, cash and investments of $1,511,097 are held for closure and post-closure 
care expenses. Those funds are reported as restricted assets on the Statement of Net Assets. 

During 2009, The Harrisburg Authority received a landfill permit extension for another foul' years. The 
capacity will last that long, if The Harrisburg Authority continues to remove ash from the landfill for 
disposal/beneficial use at another landfill, as fast as it is generated at the Harrisburg landfill. 

22. COMPLIANCE 

Primary Govemmeflf 

Management of the City believes that the City has complied, in all material respects, with all applicable 
finance related legal and contractual provisions including applicable covenants of bond indentures. 
However, under the continuing disclosure unde11aking, the City has covenanted to file its secondary 
market disclosures within 270 days of the end of their fiscal year. Additionally, the various trust 
indentures require the City to submit its audited financial statements to the trustee within 180 days. The 
financial statements were not completed by either date. In addition, there is ongoing litigation 
regarding the City's obligation under certain guarantees of The Harrisburg Authority'S debt, as 
discussed in Note 25. 
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Component Units 

The Harrisburg Authority 

Resource RecovelY Facility 

The rate covenant calculation required under applicable trust indentures peliaining to The Harrisburg 
Authority's Resource Recovery Facility financing has not been met for the year ended December 31, 
2008. 

Additionally, under the continuing disclosure undertaking, The Harrisburg Authority has covenanted to 
file its secondmy market disclosures within 270 days of the end of their fiscal year. Additionally, the 
various trust indentures require The Harrisburg Authority to submit its audited financial statements to 
the trustee within 180 days. The financial statements were not completed by either date. 

Under the trust indentures, The Harrisburg Authority is required to maintain celiain minimum balances 
in the Resource Recovery operating reserve fund. At December 31,2008, The Harrisburg Authority's 
balance in the Resource RecoveJY operating reserve fund was $219 and the reserve requirement was 
$3,763,974. The trust indenhlre states that if the balance in the Resource RecovelY operating reserve 
fund becomes deficient, The Harrisburg Authority is to restore the balance with twelve substantially 
equal installments. There has been no replenishment of the Resource Recovery operating reserve fund 
through the date of this repOli. 

The Resource Recovery Facility's 2008 and 2009 budgets were approved by the Board of Directors in 
December 2007 and June 2009, respectively. As required under the trust indentures, the budgets are 
required to be approved 30 days prior to the end of the calendar year. Additionally, the 2008 and 2009 
consulting engineers' reports, which are due, per the trust indenture, 90 days prior to the end of the 
calendar year, were not received by The Harrisburg Authority until 2009. Finally, management has not 
instituted a system to calculate the rate covenant requirement noted earlier. 

Wafer Fund 

The Water Facility's 2008 and 2009 budgets were approved by the Board of Directors in March 2008 
and June 2009, respectively. As required under the trust indenture, the budget is required to be 
approved 30 days prior to the end of the calendar year and provided to the bond insurer within 120 
days of year-end. Additionally, the 2008 consulting engineers' repOli, which is due, per the trust 
indenture, within 90 days prior to the end of the calendar year, was not received by the Authority until 
July 2009. Finally, management has not instituted a system to calculate the rate covenant requirement. 

23. LITIGATION 

The City is involved in several lawsuits arising in the normal course of business. Management believes 
that none of the litigation outstanding against the City will have a material adverse effect on the 
financial position of the City at December 31, 2008, except as discussed in Note 25. 

On December 31, 2003, The Harrisburg Authority entered into the Non-Exclusive Technology Sub
Licensing Agreement and Technology Purchase Agreement with the original contractor of the 
Resource RecovelY Facility retrofit project. The original contractor granted The Harrisburg Authority a 
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license to utilize the Combustion Technology at the Facility. The Sub-License Agreement is to 
continue in effect until the date on which the Combustion Technology is no longer used at the Facility. 

To raise the funds necessary to complete the project, the original contractor sold its Technology 
License to CIT - Newcolllt Capital (CIT) for $25 million. In turn, The Harrisburg Authority and 
original contractor entered into a First Amended and Restated Nonexclusive Technology Sublicensing 
Agreement and Technology Purchase Agreement (Amended Purchase Agreement) granting continued 
right to The HarrisburgAuthority to make full use of the Combustion Technology for all intended 
purposes under the Equipment Agreement, and for no other plllpose; provided, that The Han'isburg 
A uthority may expand or increase the number of units at the Facility without the consent of the 
Licensor and without payment of any additional fees. This Amended Purchase Agreement has since 
been assigned to CIT. 

Under the sublicense, The Harrisburg Authority will pay to CIT the following fees: 

Base Fee - For each calendar quatter ending prior to Januaty I, 2026, The Harrisburg Authority will 
pay to Licensor/Seller, on or prior to the first business day of the immediately following calendar 
quarter (base fee) an amount equal to: 

• For calendar quatters ending March 31, 2006 and June 30, 2006, $500,000; 
• For each calendar quatter thereafter prior to the calendar quarter during which the $25 million 

is repaid, $750,000; and 
• For each calendar quarter following the calendar quatter during which the $25 million has been 

repaid occurs and prior to the calendar quarter in which the Purchase Date occurs, $.50 per ton 
of waste processed through each Combustion Unit during the applicable calendar quatter. 

Supplemental Fee - For each calendar year ending on or after December 31, 2006 and prior to the 
repayment of the $25 million, The Hat1'isburg Authority will pay to CIT an amount equal to 95% of the 
excess revenues (defined as funds available after the payment of facility expenses defined as actual 
expenses incurred by The Harrisburg Authority in the operation, maintenance and ownership of the 
Facility: such expenses to include all operating and debt service expenses and mandated governmental 
fees and costs, and payments required to be made from the revenue fund into the following trust funds: 
the debt service fund, the debt service reserve fund, the operating reserve fund, the renewal and 
replacement fund, and any other specified funds into which mandatory deposits or transfers are 
required under the terms of the existing authority indenture documents, but excluding the surplus fund 
and the redemption fund and disregarding amounts paid into and disbursed out of the purchase and 
remarketing fund). 

During the year ended December 31, 2006, The Harrisburg Authority paid the base fee of $2.5 million 
to CIT under the Amended Purchase Agreement. There were no supplemental fees due for the year 
ended December 31, 2006. There were no payments made under this agreement in 2007 or 2008. 

CIT is assetting that, pursuant to one of the many agreements signed on or about January II, 2006, the 
Authority is required to repay this obligation because of the ensuing bankruptcy of Barlow, the original 
designer and contractor of the Resource RecovelY Facility's retrofit project. CIT has given notice of 
default and intention to institute suit in November, whereupon The Harrisburg Authority filed a 
complaint with the Dauphin County COlllt for declaratOlY judgment alleging, among other things, that 
the agreements upon which CIT was asserting its claims constituted ultra vires acts of The Harrisburg 
Authority, based upon its lack of power to guaranty a debt of its contractor, as well as the fact that it 
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had already paid for the full cost of construction, including the license fee for Barlow's technology. 
Additionally, there were several other defenses presented, including a lack of consideration for the 
agreements. 

The declaratory judgment action was filed in Januaty of 2008, in the Court of Common Pleas of 
Dauphin County. CIT and Aireal filed an Answer with Counterclaim, as well as a Motion to Transfer 
the case to the U.S. District COlllt for the Middle District of Pennsylvania. The case is presently in 
federal court in an extended discovery phase. Thousands of documents have been reviewed and over 15 
depositions have been taken in the case. The case does not have a trial date at this point, as discovelY 
issues are being resolved by the COlllt. It is expected that following resolution of discovery disputes, all 
patties will file dispositive motions and, barring resolution through motions, will proceed to trial. 

The management of The Harrisburg Authority has responded to the litigation by authorizing counsel to 
contest the counterclaim vigorously, and also to pursue vigorously the declaratory judgment that would 
void and invalidate the agreements upon which CIT relies. 

The Harrisburg Authority believes it has a reasonable and valid basis upon which to defend against the 
claims of CIT and Aireal, as well as reasonable and valid basis, in the event of an adverse verdict in 
favor of CIT, to successfully pursue a claim for reimbursement or indemnification from the 
professionals who negligently advised it on the transactions. 

There are two pending cases before the Dauphin County COlllt of Common Pleas in which 
subcontractors of Barlow, unable to collect from Barlow for work performed at the Resource RecovelY 
Facility, have sued The Harrisburg Authority, basically for proceeding without payment bonds or other 
adequate security for payment and based on unjust enrichment. Only one of the two subcontractors is 
actively pursuing the claim as of October 2009 and this claim, which dates from May 2006, is in the 
amount of $529,550 plus interest, costs, etc. 

The Harrisburg Authority is involved in litigation involving malfunction of the steam turbine at the 
Resource RecovelY Facility. The claims stem from The Harrisburg Authority's purchase of a steam
turbine generator. Two incidents occurred involving a power outage which, after subsequent failures 
of the back-up lubrication system, resulted in severe damage to moving palts within the turbine 
generator and other propelty, including the rotor. Additionally, an inspection of the turbine blades 
conducted during the repairs revealed a defect in the eighth stage blade, which occurred during the 
manufacturing process of the steam turbine generator. The Harrisburg Authority is involved in the 
asseltion of a claim against the manufacturer, which was filed in April 2009. In November 2009, the 
manufacturer filed an amended counter-claim versus The Harrisburg Authority for breach of contract. 
The manufacturer asserts that The Harrisburg Authority has not paid approximately $450,000 in repair 
bills that were submitted to The Harrisburg Authority. The Harrisburg Authority's management is 
currently investigating the facts underlying the counterclaim. 

The Redevelopment Authority filed suit against a tenant of the TranspOltation Center for non-payment 
of rent. The tenant filed a counterclaim for damages due to the Redevelopment Authority taking 
possession of a portion of the Transportation Center from the lessee. The outcome of this claim and 
counterclaim can not be determined; therefore, no liability, if any, as a result of the outcome of this 
claim has been reflected in the financial statements. 
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24. TRANSACTIONS WITH COMPONENT UNIT 

In accordance with the respective Articles 5 of the Second Supplemental Agreement of Lease, as 
amended by the Third Supplemental Agreement of Lease and the Collection System Lease between 
The Harrisburg Authority and the City of Hal1'isburg, Pennsylvania, the City is, at the end of each lease 
year, required to accumulate amounts in the sewer revenue accounts, after withdrawals for operating 
expense obligations, until the balance is such that the reserve shall equal the sum of (1) one-half of the 
lease rental due under the next lease year, and (2) one-half of the annual operating expenses as 
estimated by the consulting engineers, for the next succeeding lease year. Additionally, after the 
required reserve balance is attained, the City is required to pay any excess funds to The Hal1'isburg 
Authority within 190 days after the end of the year. The City may withdraw funds from the reserve 
account to satisfY lease payments as required by the Collection System Lease agreement. The City's 
required reserves in excess of funds available at December 31,2008 were $4,576,897. 

25. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

In the fall of 2008, The Harrisburg Authority suggested a rate increase for the City and County. The 
City's rate increase went into effect on January I, 2009. The County rejected The Harrisburg 
Authority's request and became the subject of arbitration proceedings in Januaty 2009. The arbitrator's 
decision resulted in The Harrisburg Authority's inability to comply with the bond indenture's rate 
covenants and loss of projected 2009 revenue in the amount of$13.1 million. 

On March 20, 2009, The Harrisburg Authority issued a notice of material event with respect to The 
Harrisburg Authority'S Series A Bonds of 1998. The 1998 Series A, B, and C Debt Service Account 
did not have sufficient funds to pay the scheduled interest payment of $280,908 due on the 1998 Series 
A Bonds on March 1,2009. The amount of $86,662 was on deposit with the Trustee with respect to the 
1998 Series A Bonds resulting in a deficiency of$195,346. Pursuant to terms of the trust indenture and 
the City Bond Guaranty, the Trustee notified The Harrisburg Authority and the City of such deficiency 
in the 1998 Series A, B, and C Debt Service Account. Accordingly, the City transferred monies to the 
Trustee to address the deficiency. Although a material event notice has not been filed, The Harrisburg 
Authority was unable to make the September I, 2009 debt service payment with respect to the 1998 
Series A Bonds in the amount of $315,908. The City transferred monies to the Trustee to address the 
deficiency in the amount of$213,863. 

On June 22, 2009, The Harrisburg Authority issued a uotice of material event with respect to The 
Harrisburg Authority's Series A Notes of 2002. The 2002 Debt Service Account did not have 
sufficient funds to pay the scheduled interest payment of $446,732 due on the 2002 Series A Notes on 
May 1,2009. The amount of $5,749 was on deposit with the Tl1Istee with respect to the 2002 Series A 
Notes resulting in a deficiency of $440,983. Pursuant to terms of the trust indenture and the City Note 
Guaranty, the Trustee notified The Harrisburg Authority and the City of such deficiency in the 2002 
Debt Service Account. Accordingly, the City transferred monies to the Trustee to address the 
deficiency. The City has also funded a portion of the November 1,2009 payment due on the Series A 
Notes of 2002 in the amount of $395,732. The balance of the November 1, 2009 payment, in the 
amount of$801,000, was paid from The Harrisburg Authority's Debt Service Reserve Fund. 

On March 20, 2009, The Harrisburg Authority issued a notice of material event with respect to The 
Harrisburg Authority's Series A, B, and C Bonds of 2003. The Series of 2003 Debt Service Accounts 
did not have sufficient funds to pay the scheduled interest payments in the amount of $647,262, 
$538,073, and $607,125 due on the Series A, B, and C of 2003 Bonds, respectively, on March 1,2009. 
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The amount of $16,612, $16,581, and $16,596 was on deposit with the Trustee with respect to the 
Series A, B, and C of 2003 Bonds, respectively, resulting in a deficiency of $630,650, $521,492, and 
$590,529. Pursuant to terms of the trust indenture and the City Bond Guaranty, the Trustee notified 
The Harrisburg Authority and the City of such deficiency in the Series of 2003 Debt Service Accounts. 
Accordingly, the City transferred monies to the Trustee to address the deficiency. Although a material 
event notice has not been filed, The Harrisburg Authority was unable to make the September I, 2009 
debt service payment with respect to the Series A, B, and C Bonds of 2003 in the amount of 
$1,792,460. The City transferred monies to the Trustee to address the deficiency. 

On July 16 and July 22, 2009, The Harrisburg Authority issued a notice of material event with respect 
to The Harrisburg Authority's Series 0-1, D-2, E, and F Bonds of2003. The Series of2003 0-1, D-2, 
E, and F Retrofit Debt Service Accounts did not have sufficient funds to pay the scheduled interest 
payments in the amount of$I,062,450, $1,625,000, $353,030, and $344,895 due on the Series D-I, 0-
2, E, and F of 2003 Bonds, respectively, on June I, 2009. The amount of $200,982, $34, $3, and 
$72,636 was on deposit with the Trustee with respect to the Series D-I, D-2, E, and F Bonds of2003, 
respectively, resulting in a deficiency of $861,468, $1,624,966, $353,027, and $272,259. The trust 
indenture and the City Bond Guaranty Agreement provide that if there are insufficient revenues 
available from the operation of The Harrisburg Authority's Resource RecovelY Facility to pay debt 
service on the Series D- I, D-2, E, and F Bonds, then the Trustee is to draw upon the City Bond 
Guaranty as such term is defined in the City Bond Guaranty Agreement for the monies for debt service. 
Pursuant to terms of the trust indenture and the City Bond Guaranty, the Trustee notified The 
Harrisburg Authority and the City of such deficiency in the Series of 2003 D-I, D-2, E, and F Retrofit 
Debt Service Accounts. However, the City notified the Trustee that the City was not able to transfer 
funds for the debt service payment due on the Series D-I, D-2, E, and F Bonds on June 1,2009. Upon 
the failure of the City to advance monies as required under the City Bond Guaranty Agreement, the 
Tmstee then withdrew $861,468, $1,624,966, $353,027, and $272,259, respectively, from the 20030, 
E, and F Bonds Subaccount of the Retrofit Debt Service Reserve Account of the Debt Service Reserve 
Fund on May 26, 2009 in accordance with the trust indenture and transferred such amount to the 
Retrofit Debt Service Account to address the deficiency in such account for the payment of interest on 
the Series D-I, D-2, E, and F Bonds on June I, 2009. The City has also funded a portion of the 
December 1, 2009 payment due on the Series D-I, D-2, E, and F Bonds in the amount of $832,850. 
The balance of the December 1, 2009 payment, in the amount of $5,282,525, was paid from The 
Harrisburg Authority's Debt Service Reserve Fund. 

Deficiencies in the Debt Service Reserve Accounts are to be repaid in not more than 12 substantially 
equal monthly payments on the first day of the month after the occurrence of such deficiency. As of 
November 2009, The Harrisburg Authority has not made any payments to replenish the Debt Service 
Reserve Accounts, whose total deficiency is approximate $11 million. 

Additionally, the County made payments in the amount of $284,195 and $491,458 on June 1,2009 
under the County Guaranty with respect to the Series D-l and D-2 Cap agreement and the Series D-I 
and D-2 Swap agreement, respectively. The County has also funded the December 1,2009 payments in 
the amount of approximately $1.5 million. The City made payments in the amount of $637,500 during 
July 2009 and again in October 2009 under the guaranty with respect to construction loan fi'om 
Covanta. It is anticipated that the Janumy 2010 payment will need to be funded by the City. 

In July 2009, the County initiated a suit against The Harrisburg Authority, the City and the individual 
officials, City Council members and the Mayor of Harrisburg. The County is seeking reimbursement of 
its payment made on June 1, 2009, in the amount of $775,653, pursuant to its guaranty obligations 
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under the County Swap Guaranty agreement. The County fmiher seeks to compel The Harrisburg 
Authority to pay the amount of $2,795,386 to replenish a Debt Service Reserve Fund pursuant to a 
Retrofit Indenture and the Reimbursement Agreement. In addition, the County seeks an equitable 
accounting by The Harrisburg Authority, disclosure of information, and an order compelling The 
Harrisburg Authority to make all future swap payments and payments under the Retrofit Indenture in a 
complete and timely manner. In December 2009, the County made another payment under this 
guaranty in the amount of approximately $1.5 million which may also become the subject of further 
action on behalf of the County. 

The HalTisburg Authority has indicated that it will contest the County's lawsuit. The relevant 
documents in this case require that The Harrisburg Authority reimburse the County and City for 
payments each makes under the relevant guaranty agreements. But these agreements place the County 
in a subordinate position of priority where they are paid after all debt service is paid and are only paid 
with revenues generated by the Resource Recovery Facility. The Harrisburg Authority will vigorously 
contest any effort by the County to ignore the documents and the priority they dictate. Additionally, 
The HaITisburg Authority has been strained in meeting its obligations under the Swap Agreement, and 
its ability to replenish a debt service reserve fund, due to the County's refusal to negotiate or agree to 
an increased tipping fee. The Harrisburg Authority asselis that the County has frustrated The 
Harrisburg Authority's ability to comply with its contractual undertakings. 

The City has indicated that it is contesting the County's lawsuit. The relevant documents in this case 
require that the City reimburse the County for payments the County made under its guaranty agreement 
relevant to the 2003 Swap agreement. 

During 2009, The Harrisburg Authority has entered into various construction contracts in the amount 
of approximately $4.4 million. 

The Harrisburg Authority is a pmty to several debt service forward delivery agreements with Lehman 
Brothers Special Financing, Inc. (Lehman Special Financing) in connection with celiain bonds or notes 
relating to The Harrisburg Authority's Water System and Resource Recovery Facility. In the fall of 
2008, Lehman Special Financing filed for bankruptcy protection under the U. S. Bankruptcy Code. As 
of the date hereof, neither The Harrisburg Authority not Lehman Special Financing has terminated the 
outstanding debt service forward delivery agreements. 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS - GENERAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Variance Variance 
of Original of Actual 
with Final with Final 

Budget Budget Budget 
Original Final Positive Actual Positive 
Amounts Amounts (Ne~ative) Amounts (Negative) 

Revenues 
Taxes $ 25,796,950 $ 25,796,950 $ $ 26,744,584 $ 947,634 
Licenses and permits 534,000 534,000 531,042 (2,958) 
I ntergovernmcntal revenue 8,756,000 8,756,000 8,629,774 (126,226) 
Departmental earnings 19,500,976 19,500,976 19,692,158 191,182 
Fines and forfeits 1,726,000 1,726,000 2,101,557 375,557 
Investment income 290,400 290,400 442,924 152,524 
Miscellaneous 856,000 856,000 1,228,339 372,339 

Total revenues 57,460,326 57,460,326 59,370,378 1,910,052 

Expenditures 
General government 

Elected and appointed offices 
City Council 489,085 489,085 382,111 106,974 
Mayor 448,703 448,703 409,043 39,660 
City Controller 245,918 245,918 235,155 10,763 
City Treasurer 743,230 743,230 580,455 162,775 
City Solicitor 346,796 373,796 (27,000) 367,153 6,643 
Office orCHy Engineer 1,753,765 1,753,765 1,509,188 244,577 
Human Relations Commission 196,470 196,470 140,992 55,478 
Mayor's Office of Economic 
Development 509,293 509,293 399,311 109,982 

Total elected and appointed 
offices 4,733,260 4,760,260 (27,000) 4,023,408 736,852 

Office of administration 
Administration 3,432,639 3,405,639 27,000 3,065,512 340,127 
General expenditures 3,155,940 3,101,440 54,500 2,795,239 306,201 

Total general government 11,321,839 11,267,339 54,500 9,884,159 1,383,180 

Building and housing development 1,029,949 1,084,449 (54,500) 1,062,359 22,090 
Public safety 29,249,723 29,249,723 28,222,527 1,027,196 
Public works 5,981,999 5,981,999 5,527,585 454,414 
Parks and recreation 2,900,332 2,900,332 2,781,023 119,309 

Total expenditures 50,483,842 50,483,842 47,477,653 3,006,189 

Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures before other financing 
sources (uses) 6,976,484 6,976,484 11,892,725 4,916,241 

Other financing sources (uscs) 
Transfers in 1,411,337 1,411,337 821,245 (590,092) 
Transfers out ( 10,384,905) (10,384,905) (14,162,835) (3,777,930) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (8,973,568) (8,973,568) (13,341,590) (4,368,022) 

Net change in fund balance (1,997,084) (1,997,084) (1,448,865) 548,219 

Fund balances M beginning of year, 
budgetary basis 1,997,084 1,997,084 12,335,864 10,338,780 

Fund balances Mend of year, 
budgetary basis $ $ $ $ 10,886,999 $ 10,886,999 

112 



CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - BUDGETARY COMPARISON 
SCHEDULE 
DECEMBER 31,2008 
REOUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

1. BUDGETARY DATA 

Annual budgets are legally adopted for the General Fund, Debt Service Fund, State Liquid Fuels 
Tax Fund (nonmajor governmental fund), and for the Sewer (net of applicable activity of The 
Harrisburg Authority) and Sanitation Funds. Budgets for governmental funds are prepared on a 
cash basis with respect to revenues and on an item voucher basis with respect to expenditures. 
Specific funds exempted from legally adopted budgetary requirements include: 

• Grant Programs Fund 
• Capital Projects Fund 
• Parks and Property Improvement Fund (non major governmental fund) 
• Harrisburg Senators Fund 

Over 30 different grant programs, which are accounted for in the grant programs fund, are 
administered under project budgets determined by contracts with state and federal grantor 
agencies. Effective expenditure control is achieved in the Capital Projects Fund through bond 
indenture provisions. Controls over spending in the Parks and Propelty Improvement Fund (a 
nonmajor fund) is achieved by the use of internal spending limits. 

The actual results of operations presented in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America differ from the budgetmy basis used in preparation of 
the 2008 budget for governmental funds. The budget for the General Fund was prepared on a cash 
basis with respect to revenues and on an item voucher basis with respect to expenditures. For the 
purpose of preparing the Budgetmy Comparison Schedule - Budgetmy (Non-GAAP) Basis -
General Fund, the actual results of operations have been presented on a budgetmy basis consistent 
with the City's budgeted revenues and expenditures. 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -BUDGETARY COMPARISON 
SCHEDULE 
DECEMBER 31, 2008 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

2. 

A reconciliation of the differences between the budgetary basis and GAAP basis financial 
statements of the General Fund is as follows: 

Financing 
Fund Balance, Sources (Uses) 
Beginning of and Equity Fund Balance, 

Year Revenues Expenditure Transfer End of Year 

Budgetary basis $ 12,335,864 $ 59,370,378 $ (47,477,653) $ (13,341,590) $ 10,886,999 
Taxes receivable 6,493,460 230,697 6,724,157 
Accounts Receivable 267,435 (32,027) 235,408 
Other assets 107,951 (32,160) 75,791 
Accounts payable, net of 
items vouchered 874,908 300 (311,556) 563,652 
Accrued liabilities (765,594) 11,002 (754,592) 
Advances and amounts 
due to other funds and 
component units (274,439) (541,541) 274,244 606,160 64,424 
Deferred reveuue (9,967,131) 594,600 (9,372,531 ) 
Other assets 5,199,603 728,893 (704,064) (53,753) 5,170,679 

GAAP basis $ 14,272,057 $ 60,351,300 $ (48,240,187) $ (12,789,183) $ 13,593,987 

BUDGET TO ACTUAL COMPARISONS 

The General Fund's budget comparison is presented in the Other Required Supplementaty 
Information section. The State Liquid Fuels Tax Fund (a non major fund) and major debt service 
fund budget comparisons are presented in the combining section. On the bottom of these 
comparisons is a demonstration of the adjustments necessaty to reconcile to the GAAP change in 
fund balance/net assets. 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
COMBINED NON-UNIFORMED EMPLOYEES' PENSION PLAN 
REOUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Schedule of Funding Progress 0 I/O 1/96-0 110 1107 

(a) (b) Actuarial (d) 
Actuarial Accrued (c) Unfimded Funded 

Actuarial Value of Liability AAL(FAAL) Ratio 
Valuation Date Assets (AAL) (b·a) (alb) 

01101196 $26,770,732 (2) $25,442,689 $ (1,328,043) 105.22 % 
01101/97 30,465,751 27,447,774 (3,017,977) 111.00 
01101198 34,019,246 28,867,727 (5,151,519) 117.85 
01101/99 39,353,200 29,978,847 (9,374,353) 131.27 
01101100 45,531,632 32,927,232 (12,604,400) 138.28 
01101101 51,841,303 36,252,370 (15,588,933) 143.00 
01/01102 54,063,426 37,487,414 (16,576,012) 144.22 
01101103 56,946,711 44,367,335 (12,579,376) 128.35 
01101105 63,053,150 52,154,704 (10,898,446) 120,90 
01101107 67,814,104 55,904,700 (11,909,404) 121.30 

UAAL as a 
Percentage of 

(e) covered 
Covered Payroll 
Payrcll (c/e) 

$ 14,837,644 (8.95) % 
15,125,782 (19.95) 
15,636,652 (32.95) 
16,583,243 (56.53) 
17,016,237 (74.07) 
18,441,260 (84.53) 
18,399,410 (90.09) 
19,970,077 (62.99) 
17,639,572 (61.78) 
16,465,482 (72.33) 

Schedule of Required Employer Contributions and Other Contributing Entities 1999-2008 

(t) 

Annual Actuarial 
Required Valuation (g) Percentage 

Year Ended Contribution Date Basis Employer (h) Contribution 
December 31 (ARC) (I) for ARC Contribution State Aid [(g+h)/1] 

1999 $ 331,115 01/01197 $ (3) $ 331,115 100,00 % 
2000 267,206 01101198 267,206 100,00 
2001 01/01199 
2002 01101100 
2003 01/0110\ 
2004 01101102 
2005 01101103 
2006 01101/04 
2007 01101105 
2008 01/01107 

(I) 1999-2008 - Total contributions were made in accordance with funding requirements established by Act 205 as 
amended by Act 1990-189, enacted on December 18,1990, with implementation effective January 1, 1992,' 

(2) On December 28, 1995, in connection with the issuance of Federally Taxable General Obligation bonds, Series A and 
B of t 995, the City deposited $5,900,000 to materially satisfy the unfunded actuarial accmed liability for the Non· 
Unifonncd Employee's Pension Plan "A". Additionally, the employer contribution includes $9,835 in excess of the 
City's statutory funding requirement to satisfY the full minimum municipal obligation or ARC, without regard to the 
IS-year phase-in provision of Act 205 as amended. 

(3) 1999-2000 - State aid was sufficient to meet the City's annual required contribution. Therefore, no employer 
contribution is reflected here. 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
COMBINED FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION PLAN 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Schedule of Funding Progress 01/01/96-0 I/O 1/07 

UAALasa 
(a) (b) Achmrial (d) Percentage of 

Actuarial Accrued (c) Unfunded Funded (e) covered 
Actuarial Value of Liability AAL (FAAL) Ratio Covered Payroll 

Valuation Date Assets (AAL) (b·a) (alb) Payroll (ele) 

01/01196 $24,525,663 (2) $23,642,933 $ (882,730) 103.73 % $ 3,859,094 (22,87) % 
01101197 28,010,066 25,124,396 (2,885,670) 111,49 4,159,387 (69.38) 
01101198 31,292,069 25,039,429 (6,252,640) 124,97 3,979,412 (157,12) 
01101/99 35,998,739 27,297,560 (8,701,179) 131.88 4,246,322 (204,91) 
01101100 41,417,147 27,847,384 (13,569,763) 148,73 4,223,595 (321.28) 
01101101 46,998,856 30,136,310 (16,862,546) 155,95 4,7ll,683 (357,89) 
01/01102 49,385,139 37,980,915 (11,404,224) 130m 5,001,240 (228.03) 
01101103 52,137,632 39,968,500 (12,169,132) 130,45 4,898,162 (248,44) 
01101105 61,270,530 50,101,540 (11,168,990) 122,29 5,251,910 (212,67) 
01/01107 60,115,728 50,833,300 (9,282,428) 118,26 5,091,469 (182.31) 

Schedule of Required Employer Contributions and Other Contributing Entities 1999-2008 

ttl 
Annual Actuarial 

Required Valuation (g) Percentage 
Year Ended Contribution Date Basis Employer (h) Contribution 

December 31 (ARC) (I) for ARC Contribution State Aid [(g+h)/f] 

1999 $ 223,568 01/01197 $ (3) $ 223,568 100.00 % 
2000 167,966 01/01198 167,966 100,00 
2001 188,199 01/01199 188,199 100,00 
2002 145,716 01/01100 145,716 100.00 
2003 107,728 01/01101 107,728 100.00 
2004 01101102 
2005 01/01103 
2006 01/01/04 
2007 01/01105 
2008 01101107 

(1) 1999~2008 - Total contributions were made in accordance with funding requirements established by Act 205 as 
amended by Act 1990-189, enacted on December 18,1990, with implementation effective January I, 1992. 

(2) On December 28, 1995, in connection with the issuance of Federally Taxable General Obligation bonds, Series A and 
B of 1995, the City deposited $12,000,000 to satisfy the unftmded actuarial accmed liability for the Firefighter's 
Pension Plan "A". Additionally, the employer contribution includes $13,050 in excess of the City's statutory funding 
requirement to satisfy the full minimum municipal obligation or ARC, without regard to the 15-year phase-in provision 
of Act 205 as amended, 

(3) 1999-2003 - State aid was sufficient to meet the City's annual required contribution. Therefore, no employer 
contribution is reflected here. 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
COMBINED POLICE OFFICERS' PENSION PLAN 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Schedule of Funding Progress 01/01/96-0 lIO lI07 

UAALas a 
(a) (b) Actuarial (d) Percentage of 

Acui3rial Accrued (c) Unfimded Funded (e) covered 
Actuarial Valne of Liability AAL (FAAL) Ratio Covered Payroll 

Valnation Date Assets (AAL) (b-a) (alb) Payroll (c/e) 

01101196 $33,462,010 (2) $33,081,005 $ (381,005) 101.15 % $ 7,162,027 (5.32) % 
01101197 38,558,258 35,147,819 (3,410,439) 109.70 7,436,274 (45.86) 
01101198 43,280,978 36,683,332 (6,597,646) 117.99 7,889,242 (83_63) 
01101199 49,828,312 39,4 13, 195 (10,415,117) 126.43 8,272,417 (125.90) 
01101/00 57,143,147 36,876,195 (20,266,952) 154.96 7,968,452 (254.34) 
01101101 57,189,470 39,086,593 (18, I 02,877) 146.31 8,008,858 (226.04) 
01101/02 55,690,061 47,122,954 (8,567,107) 118.18 8,210,921 (104.34) 
01101103 48,588,557 50,541,728 1,953,171 96.14 9,007,242 2\.68 
01101105 61,438,353 55,244,375 (6,193,978) 111.21 9,206,031 (67.28) 
01101107 68,875,536 59,874,001 (9,001,535) 115.03 9,138,604 (98.50) 

Schedule of Required Employer Contributions and Other Contributing Entities 1999-2008 

(t) 
Annual Actuarial 

Required Valuation (g) Percentage 
Year Ended Contribution Date Basis Employer (h) Contribution 

December 31 (ARC) (I) for ARC Contribution State Aid [(g+h)/f] 

1999 $ 466,435 01101197 $ (3) $ 466,435 100.00 % 
2000 469,959 01/01198 469,959 100.00 
2001 310,040 01/01199 310,040 100.00 
2002 01101100 
2003 01/01101 
2004 285,823 01101102 285,823 100.00 
2005 1,303,069 01101103 1,303,069 100.00 
2006 512,593 01101104 512,593 100.00 
2007 523,803 01/01/05 523,803 100.00 
2008 285,274 01/01107 285,274 100.00 

(I) 1999-2008 - Total contributions were made in accordance with funding requirements established by Act 205 as 
amended by Act 1990-189, enacted OIl December 18, 1990, with implementation effective January I, 1992. 

(2) On December 28, 1995, in connection with the issuance of Federally Taxable General Obligation bonds, Series A and 
B of 1995, the City deposited $15,950,085 to materially satisfy the unfunded actuarial accrued liability for the Police 
Officer's Pension Plan. Also includes a $37,741 contribution in excess of the City's statutory funding requirement to 
satisfy the full minimum municipal obligation or ARC, without regard to the IS-year phase-in provision of Act 20S as 
amended. 

(3) 1999-200 I and 2004-2006 - State aid was sufficient to meet the City's annual required contribution. Therefore, no 
employer contribution is reflected here. 

117 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL NONMAJOR FUND 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES 

118 



CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
DESCRlPTION OF FUNDS 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

State Liquid Fuels Tax Fund 

The State Liquid Fuels Tax Fund is used to account for state aid revenue used primarily for building and 
improving City roads and bridges in accordance with policies and procedures of the County Liquid Fuels 
Tax Act of 1981 and Liquid Fuels Act 655. 

Parks and Property Improvement Fund 

The Parks and Property Improvement Fund is used to account for contributions that have been designated 
for improvements to specific parks and propelties in the City. 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2008 

Special Revenue 
Parks and Total 

State Liquid Property Nonmajor 
Fuels Improvement Governmental 

Tax Fund Fund Funds 

ASSETS 

Cash $ 9,684 $ 330,406 $ 340,090 
Investments 281,830 594,170 876,000 

Total assets $ 291,514 $ 924,576 $ 1,216,090 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

Accounts payable $ 88,206 $ 76,657 $ 164,863 
Due to other funds 732,947 732,947 

Total liabilities 88,206 809,604 897,810 

Fund balance 
Unreserved undesignated 203,308 114,972 318,280 

Total fund balance 203,308 114,972 318,280 

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 291,514 $ 924,576 $ 1,216,090 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 

SEecial Revenue 
Parks and Total 

State Liquid Property Nomnajor 
Fuels Improvement Governmental 

Tax Fund Fund Funds 
Revenues 

Intergovernmental revenue $ 963,451 $ $ 963,451 
Department earnings and 
program revenue 4,266 4,266 

Investment income 11,236 11,236 

Total revenues 974,687 4,266 978,953 

Expenditures 
Current 

General government 3,675 3,675 
Public works 912,198 912,198 

Total expenditures 912,198 3,675 915,873 

Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures 62,489 591 63,080 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers out {65,590) {65,590) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (65,590) {65,590) 

Net change in fund balance (3,101) 591 (2,510) 

Fund balance - beginning of year 206,409 114,381 320,790 

Fund balance - end of year $ 203,308 $ 114,972 $ 318,280 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 
BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 

Nonmaior Fund MaiorFund 

State Liguid Fuels Tax Fund Debt Service Fund 
Variance Variance Variance Variance 

of Original of Actual of Origin a! of Actual 
with Final with Final with Final with Final 

Budget Budget Budget Budget 
Original Final Positive Positive Original Final Positive Positive 
Budf!:ct Budget (Nc!!ative) Actual (Negative) Budget Budget lliegative) Actual (Negative) 

Revenues 
Intergovernmental revenue $ 900.000 $ 900.000 $ $ 963,451 $ 63.451 $ $ $ $ $ 
Investment income 23500 23,500 J 1,236 (12,264) 8.000 8.000 2.367 (5.633) 
Miscellaneous 465.900 465.900 465.962 62 

Tota] revenues 923.500 923500 974.687 S1,1S7 473.900 473,900 468.329 (5571 ) 

Expenditures 
Public works 909,382 909.382 901.117 8,265 
Debt service 1 L805.888 12.972,733 (1.166.845) 12.972.733 

Total expenditures 909.382 909.382 901.117 8.265 11.805.888 12.972,733 (1.166.845) 12.972,733 

Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures before other 
financing sources (uses) 14.118 14.118 73,570 59.452 (11.331,988) (12.498.833) (1.166.845) (12.504.404) (5571) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Proceeds from the sale of assets 926,000 926.000 611,743 (314.257) 
Transfers in 10A05,988 10A05,988 10.070.518 (335.470) 
Transfers out (65.618) --165.618) (65590) 28 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) (65.618) (65.618) (65.590) 28 11.331.988 11.331.988 10.682.261 (649.727) 

Net change in fund balance (51.500) (51.500) 7.980 59.480 (1.166.845) (1.166.845) (1.822,143) (655.298) 

Fund balance ~ beginning 
of year. budgetary basis 51.500 51.500 249.663 198.163 1.166.845 1,166.845 1,979.450 812.605 

Fund balance Mend of year. 
budgetary basis $ $ $ $ 257,643 $ 257.643 $ $ $ $ 157,307 $ 157.307 

Explanation of differences between budget basis and GAAP: 

Net change in fund balance ~ budgetary basis $ 7.980 $ (1.822,143) 

Accrued expenditures - Decembcr 31. 2007 22,173 
Accrued expenditures - December 31. 2008 (33.254) 

Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ (3.101) $ (1.822.143) 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS 
AGENCY FUNDS 

Agency Funds 

The School Tax Collection Fund is used to account for the collection and payment to the school district of 
property taxes billed and collected on its behalf. 

The Payroll and Other Escrow Liabilities Fund is used to account for the collection and payment of 
miscellaneous escrow liabilities. 

The Pass-Through Grant Fund is used to account for the temporary collection and disbursement of pass
through grants. 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS - AGENCY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2008 

Payroll and 
Other Pass- Total 

School Tax Escrow Through Agency 
Collection Liabilities Grants Funds 

ASSETS 

Cash $ 416,222 $ 454,300 $ 409,847 $ 1,280,369 
Investments, at fair value 1,223,781 1,223,781 

Total assets 416,222 454,300 1,633,628 2,504,150 

LIABILITIES 

Due to other governments 416,222 416,222 
Escrow liabilities 454,300 1,633,628 2,087,928 

Total liabilities $ 416,222 $ 454,300 $ 1,633,628 $ 2,504,150 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES -
AGENCY FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 

Beginning End 
of Year Additions Deductions of Year 

School Tax Collection 

Assets 
Cash $ 267,983 $ 34,216,148 $ 34,067,909 $ 416,222 

Liabilities 
Due to other governments $ 267,983 $ 34,216,148 $ 34,067,909 $ 416,222 

Payroll and Other Escrow Liabilities 

Assets 
Cash $ 373,263 $ 34,346,878 $ 34,265,841 $ 454,300 

Liabilities 
Escrow liabilities $ 373,263 $ 34,346,878 $ 34,265,841 $ 454,300 

Pass-Through Grants 

Assets 
Cash $ 109,847 $ 300,000 $ $ 409,847 
Inveshnents 1,430,325 93,456 300,000 1,223,781 

Total assets $ 1,540,172 $ 393,456 $ 300,000 $ 1,633,628 

Liabilities 
Escrow liabilities $ 1,540,172 $ 393,456 $ 300,000 $ 1,633,628 

T "tal Agency Funds 

Assets 
Cash $ 751,093 $ 68,863,026 $ 68,333,750 $ 1,280,369 
Investments 1,430,325 93,456 300,000 1,223,781 

Total assets $ 2,181,418 $ 68,956,482 $ 68,633,750 $ 2,504,150 

Liabilities 
Due to other governments $ 267,983 $ 34,216,148 $ 34,067,909 $ 416,222 
Escrow liabilities 1,913,435 34,740,334 34,565,841 2,087,928 

Total liabilities $ 2,181,418 $ 68,956,482 $ 68,633,750 $ 2,504,150 
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Statistical Section 

This section of the City of Harrisburg's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed 
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note 
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the City's overall financial health. 

Contents 

Financial Trends 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how 
the City's financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's most 
significant revenue sources. 

Debt Capacity 
The schedules present information to help the reader assess the afford ability of 
the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue 
additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
understand the environment within which the City's financial activities take 
place and to help make comparisons over time and with other governments. 

Operating Information 
These schedules contain information about the City's operations and resources 
to help the reader understand how the City's financial information relates to the 
services the City provides and the activities it performs. 

Page(s) 

127 

137 

142 

151 

153 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the 
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. The City implemented Statement 34 in 
2003; schedules presenting government-wide information include information beginning in that year. 
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City of Hal'l'isbul'g, Pennsylvania 
Net Assets by Compollellt, Last Tell Fiscal Yeal's 
((Iecma' basis a/accoullting) 

Fiscal Ycar(l) 

2003 2004 2005 

Governmental activi ties 

Invested in cap ital assets, lIet of related debt $ 52,642,998 $ 49,149,879 $ 46,5 19,502 $ 

Restricted 1,285,912 1,046,429 298,844 

Unrestricted (28,143,689) (28,512,094) (28,462,588) 

Total governmental activities net assets $ 25,785,221 S 2 1,684,214 S 18,355,758 $ 

Dusincss-type activities 

Invested in capital assets, net ofrc1atcd debt $ 33,299, 154 $ 32,108,97 1 $ 29,337,050 S 
Restricted 712,076 72 1,131 1,958,134 

Unrestricted 1,528,654 1,964,593 2,891,358 

Total business-type activities net assets $ 35,539,884 $ 34,794,695 $ 34,186,542 S 

Prinmry government 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 85,942, 152 $ 81,258,850 S 75,856,552 $ 

Restricted 1,997,988 1,767,560 2,256,978 

Unrestricted (26,6 15,035) (26,547,50 1) (25,57 1,230) 

Total primary government net assets $ 6 1,325,105 $ 56,478,909 $ 52,542,300 $ 

(1) The City began to report accrual infonnalion when it implemented GAS13 Statement 34 in fiscal year 2003. 

(2) Invested in cnpi tal assets, net of related debt was reduced by the cost of certain artifacts held for sale by Ihe City, in the amollnt 

of $7.4 million. In addition, itl\'ested in capital assets, net of related debt was reduced by $5.9 million in deprec iation expense. net 

of$3.6miIlion in capital asset additions. 

(3) Implemented GASB Statement 45, which required the City to record $12.7 million of post-employment benefits. 

Total Net Assets By Component 

$60,000,000 

$50,000,000 

$40,000,000 

2006 

44,681,389 

464,077 
(38,673,374) 

6,472,092 

30,474,403 

1,674,844 

3,654,178 

35,803,425 

75, 155,792 

2,138,92 1 

(35,019, 196) 

42,275,517 

$30,000,000 

$20,000,000 

D Govcrnmental Activities 

II Business-Type Activities 

SIO,OOO,OOO 

$-

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 
$(10,000,000) .L-_________ ___ ___ ___ -' 

Fiscal Year 

Source: City's audited basic financial statements 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

S 

$ 

Fiscal Ycar(l) 

2007 

34,134,373 (2) 

545,748 
(26,863,204) (2) 

7,816,917 

34,656,628 

5, 140,35 1 

5,705,108 

45,502,087 

68,79 1,00 1 

5,686,099 

(21, 158,096) 

53,3 19,004 

10,000,000 

5,000,000 

(5,000,000) 

( 10,000,000) 

( 15,000,000) 

(20,000,000) 

(25,000,000) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2008 

30,5 18,850 

1,130,02 1 

(33,523,545) (3) 

(1,874,674) 

34,753,854 

7,0'14,942 
6,254,76 1 

48 ,053,557 

65,272,704 

8,174,963 

(27,268,784) 

46,178,883 

Unrestri cted Net Assets By Component 

(30,000,000) r - - ----- ---
(35,000,000) +---- - - --- --

(40,000,000) +------------ --- - - -----1 
(45,000,000) .L-___ _ _ _____________ _ ....J 

Fiscal Year 
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City of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 
Chauges in Net Assets, Last Ten Fiscal Yeal's 
(accrual basis of accounting) 

Fiscal Ycar(l) 

2003 2004 2005 2006 

Expenses 
Governmental activities: 

General govemment $ 11,590,561 $ 12,534,250 $ 14,140,790 $ 13,031,646 
Building and housing development 8,194,518 6,916,005 6,889,200 6,882,911 
Public safety 28,410,183 29,450,765 33,096,267 32,619,877 

Public works 8,902,217 8,458,043 8,409,045 8,909,731 

Parks and recreation 4,470,303 4,153,782 4,269,849 4,324,052 

Incinerator 6,119,838 

Tourism 
Interest on long-term debt 5,868,613 5,949,891 5,352,500 5,333,204 

Total governmental activities expenses 67,436,395 67,462,736 72,157,651 77,221,259 

Business-type activities: 

Sewer 14,106,106 12,925,132 14,400,217 13,835,359 
Sanitation 3,062,737 2,660,599 3,068,741 2,917,043 
Harrisburg Senators 1,003,847 1,004,283 1,636,709 1,914,398 

Total business-type activities expenses 18,172,690 16,590,014 19,105,667 18,666,800 
Total primary government expenses $ 85,609,085 $ 84,052,750 $ 91,263,318 S 95,888,059 

Program Revenues 

Governmental activities: 
Charges for services: 

General government $ 16,692,904 $ 11,883,953 $ 15,282,154 $ 14,612,126 
Building and housing development 2,149,472 3,716,510 1,402,181 1,796,060 
Public safety 3,997,442 4,401,341 4,466,370 4,786,780 
Public works 1,885,880 1,799,188 2,214,138 1,996,113 
Parks and recreation 247,300 218,669 291,885 181,071 

Incinerator 
Operating grants and contributions 14,237,111 10,888,006 11,990,054 7,199,902 
Capital grants and contributions 1,691,550 2,165,159 3,329,257 

Total governmental activities program revenue 40,901,659 32,907,667 37,811,941 33,901,309 

Business-type activities: 

Charges for services: 

Sewer 12,028,851 12,200,820 12,995,888 13,151,051 

Sanitation 3,791,582 3,829,365 3,798,436 4,007,812 
Harrisburg Senators 287,281 224,973 236,912 424,279 

Operating grants and contributions 101,955 111,640 86,856 
Capital grants and contributions 657,537 

Total business-type activities program revenue 16,ID7,714 16,357,113 17,142,876 18,327,535 
Total primary government program revenues $ 57,009,373 $ 49,264,780 $ 54,954,817 S 52,228,844 

(1) The City began to report accrual infonnation when it implemented GASB Statement 34 in fiscal year 2003. 
(l) Includes amounts due from the City's Resource Recovery Facility that do not meet the available criteria. 
(3) Valuation adjustments related to certain City artifacts. 
(') The City sold the Harrisburg Senators minor league baseball franchise. 
(5) Current year implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 45 
(~ Increased administrative service charges of $831,370 and current year implementation of Governameal Accounting Standards Board 

Statement Number 45. 

Source: City audited basic financial statements 
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Fisca l \'('al"(1) 

2007 2008 

S 12,673,605 S 11 ,227,267 

8,549,637 6,074,003 
29,181,6 12 43,249,161 

8,952,746 9,439,071 
5,797,490 4,797,98 1 

714,171 
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4,835,059 ") 280,072 
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City of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 
Changes in Net Assets, Last Ten Fiscal Years (Continned) 
(accrual basis of accol/flting) 

2003 

Net (Expellse)/Rc"clluc 

Governmental activities S (26,534,736) 

Business-type activities (2,064,976) 
Total primary government net expense S (28,599,712) 

General Rcvcllu{'s and Other Changes in Net Assets 

Govcmmcntal activities: 

Taxes 
ProJlerty taxes $ 13,638,868 

Real estate tT<lllsfcr taxes 850,269 

Emergency and municipal services taxes 
Occupational privilege taxes 332,578 

Earned income taxes 3,235,092 

Business privilege taxes 3,214,854 

Franchise taxes 393,646 

Public utility realty taxes 37,343 

Payments in lieu of taxes 99,442 

Grants and contributions 6,142,461 
Unrestricted investment eamings 78,620 

Gain (loss) Oil sale of capital assets (25,239) 

Transfers· illtcmal activities 192,236 

Total governmental activities 28,190,170 

Business-type activities 

Investment earnings 39,986 

Gain (loss) on sale of capitnl nssets 14,706 

Transfers - internnl activities (192,236) 

Total business-type activities (137,544) 
Total primal)' go\'emment general re\'enues $ 28,052,626 

Chnllge in Net Assets 

Governmental activities S 1,655,434 

Business-type activities (2,202,520) 
Total primal)' government chnnge in net nssets S (547,086) 

(7) Includes a 1.5 mill real eslnte ta"X incrense. 

S 

S 

$ 

$ 

S 

Change In Net Assets 

Fiscal YCllI'U) 

2004 2005 2006 

(34,555,069) S (34,345,710) S (43,319,950) 

(232,901) (1,962,791) (339,265) 
(34,787,970) $ (36,308,501) S (43 ,659,215) 

13,703,997 $ 13,103,137 S 13,981,639 

885,956 1,101,829 818,858 

2,755,773 3,016,240 

336,509 26,623 6,311 
3,111,689 3,346,735 3,390,099 
3,543,414 3,478,057 3,497,175 

460,819 451,881 474,849 

28,848 38,868 39,536 
353,793 403,920 422,799 

6,993,887 6,616,045 6,354,219 
486,598 634,910 584,035 

548,552 (940,524) (1,149,476) 

30,454,062 31,017,254 31,436,284 

36,264 414,114 806,672 

(548,552) 940,524 1,149,476 

(512,288) 1,354,638 1,956,148 
29,941,774 $ 32,371,892 S 33,392,432 

(4,101,007) $ (3,328,456) $ (11,883,666) 

(608,153) 1,616,883 
S (3,936,609) S (10,266,783) 

S]S,OOO,OOO ,-----------------------------------------, 

5]0,000,000 j------- ------------------ -----

S'i,OOO,OOO t---------------------------- -

s·+-........ __ ~~ 

S{5,000,OOO) t--- -----------------

$(]O,ooo,ooo) t------------- -------

S{lS,OOO,OOO) L--------------------------------r~==':':'''''e..., 
. G",..",.men!,] A~ti,iti ., 

• Bill u",. I_Typ~ A,ti, ;ti., 
Fiscal Year 

Source: City audited basic financial statements (Continued) 
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FisC:11 Ycnr U) 

2007 2008 

$ (36,679,655) S (44,80 1,729) 
10,747,204 1,986,479 

S (25,932,451) 5 (42,815,250) 

S 16,684, 189 '" 5 15,879,973 
843,295 1,044,116 

2,865,835 1,950,258 
1,557 85 

3,605,141 3,810,889 
3,653,993 3,980,739 

476,585 510,448 
35,585 36,288 

484,975 429, 151 
6,886,276 7,340,486 

750,284 477,404 

1,736,765 (349,699) 
38,024,480 35,110,138 

688,223 215,292 

(1,736,765) 349,699 
(1,048,542) 564,991 

$ 36,975,938 $ 35,675,129 

5 1,344,825 $ (9,691,59 1) 
9,698,662 2,55 1,470 

S 11,043,487 $ (7, 140,121) 
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City of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds, Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(modified accfllal basis of accounting) 

Fiscal Year 

1999 2000 (I; 2001 2002 (ll 

General Fund 
Reserved S 3,406,225 S 3,328,742 S 3,982,022 $ 3,679,449 

Unreserved 6,001,312 8,373,469 6,031,758 2,833,123 

Total General Fund $ 9,407,537 $ 11,702,211 S 10,013,780 $ 6,512,572 

Other Governmental Funds 
Reserved, reported in: 

Debt Service Fund S 755,826 S 574,291 S 457,068 $ 223,925 

Capital Projects Fund 8,168,025 4,615,654 5,776,812 4,176,915 

Special Revenue 90,742 

Unreserved, reported in: 

Capital Projects Fund 
Special Revenue 456,129 341,737 368,829 375,815 

Total Other Governmental Funds $ 9,470,722 $ 5,531,682 $ 6,602,709 S 4,776,655 

Tofal Governmental Funds $ 18,878,259 $ 17,233,893 $ 16,616,489 S 11,289,227 

(I) There was a restatement of fund balance to correct revenue and expenditure accruals in the amount of(S344,154). 
(2) There was a residual equity transfer from the Hydroelectric Dam Fund, an enterprise fund, in the amount of ($344,047). 

(3) There was a restatement of fund balance to record receivables in accordance with GASB 33 in the amount of $1,125,838 and change the 
presentation ofthe expendable trust fund to a govenullcntal fund in accordance with GAS13 34 in the amount of$128,807. 

(4) Proceeds from $8.3 million capital lease. 

(5) Proceeds from $1.3 million sale of City artifacts and 1.5 mill real estate tax increase. 

(6) $500,000 in gruarantee fees on behalf of the Harrisburg Parking Authority bond issue and a portion of the sale of the Harrisburg Senators minor 
league baseball franchise to be used for 2008 debt service. 

(7) Represents proceeds from sale of assets received in 2007 and used to make a SI.9 million principal payment on the Revenue Bonds Series of 
2006 in January of2008. 

Source: City's audited basic financial statements 
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Fiscal Year 
2003 (]l 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

$ 4,229,266 $ 3,341,089 $ 3,333,097 $ 2,645,620 5 10,409,125 (4) $ 13,373,865 

4,345,727 3,5 I 1,674 406,178 (1 ,939,764) 3,862,932 (S) 220,122 

S 8,574,993 $ 6,852,763 S 3,739,275 S 705,856 $ 14,272,057 $ 13,593,987 

$ 98,229 $ 65,469 S 68,898 $ 57,526 $ 1,976,2 14 (6) $ 154,07 1 (7) 

4,693,722 3,803,250 3,653,716 3,572,793 2, 11 9, 178 61,493 

26, 142 

(628,0 1 I) 2,1 06,350 
372,927 358, 148 296,55 1 328,372 320,790 318,280 

S 5, 164,878 S 4,226,867 S 4,019, 165 S 3,984,833 S 3,788, 171 $ 2,640, 194 

$ 13,739,871 $ 11,079,630 $ 7,758,440 $ 4,690,689 S 18,060,228 $ 16,234, I 8 I 

General Fund 

SIO,OOO,OOO -,--- ---------------------, 

58,000,000 

56,000,000 

$4,000,000 

J C Unreserved Fund Bnlance I 
$2,000,000 

s-
1999 2000 200 1 2002 2003 2004 2007 2008 

$(2,000,000) +--- --- --- --- -----

$(4,000,000) -'-_____ ______________ __ ----1 

Fiscnl Yenr 
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City of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds, Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(modified acef/wi basis o/accounting) 

Fiscnl Year 

1999 2000 2001 2002 

Revenues 
Taxes S 17,725,513 $ 18,821,081 S 18,984,666 $ 20,712,704 

Licenses and pennits 392,418 415,979 467,488 497,777 

Intergovernmental revenues 17,589,758 26,906,417 16,706,490 15,299,379 

Department earnings and 
program revenue 13,951,499 13,877,353 16,518,832 17,823,989 

Fines and forfeits 1,373,780 1,315,675 1,330,175 1,448,632 

Investment income 1,182,583 2,348,892 977,590 197,297 

Miscellaneous 3,159,906 5,720,349 3,993,829 2,046,823 

Total revenues 55,375,457 69,405,746 58,979,070 58,026,601 

Expenditures 

Current 

General government 10,656,644 12,205,120 12,668,074 12,496,619 

Building & housing development 15,192,087 10,084,316 10,734,508 7,527,264 

Public safety 18,544,296 19,152,113 20,354,570 25,611,221 

Public works 3,983,674 4,178,179 4,643,158 4,535,518 

Parks and recreation 3,035,742 3,154,921 3,410,527 3,709,992 

Incinerator 
Tourism 

Capital outlay 

Infrastructure 2,747,046 757,869 3,548,782 799,693 

Olher 4,756,984 19,806,708 8,422,298 4,638,181 

Debt service 
Principal retirements 6,248,275 7,096,743 7,407,674 7,866,445 

Interest and fiscal charges 3,271,932 1,340,148 1,035,646 860,632 

Total expenditures 68,436,680 77,776,117 72,225,237 68,045,565 

Excess ofrevenues oyer (under) 
expenditures (13,061,223) (8,370,371) (13,246,167) (10,018,964) 

Other financing sources (uses) 

Proceeds from debt 3,633,042 9,559,175 749,327 

Proceeds from sale of assets 
Transfers in-component unit 2,791,939 2,526,764 3,878,282 

Transfers in 10,080,627 10,523,514 9,014,849 9,556,698 

Transfers out (9,630,260) (9,878,336) (8,472,025) (9,148,558) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 450,367 7,070,159 12,628,763 5,035,749 

Net change in fund balances $ (12,610,856) $ (1,300,212) S (617,404) $ (4,983,215) 

Debt service as a 
percentage of noncapital 
expenditures 15.5% 14.4% 13.6% 13.9% 

0) Pennsylvania Infrastructure Bank Note issued to fe-surface various streets City-wide. 

(2) Proceeds from the issuance of an $8.3 million capital lease to finance the purchase of City-wide equipment and vehicles. 
(3) Includes approximately $4.2 million of transfers from the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund for the purchase of capital 

equipment related to the $8.3 million capital lease. 

Sotlrce: City's audited basic financial statements 
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Fiscal Year 
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

$ 21,363,287 $ 23,370,790 $ 24,246,730 $ 23,825,971 $ 27,297,475 $ 26,836,116 

423,696 490,719 483,281 508,799 510,735 540,748 

20,170,175 16,703,296 20,023,430 16,193,248 19,836,881 16,829,300 

21,933,561 18,445,931 20,045,806 18,569,091 19,308,242 20,187,491 

1,697,651 1,811,458 1,752,381 1,690,845 1,974,002 2,109,236 

68,877 340,138 482,026 441,384 724,020 507,785 

3,833,537 2,345,679 1,668,796 3,306,786 5,189,161 3,798,167 

69,490,784 63,508,011 68,702,450 64,536,124 74,840,516 70,808,843 

11,548,582 12,343,903 15,436,778 14,166,029 14,271,691 9,503,511 

8,057,397 6,740,051 6,068,648 6,760,858 8,591,941 5,673,155 

29,474,614 29,115,507 32,493,418 31,413,352 28,309,666 30,801,966 

5,176,582 5,404,400 5,338,939 5,913,597 6,176,533 6,287,360 

4,141,567 3,651,103 3,871,001 4,279,564 5,232,885 3,931,704 

6,119,838 714,171 

571,251 97,564 

78,956 (19,931) 17,140 35,713 2,245,948 (I) 

304,522 685,053 11,947 1,425 4,503,504 
(2) 

9,322,572 15,290,392 8,282,138 8,385,421 7,994,171 1l,063,705 

1,010,029 1,079,473 440,827 541,827 927,500 1,150,297 

69,114,821 74,289,951 71,960,836 77,616,199 72,791,234 75,258,714 

375,963 (10,781,940) (3,258,386) (13,080,075) 2,049,282 (4,449,871) 

627,800 6,540,147 251,687 ll,159,450 8,275,085 (2) 2,400,000 

1,033,000 626,033 2,350 1,308,407 573,523 

8,852,997 10,437,623 8,707,948 7,744,517 9,926,213 15,425,398 (3) 

(8,660,761) (9,889,071) (9,648,472) (8,893,993) (8,189,448) (15,775,097) (3) 

820,036 8,121,699 (62,804) 10,012,324 11,320,257 2,623,824 

$ 1,195,999 $ (2,660,241) $ (3,321,190) $ (3,067,751) $ 13,369,539 $ (1,826,047) 

16.6% 23.0% 12.8% 12.1% 12.9% 18.0% 
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City of Hal'risbul'g, Penllsylvania 
Tax Revenues by Source, Governmental Funds, Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basis OfaCC01l11til1g) 

Local Services! Business 

Fiscal Property {{elll Estate Occupational Earned Privilegel 

Year (Real Estate) (I) Transfer (2) Privilegc(3) Income (4) i\lercantilc (S) Total 

1999 S 11,279,490 $ 439,203 S 328,014 $ 2,895,306 S 2,783,500 $ 17,725,513 

2000 12,264,249 (6) 372,838 343,212 3,015,003 2,825,779 18,821,081 

2001 12,179,214 331,675 326,507 3,190,322 2,956,948 18,984,666 

2002 13,594,940 (0 448,787 324,743 3,358,138 2,986,096 20,712,704 

2003 13,618,418 850,269 (8) 332,578 3,235,092 3,326,930 (9) 21,363,287 

2004 15,194,054 (10) 885,956 336,509 3,111,689 3,842,582 23,370,790 

2005 13,321,183 1,101,829 2,782,396 3,346,735 3,694,587 24,246,730 

2006 12,806,048 818,858 3,022,551 3,390,099 3,788,415 23,825,971 

2007 16,077,025 (II) 843,295 2,867,389 3,605,142 3,904,624 27,297,475 

2008 16,346,529 1,044,116 1,950,343 (12) 3,810,890 3,684,238 26,836,116 

Change 

1999-2008 44.9% 137.7% 494.6% 31.6% 32.4% 51.4% 

{lJ The Dauphin County Board of Assessments perfonns property assessments. The City levies the tax on 100% of tile value assigned by the 
County. The tax within the City is levied as two rates (tcnned "Two-Rate Property Tax"). 

(2) The City imposes a Real Estate Transfer Tax of 1% of the selling price or market value of real estate transferred within the City. This tax is 
collected by the COllnty for which the COllnty is paid a 2% commission on transfer ta"es collected. The City shares this tax equally with the 
School District. 

(3) For the years 1999 through 2004, the City levied an Occupational Privilege Tax of $10.00 per person for anyone working within the City. 
This tax was withheld by the employer and allocated equally between the City and School District. Beginning in 2005, the City started 
receiving the new Emergency and Municipal Service Tax (EMS). This tax was created by the Pennsylvania Legislature in November 2004 
and replaced the Occupational Privilege Tax. This tax enables Pennsylvania municipalities to increase their previous levy of the tax from 
$10.00 to $52.00 per year on a similar tax base. The School District continues to receive $5.00 of tile levy. 

(4) City residents pay an Eamed Income Tax (Ell) of 1%, which is shared equally with the School District. Non-residents who work within the 
City and who do not pay an Earned Income Tax to the llllmicipality of their residence also pay the 1% EIT, This tax is administered bylhe 
Capital Tax Collection bureau (CTCB) for which the CTCB is paid a 2.5% commission on the ElT collected. Since the EIT is withheld by 
the employer, a high level of compliance exists. 

(5) The City levies a Business Privilege and Mercantile Ta" on gross receipts. The City shares equally the r"fercantile portion of this ta" with the 
School District. Additionally, there are taxes and fees levied on mechanical devices (pinball, billiard tables, video games, etc.). Also, a 10% 
Amusement Tax is levied on admission prices to places of amusement, entertainment or recreation within the City. The City shares this ta" 
equally with the School District. A Parking Tax of 15% is also levied on the considcration paid by patrons of the' City parking garages and 
lots. 

(6) Real Estate Tax revenue increased approximately $1.1 million due to a tax rate increase, the City's first increase since 1988. 

(7) Real Estate Tax billing increased over $1.3 million due to a court ordered county~wide reassessment, the first such reassessment since 1972. 
This action increased taxable property assessments by nearly 100%, effective January I, 2002. 

(S) Many properties were transferred within the City in 2003 due to favorable mortgage rates. 

(9) The Parking Tax was increased from 10% to 15% in 2003, producing approximately $400,000 in new revenue. 

(IO) In 2004, the City of Harrisburg sold the 2003 and prior years delinquent real estate tax liens to the Harrisburg Redevelopment Authority. 

(II) Includes a J.5 mill real estate tax increase. 
(12) Local Services Tax decreased by approximately $900,000 due to changes in state collection laws and income limits. 

Source: City's audited basic financial statcments 
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City of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 
Assessed Value 1111(1 Estimated Actual Value of Taxa ble P roper ty, Las t Tell Fiscal Yeal's 
(in thol/sands of dollars) 

Less: Tota l 

Agriculture! Tax Taxable 
Fiscal Residential COlll lllercial Imlilst rial LalllJl Excmpt Assessed 
Yeal' Properly Properly )' roper'y Lois Properly Value 

1999 ") S S S S S 596,900 S 924,330 

2000 ") 683, 119 841,504 

2001 ") 68 1,498 856,205 

2002 (2) 649, 169 891,656 125,800 29,212 1,342,5 12 1,695,837 

2003 646,254 868,543 125,800 29,221 1,373,032 1,669,818 

2004 646,228 825,326 125,800 29,206 1,428,326 1,626,560 

2005 618,009 856,38 1 113,874 6,394 1,465,007 1,594,658 

2006 62 1,096 848,692 11 2,824 7,76 1 1,507,443 1,590,373 

2007 621,796 843,480 11 1,655 7,903 1,511,890 1,584,834 

2008 'I) (I) ") (I) 
1,524, 166 1,584,939 

To tal 

Direct 

Tax 

Hate 

S 13.97 S 
15.62 

15.59 

8.53 

8.60 

8.66 

8.63 

8.64 

8.64 

8.64 

") Allocation of assessed values data was not avai lable from the Stale Tax Equalization Board for years prior to 2002 and as of 12/23/09. 

Esti mated 

Achlni 

Taxable 

Vallie 

1, 140,326 

1,106,544 

1,126,750 

1,189,620 

1,168,606 

1,3 16,425 

1,288,189 

1,450,906 

1,4 44,979 

1,651,877 

(2) Reflects the result of a court-ordered COllnl}'·wide reassessment effeclh'c January I, 2002. This was the fi rst such reassessment s ince 1972. 
increas ing the City's taxable assessed properly value base by nearly 100%. 

Assessed Values of Taxable and Exempt Property 
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Source: State TIlx Eqllll\izat ion Board (www.steb.state.pn.lIs) 
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City of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 
Direct alld Overlappillg Proper ty Tax Rates, Last Tell Fiscal Yea rs 
(rate per SI,OOO of assessed millc) 

City ))irect RfltcS(I ) Ove rlapping Hates (I ) 

Gellel'lll 

Obligation Dauphin Totnl Ilarrisbul'g 

Fi scnl Bas ic Debt COllnt)' Recreation Direct School Dfillphin 

Yen .. Hate Service Librar), Purposes RntcU)tl) Distri ct COllllty 

1999 S 3.71 S 6.99 $ 0.06 $ 3.21 S 13.97 $ 40.62 $ 8.55 

2000 3.21 8.95 0.06 3.40 15.62 40.62 9.80 

200 1 2.06 10.00 0.06 3.47 15.59 40.62 9.80 

2002 1.42 '" 5.30 ") 0.03 ") 1.78 ") 8.53 ") 21.23 5.07 

2003 1.58 5.00 0.03 1.99 8.60 21.23 6.1 3 

2004 1.55 4.99 0.03 2.09 8.66 21.23 7.23 

2005 0.86 5.60 0.03 2. 14 8.63 21.23 7.23 

2006 1.05 5.58 0.03 1.98 8.64 21.23 7.23 

2007 4.56 3.62 O.oJ 1.94 10.15 (l) 22.35 7.23 

2008 1.80 6.45 0.03 1.80 10.08 23.75 7.23 

(I) The City's di rect property lax rate may be increased on ly by a majority \'ote of City Coullcii. Overlapping rates arc those of olher tax 
levying en tities that apply 10 property owners with inlhc City of Hnrrisburg. 

(2) This amOllnt represents an equivalent single Inx rate. The City actually utilizes a split-rate, or two-ratc, tax system whereby land is 
cU ITently ta.xed at a rate six times greater than the tax rate on buildings and improvements. 

(3) The City is pennitted by the Third Class City Code to levy real estate taxes up to 25 mills on every dollar of assessed valuation for general 
City purposes. Howe\'er, under an order of court daled December 20, 1982, the City was authorized to exceed the statutory general millage 
rate, up to a maximum of30 mill s. 

(~) Via a court order, the county of Dau phin reassessed all real property county-wide effective Jmmary 1, 2002, the first such reassessment 
since 1972, increas ing taxable and nOll -taxable property values nearly 100%. By law, property tax ratcs within the City, School District, 
and County were decreased proportionately so as 1I0 t to exceed a 10% max imum increase in property tax levy. 

(j) Includes a 1.5 mill real estate lax increase. 

Direct Tax Rate 
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Source: City's Approved Budgct Documcnt 
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City of Hal'l'isbul'g, Pennsylvania 
Principal Property Taxpayers, Current Year and Nine Years Ago 
(in thollsands of do/lars) 

2008 1999 
l)erccntagc Percentage 

ofTofal City orTotal City 

Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable 

Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed 

Taxpayer Value (I) Rank Value Valllc(l) Rank Value 

Harrisburg Redevelopment Authority $ 98,121 6.19 S 34,608 2 3.74 

ESL, Inc'!Pa Nat! Realty Trust 29,685 2 1.87 20,636 3 2.23 

M&T Bank (faonerly Allfirst Bank) 21,163 3 1.34 

Harrisburg Hotel Assoc. (Hilton Hotel) 18,523 4 1.17 7,818 9 0.85 

Selco Service Corp. 19,900 5 1.26 

Strawberry Square Associates 11,917 6 0.75 

Keystone Central Storage 14,336 7 0.90 

365~369 Ocean Avenue LLC 8,984 8 0.57 

Pinnacle Health System 8,071 9 0.51 

Walnut & Third Inc. 19,000 10 1.20 

Capitol Commercial Corp 18,334 4 1.98 
PA State Employees Credit Union 7,048 10 0.76 
Harrist0\\11 Development Corp. 43,928 4.75 

Dauphin Deposit Bank & Trust 12,274 5 1.33 

Dauphin County Gen. Authority 12,128 6 1.31 
Super Rite Food Inc. 11,874 7 1.28 
McNees, Wallace & Nurick 8,765 8 0.95 

Total S 249,700 15.75 $ 177;413 19.19 

(I) This table reflects the City's tell highest ta;xpayers based on the flat fa'..: amount. This may not positively correlate to the assessed value because 
the City utilizes a split-rate, or two-rate, ta'..: system whereby land is currently ta'..:cd at a rate six times greater than the tax rate on buildings and 
improvements. 

Source: City's Bureao of Infonllation Technology 
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City of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 
Property Tax Levies and Collections, Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Collected within the 
Fiscal YeaI' of the Levy Collections in Total Coll ections to Date 

Adjusted % Subsequent % 

Ye AI' Lc\')' Am ount of Levy Years Amount of Levy 

1999 $ 12,009,9 16 $ 10,0 15,954 83.40% $ 1,969,3 18 $ 11 ,985,272 99.79% 

2000 13,166,873 (\) 11 ,066,488 (I) 84.05% 2,067,626 (\) 13,134,114 (I) 99.75% 

2001 13,255, 169 11 ,246, 161 84.84% 1,973,304 13,2 19,465 99.73% 

2002 14,673,65 1 (l) 12,099,685 '" 82.46% 2,508,365 (l) 14,608,050 (ll 99.55% 

2003 14,422, 121 12,06 1,330 83.63% 2,291,318 14,352,648 99.52% 

2004 14,067,468 12,019,060 85.44% 1,969,942 13,989,002 (ll 99.44% 

2005 13,993,086 11 ,9 19,276 85.18% 1,966,270 13,885,546 (l) 99.23% 

2006 13,953,657 12,348,277 88.49% 1,408,427 13,756,704 98.59% 

2007 16,365,833 (') 14,185, 140 (" 86.68% 1,050,9 17 15,236,057 93. 10% 

2008 16,246,02 1 14,172,465 87.24% 14, 172,465 87.24% 

(l) Ren! Estate Ta.x billing increased oyer SI . I million due to a ta.x rate increase, the first such increase since 1988. 

m Real Estate Tax billing increased oyer $1.3 million due to a court ordered county-wide reassessment, the first such re assessment 
since 1972. This action increased taxable propert)' assessments by nearly 100%, effective January 1,2002. 

(3) Includes SI.S million and SI.2 million in proceeds from the salc of the City's tax li ens for the years 2004 and prior, and 2005, 
rcspecti\'ely. 

(4) Real Estate Tax bill ing increased over 52.4 million dnc to a 1.5 mill tax rate increase. 

Property Tax Levies «nd Collections 
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Source: City's 13urcan of infonnmion Technology and Dauphin County Tn.x Claims Bureau 
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City of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type, Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Business-type 

Governmental Activities Activities 

General Lease Lease General 
Fiscal Obligation Revenue Rc\'cnue Obligation Capital Lease 
YeaI' Bonds Bonds Notes Notes Leases Rental 

1999 $ 66,347,041 $ 293,700 S 485,000 S 27,217,303 $ 200,885 S 15,281,789 

2000 69,949,886 200,250 395,000 34,692,064 205,409 14,064,421 

2001 66,034,063 102,250 300,000 36,130,133 9,388,064 12,740,705 

2002 61,661,400 205,000 38,249,637 8,320,631 11,838,014 

2003 57,009,537 105,000 40,482,006 7,063,689 10,870,514 

2004 52,071,077 42,112,528 6,684,473 9,827,270 

2005 49,886,425 42,405,157 5,482,349 8,708,596 

2006 47,480,766 7,200,000 46,638,776 4,084,633 7,508,856 

2007 44,881,318 7,200,000 47,109,546 11,244,437 (3) 6,219,694 

2008 42,050,335 5,281,310 50,013,240 (:5) 9,043,850 4,830,416 

(\) Personal Income information estimated based on the Harrisburg-Carlisle, Pennsylvania Metorpolitan Statistical Area (See Page 151). 

(2) Per Capita information based on U.S. CenSliS Bureau Data for the City of Harrisburg (See Page 144). 
(3) New $8.7 million capital lease to purchase vehicles and equipment. 
(4) Proceeds from sale of Harris burg Senators minor league baseball franchise were used to retire $9 million Senators Revenue 

Bonds, Series A-I of2005. 
(5) Includes $2.4 million Pennsylvania lufrastmcture Bank Note to resurface variolls streets City~wide. 

Source: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 
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S 

Business-type Aeth'ities 

Gelleral Lease Genera l 
Obligation Revenue Rc\'cIIUC Oblign tion Unnmol'lized 

Bonds Bonds Donds Notes Discount 

8,503,493 $ 36,300 S S $ 

8,499,676 24,750 

8,429,001 12,750 

8,351,702 

8,269,505 

8,204,472 

6,533,360 18,000,000 (14 1,607) 

4,824,157 17,815,000 (134, 169) 

3,012,207 8,790,000 ") (62,940) 

1,272,038 8,570,000 (58,490) 

Debt By Type 
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City of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 
Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt To Assessed Valne, Las! Ten Fiscal Years 
(ill thousands of dollars, except Net General BOllded Debt Per Capita) 

Net 

Net Ratio of Net General 

Taxable General Less Debt General General Bonded 

Assessed Bonded Service Bonded Bonded Debt to Debt Per 

Year Population (J) Value Debt (2) Funds Debt Assessed Value Capita 

1999 52,376 $ 924,330 $ 69,394 (4) $ 756 $ 68,638 7.43 $ t,310.49 

2000 48,950 841,504 (3) 100,722 (5) 574 100,t48 11.90 2,045.92 

2001 48,950 856,205 102,073 457 101,616 11.87 2,075.91 

2002 48,950 1,695,837 (6) 120,505 (7) 224 120,281 7.09 2,457.22 

2003 48,950 1,669,818 97,605 (8) 98 97,507 5.84 1,991.97 

2004 48,950 1,626,560 97,593 65 97,528 6.00 1,992.40 

2005 48,950 1,594,658 96,504 69 96,435 6.05 1,970.07 

2006 48,950 1,590,373 95,423 58 95,365 6.00 1,948.21 

2007 48,950 1,584,834 93,944 1,976 91,968 5.80 1,878.82 

2008 48,950 1,584,939 94,965 154 94,811 5.98 1,936.89 

{I) 1999 pcr 1990 U.S. Census Bureau Data, 2000 through 2008 per 2000 U.S. Census Bureau Data. 

(2) General Bonded Debt includes general obligation bonds, lease revenue bonds, and notes payable of the primary govemment, as well as debt of 
other entities guaranteed by the primary government. Amounts do not include Section 108 promissory notes and debt which is credited or 
excluded pursuant to the PA Local Government Unit Dcbt Act or is to be repaid with enterprise funds. 

(3) The County assessed two City hospitals as taxable entities for the first time in 1993 at values totaling $82,830,800. Both hospitals appealed their 
assessments as taxable entities to the Court of Con un on Pleas and were granted an exemption for 1993 only. Both hospitals merged in 1996 as 
part of Pinnacle Health System (Pinnacle) and appealed to the Commonwealth Court with respect to 1994 through 1998. The decision was upheld 
in January of 1998. Pinnacle appealed this decision to the Pennsylvania State Supreme Court. Both parties reached an agreement prior to the 
Pennsylvania Supreme Court ruling as follows: Pinnacle would be listed as tax exempt; They would pay the City $1,869,700 in lump sum for the 
years 1994 M 1998; and pay $267,100 annually for years 1999 M 2001. the City received $2,136,800 in 1999 for the period 1994 - 1999 and 
$267,100 in 2000 and 2001. Pinnacle has also agreed to make five annual payments in lieu of taxes (PILOTs) to the City, the School District and 
the County for the period 2003 - 2007, thereafter, the agreement automatically renews for one-year temls, unless a party Objects to any such 
extension. PILOTs of$94,442, $103,499, $92,832, 92,832 and $92,832 were paid for tax years 2003 through 2007. 
In 2008 Pinnacle made an extended PILOT payment of$II0,421. 

(4) BRA Series A of 1994 Bonds outstanding 0[$9,330,000 and $580,000 G.O. Notes, Series G of 1997, were retired. 

(5) Includes issnance of$25, 195,000 The Harrisburg Authority Guaranteed Resource Recovery Notes, Series A&B of2000. 

(6) The $848 million increase is primarily attributed to a court ordered county-wide reassessment which took effect January 1, 2002. 

(1) Includes issuance of$17,000,000 Guaranteed Resource Recovery Revenue Notes, Series A of2002. 

(8) The Guaranteed Resource Recovery Notes, Series A&B of 2000, in the amount of $25,190,000 at December 31, 2002, were refunded with the 
excludable Guaranteed Resource Recovery Bonds and Notes, Series A M F of2003. 

Sources: City's Bureau ofJnfonnation Technology and audited basic financial statements 
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City of Harrisburg, Penllsylvania 
Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt 
As ofDcccmbel'31, 2008 

Gross Net 
Bonded Debt Credits! Bonded Debt 

Direct Bonded Debt Outstanding (\) Exclusions (2) Outstanding 

Primary GOvCOlll1Cnt: 

General Obligation Bonds, Series A & B of 1995 $ 7,345,682 $ 7,345,682 $ 

General Obligation Bonds, Series AI of 1997 1,180,000 1,180,000 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series D of 1997 34,796,691 34,796,691 
General Obligation Refunding Notes, Series F of 1997 40,638,419 40,638,419 
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Bank Notes 2,729,821 2,729,821 
Senators Revenue Bonds, Series Al and A2 of2005 8,570,000 8,570,000 

Revenue Bonds, Series of2006 5,281,310 5,281,310 
Less: Deferred Loss on Refutlciing/Unamortized Discount (58,490) (58,490) 

Total Primary Government $ 100,483,433 $ 21,138,502 $ 79,344,931 

Component Units: 

The Harrisburg Authority: 
Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2M

, & 3rd Series of 1989 S 6,925,000 $ 6,925,000 $ 

Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series of 1992 6,925,000 6,925,000 
Guaranteed Sewer Revenue Notes Series A and B of 1998 1,959,299 1,959,299 

Water Revenue Bonds, Series A of2001 4,785,000 4,785,000 
Water Revenue Bonds, Series A, B, C, and D of2002 48,825,000 48,825,000 

Water Revenue Bonds, Series A of2004 37,045,000 37,045,000 

Water Re\'enue Bonds, Series of2008 69,420,000 69,420,000 

~uaranteed Resource Recovery Facility Re\'enue Bonds, 

Series A of 1998 11,240,000 11,240,000 

Guaranteed Resource Recovery Facility Revenue Bonds, 

Series A, D, E and F of2003 147,555,000 147,555,000 

Guaranteed Resource Recovery Notes, Series A of2002 15,620,000 15,620,000 
Guaranteed Resource Recovery Notes, Series B & C of2003 53,370,000 53,370,000 

Guaranteed Resource Recovery Notes, Series C of2007 23,920,000 23,920,000 
Guaranteed Resource Recovery Notes, Series D of2007 10,765,000 10,765,000 

Less: Deferred Loss on Refimding/Unamortized Discount (23,236,008) (23,236,008) 
Total The Harrisburg Authority $ 415,118,291 $ 399,498,291 S 15,620,000 

Harrisburg Parking Authority: 

Guaranteed Parking Revenue Bonds, Series K of 2000 $ 11,800,000 $ 11,800,000 S 
Guaranteed Parking Revenue Bonds, Series J of2001 28,290,000 28,290,000 
Guaranteed Parking Revenue Bonds, Series N of2003 5,265,000 5,265,000 

Guaranteed Parking Revenue Bonds, Series Oof2003 11,820,000 11,820,000 
Guaranteed Parking Revenue Bonds, Series P of2005 16,625,000 16,625,000 

Guaranteed Parking Revenue Bonds, Series R of2007 16,965,000 16,965,000 
Guarantccd ParkiligRevellue Bonds, Series T of2007 19,890,000 19,890,000 

Less: Deferred Loss on Refullding/Unamortized Discount (3,593,405) (3,593,405) 
Total Harrisburg Parking Authority $ 107,061,595 S 107,061,595 $ 

Harrisburg Redevelopment Authority: 

Guaranteed Revenue Bonds, Series A and B of 1998 $ 93,590,000 $ 93,590,000 $ 

Infrastructure Bank Loan, 2000 500,000 500,000 

Less: Unamortized Discount (52,551,294) (52,551,294) 

Total Harrisburg Redevclopment Authority $ 41,538,706 $ 41,538,706 S 
Total Component Units $ 563,718,592 $ 548,098,592 S 15,620,000 

Potential Compenent Units Excluded: 

Harristown Development Corporation: 

Lease Revcnue Bonds, Series of 1992 $ 6,742,973 S 6,742,973 S 
Total Potential Component Units Excluded $ 6,742,973 $ 6,742,973 $ 

Total Direct Bonded Debt $ 670,944,998 $ 575,980,067 S 94,964,931 
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City of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 
Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt (Continued) 
As of December 31,2008 

Overlapping Bonded Debt 

Dauphin County Bonds and Notes (3) 

Harrisburg School District General Obligation Bonds and Notes (4) 

Total Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt 

Dauphin County Bonds and Notes (3) 

Assessed Value City of HalT is burg 
Assessed Value Dauphin County 
Pro-Rata Share HbglCounty 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

Gross 

Bonded Debt 
Outstanding (I) 

35,247,554 

225,235,434 

260,482,988 

931,427,986 

Gross 
Bonded 

Debt 

308,144,081 

11.44% 

35,247,554 

1,584,938,600 
13,855,981,450 

11.44% 

(I) Gross Bonded Debt Outstanding does not include $6,645,000 Section 108 promissory notes. 

* 

* 

Net 

Credits! Bonded Debt 
Exclusions (2) Outstanding 

15,654,378 , 19,593,176 

38,975,082 186,260,352 

$ 54,629,460 $ 205,853,528 

$ 630,609,527 $ 300,818,459 

Net 
Bonded 

Exclusion Debt 

136,855,000 * 171,289,081 

11.44% 11.44% 

$ 15,654,378 $ 19,593,176 

(2) Credits/Exclusions represent all bonds which are not general obligation bonds of the City and are self-liquidating under the PA Local Govemment 
Unit Debt Act, portions of general obligation and lease revenue bonds which arc payable from enterprise funds of the City, and bonds issued to 
fund unfunded actuarial accrued pension liability. 

(3) Pro Rata 11.44% based on assessed value of share of: Nonelectoral Debt in the amount of $125,010,000; Lease Rental Debt in the amount of 
S183, 134,081; and exclusions from Lease Rental Debt in the amount ofS136,855,000 based on Dauphin County's 2007 debt statement. 

(4) 100% based on repayment by City residents through school tax. 

2008 debt figures from Dauphin County were not available as of 12123/09. 2007 figures arc shown as estimates. 

Sources: City's audited basic financial statemcnts and anIlual debt statement filings with thc Commonwealth; Dauphin County 

and Harrisburg School District. 
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City of Hal'l'isbul'g, Pennsylvania 
Legal Debt Margin, Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(dollars ill thousands) 

Fiscal Year 

1999 2000 2001 2002 

Total Revenues-Past Three Years (I) $ 119,913 $ 131,639 $ 137,439 $ 144,407 

Exclusions-Past Three Years (2) (9,955) (13,588) (14,726) (14,846) 

Net Revenue-Past Three Y cars 109,959 118,051 122,713 129,561 

Annual Arithmetic Average 

(Borrowing Base) 36,653 39,350 40,904 43,187 

Net Nonclectoral Debt Limit 

(250% of Borrowing Base) 91,632 98,376 102,261 107,968 

Net Nonelectorai and Lease Rental 

Debt Limit 
(350% of Borrowing Base) 128,285 137,726 143,166 151,155 

Net Bonded Debt Outstanding-Noneiectoral (3) 68,615 74,932 76,476 78,110 

Net Bonded Debt Outstanding-Nonclcctoral 
and Lease Rental (3) 69,394 100,722 102,073 120,505 

Remaining Borrowing Capacity (Debt Margin): 
Nonelectoral (4) $ 23,017 $ 23,444 $ 25,785 $ 29,858 

As A Percentage of Debt Limit 25.1% 23.8% 25.2% 27.7% 

Nonclectoral & Lease Rental (5) $ 58,891 $ 37,004 $ 41,093 $ 30,650 

As A Percentage afDeht Limit 45.9% 26.9% 28.7% 20.3% 

Note: The statutoI)' borrowing limit of the City under the Commonwealth's Local Governemnt Unit Debt Act is computed as a percentage of the 
City's "Borrowing Base", calculated as the annual arithmetic average of total liRe venues" (as defined by the Debt Act) for the three full fiscal years 
ended next preceding the date ofineurring debt. 

(I) General Fund total revenues, plus other financing sources. 

(2) Exclusions represent !1on~reeurringor subsidized receipts. 

(3) See page 145 

(4) Under the Debt Act, new noneleetoral debt may not be incurred if the net amount of such new nonelectoral debt plus all outstanding net 
nonelectoral debt would cause total net nonelectoral debt to exceed 250 % of the Borrowing Base. 

(5) Under the Debt Act, new lease rental debt or new llonelectoral debt may not be incurred if the net amount of such new debt plus all outstanding 
net nonelectoral debt and net lease rental debt would cause the total net nonelectoral plus net lease rental debt to exceed 350 % of the Borrowing 
Base. 

Source: City's audited basic finaneial statements and annual debt statement filings with the Commonwealth; exclusions per City's Bureau of 
Financial Management 
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Fiscal Year 
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

5 150,258 5 165,253 S 174,330 5 181,878 5 191 ,542 S 196,980 

(11,418) (16,375) (15,964) (14,901) (17,327) (15,287) 

138,840 148,878 158,366 166,978 174,2 15 181,692 

46,280 49,626 52,789 55,659 58,072 60,564 

115,700 124,065 131,972 139,148 145,179 151,410 

161,980 173,691 184,76 1 194,807 203,251 211,975 

80,500 80,593 79,504 78,423 77,6 14 79,345 

97,605 97,593 96,504 95,423 93,944 94,965 

S 35,200 S 43,472 $ 52,468 S 60,725 S 67,565 5 72,065 

30.4% 35.0% 39.8% 43.6% 46.5% 47.6% 

5 64,375 S 76,098 S 88,257 5 99,384 S 109,307 5 117,010 

39.7% 43.8% 47.8% 51.0% 53.8% 55.2% 

Legal Debt Margin 

5250,000 

- • 5200,000 .. 
~ 

.. --+- Nonelectoral Debt Limit .., 
§ .. 
~ 5150,000 • • -a-Nonelectoral and Lease Rental Debt 
0 • • Limit 

'" • • • .5 • • Nonelcctoral and Lense Rental 
~ 5100,000 • ~~\ Bonded Debt Outstanding 

8 X X X X X X X X X -)f- Nonelectoral Bonded Debt 
X Outstanding 

550,000 

s-
..... C)o,C) ,,<> ,,' <><>" ,,"> "" ,,'> ,," ,,'" ,,'b ,," ,," 'V ,," ,," ~ ,," ,," ,," 

Fiscal Year 
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City of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 
Schedule of Revenue Bond Coverage-Component Unit-The Ha .... isburg Authority 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(accrual basis ojnccOimtillg, III tllOlISllllds of dollars) 

Net Revenue 

Revenue Available for Debt Service Requirements (4) 

Year Available (I) Expenses {l} Debt Service (3) Principal Interest Total Coverage 

1999 $ 48,957 $ 23,747 $ 25,210 $ 10,113 $ 15,687 $ 25,800 (5) 0.98 

2000 49,234 23,492 25,742 8,487 15,220 23,707 1.09 

2001 48,793 23,402 25,392 6,439 16,493 22,932 1.11 

2002 44,140 (6) 24,992 '" 19,148 8,155 16,053 24,208 0.79 

2003 44,303 (') 23,274 (8) 21,029 4,166 14,276 18,442 (9) 1.14 

2004 40,306 (10) 21,183 (8) 19,123 4,194 19,308 23,502 (9) 0.81 

2005 41,195 (10) 23,511 17,685 4,441 21,442 25,883 0.68 

2006 40,050 28,594 11,456 5,135 21,816 26,951 0.43 

2007 45,620 32,650 12,970 5,255 23,307 28,562 0.45 

2008 55,027 37,301 17,726 6,550 25,794 32,344 0.55 

Note: The Harrisburg Authority has pledged the operating revenue of the Water Fund, Sewer Fund, and Resource Recovery Fund, which consists 
primarily of user charges, as the funding source for payment of all corresponding debt service. 

(J) For years 1999 through 2005, the coverage ratio is based on the bond indentures and includes total operating and nonoperating revenues. It 
also includes surplus carryover from prior year(s), representing beginning of year unrestricted cash and cash equivalents as revenue available 
for debt service, as well as current year deposits to certain debt service funds restricted for subsequent year's debt service, The City 
implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 44 (GASH 44) during 2006, and as such, the revenue calculation for 2006 
and all subsequent years includes operating revenue only, 

(2) For YC<tfS 1999 through 2005, the coverage ratio includes total operating expenses excluding depreciation and tolal nonoperating expenses 
excluding interest expense and amortization. The City implemented GASB 44 during 2006, and as such, the expenses included in the debt 
service coverage ratio includes operating expenses excluding depreciation. 

(3) Nonrecurring or extraordinary items ofre\,enue or expense have not been included in detennining net revenue available for debt service. 

(~) Includes debt service requirements on bonds and notes outstanding. Excludes lump slim payoffs or defeasances. 

(5) Includes full year's debt service on the following debt issues: $55,765,000 Guaranteed Resource Recovery Refunding Revenue bonds, Series 
A, B, C and D of 1998; $24,000,000 Office and Parking Revenue bonds, Series A and B of 1998; and $1,515,173 Guaranteed Sewer Revenue 
Notes, Series A, n, and C of 1998. 

(6) Decline in revenue is primarily due to a temporary shutdown of the Resource Recovery Facility and a decline in Water and Sewer Fund 
revenues due to water conservation measures imposed due to drought. 

(1) Expenses increased during 2002 due to unanticipated maintenance and waste hauling expenses incurred because of tile required shutdown of 
the Resource Recovery Facility 

(8) Decline in revenues continued and expenses decreased in 2003· and 2004 due to the planned shutdown of the Resource Recovery Facility on 
June 18,2003, to undertake a complete retrofit of the facility. 

(9) In July 2002, the Authority issued $48,825,000 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series A, B, C and D of2002. A portion of this series was 
used to prepay the 2003 principal payments due on the Water Revenue Bonds, Series of 1994. 

(10) 2004 and 2005 debt service on the Guaranteed Resource Recovery Bonds and Notes, Series A of 1998, A of2002 and A, B, C, D, E & F of 
2003 paid with capitalized interest which is not includable in the definition ofrevcnue available. 

Source: City's and component unit's audited basic financial statements 
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City of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 
Schedule of Revenue Bond Coverage-Component Unit-Harrisburg Pal'l<ing Authority and Cool'dinated Parking Fund 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(accrual basis of accolll1lillg, ill t/tol/sallds a/dol/ars) 

Net Revenue 

Revenue Available for Debt Service Requirements 

Year Available (\) Expenses (2) Debt Service (3) Principal Interest Total Coverage 

1999 $ 9,149 $ 4,842 $ 4,306 $ 1,255 $ 2,772 $ 4,027 1.07 

2000 9,817 5,443 4,374 1,325 2,831 4,156 1.05 

2001 10,004 5,108 4,896 1,400 2,923 4,323 1.13 

2002 13,381 (4) 6,642 (') 6,740 1,475 4,293 5,768 (6) 1.17 

2003 12,958 7,013 5,945 2,195 4,293 6,488 0.92 

2004 14,517 9,421 5,096 1,800 3,887 5,687 0.90 

2005 13,758 8,078 5,680 2,510 4,019 6,529 0.87 

2006 13,584 7,538 6,047 2,570 4,717 7,287 0.83 

2007 13,995 8,335 5,660 2,640 5,074 7,714 0.73 

2008 14,364 9,489 4,875 2,175 5,568 7,743 0.63 

Note: The Parking Authority has pledged operating revenue consisting primarily of parking tax and parking meter collections as the funding 
source for the payment of all corresponding debt service. 

(I) For years 1999 through 2005, includes total operating and nonoperating revenues. The City implemented Govcmmental Accounting 
Standards Board Statement 44 (GASB 44) during 2006, and as such, the revenue portion of tile coverage ratio includes operating revenue 
only. 

(2) For years 1999 through 2005, the coverage ratio includes total operating expenses excluding depreciation and total nonoperating expenses 
excluding interest expense and amortization. The City implemented GASB 44 during 2006, and as such, the expenses included in the debt 
service coverage ratio includes operating expenses excluding depreciation. 

(3) Nonrecurring or extraordinary items of revenue or expense have not been included in detemlining net revenue available for debt service. 

(4) Includes approximately $2.5 million in additional public parking revenue from the addition of two Hew garages completed in 2001 (River 
Street) and 2002 (City Island) and approximately $820,000 in additional office rental rcyenue. 

(5) Includes approximately $338,000 in new office expense, $452,687 in losses on the aboandonment of a planned third parking garage and 
$347,000 in additional distributions to the City from the Coordinated Parking Fund. 

(6) Includes approximately $1.0 million in additional interest expcnse from the Guaranteed Parkng Revenue Bonds Series of 2001 dated 
December 15, 2001. 

Source: City's and component unit's audited basic financial statements 

150 



City of Harrisburg 
Demographic and Economic Sfatistics, Last Ten Calendar Years 
(allflgllres ill/hol/sallds except popu/alion al/d per capita personal iI/come) 

PCI' ])auphin Dauphin Pelillsylvania 

Capita COll nty COli Illy Civilian IJennsyl\'fluia 

Fiscnl Personal Persona) Civilian Unemployment Labor Unemployment 
Yenr Population Income !l) Income Labor Force Rntc % Force Hntc% 

1999 52,376 S 1,498,582 S 28,6 12 138.8 3.8 5,969.0 4.4 

2000 48,950 1,455,137 29,727 137.3 3.0 5,972.0 4.2 

200 1 48,950 1,50 1,884 30,682 139.8 3.7 6,073.0 4.7 

2002 48,950 1,548, 19 1 31 ,628 145.5 4.4 6,290.0 5.7 

2003 48,950 1,594,399 32,572 143.7 4.2 6,170.0 5.6 

2004 48,950 1,657,006 33,851 136. 1 4.8 6,275.0 5.5 

2005 48,950 1,712,858 34,992 135.0 4.3 6,292.0 5.0 

2006 48,950 1,781,535 36,395 136.3 4.1 6,306.0 4.7 

2007 48,950 1,841,450 37,619 134.9 3.9 6,287.0 4.4 

2008 48,950 1,841,450 (2) 37,619 136.8 4.7 6,395.0 5.4 

{II Personal income estimated based on personal income figures for the Harrisburg-Carlisle, Pennsylvania Metropolitan Statist ical Area, wh ich 
includes the combined counties ofCumberlnnd. Dauphin, and Perry. 

(2) 2008 data was not availnble as of 12123/09. 

6.0 

5.0 

~ 4.0 

~ 
~ 3.0 
S 
0. 
Ii ;§ 2.0 
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0.0 

Unemployment 

• 
, 

~ / ?-

V 
.. 

1999 2000 200 1 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

Ycar 

-11- Dauphin County Unemployment Rate 

Pennsylvania Unemployment Rate 

Source: Personal income from the Burellu of Economic Analysis web site (www.bca.gov). Civili an labor force and unemployment rates from the PA 
Department ofLllbor and Industry, Burenu of Research and Statisti cs web site (www.d li .state.pa.us). 

151 



City of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 
p .. incipal Employe .. s, Cu .... ent Yea,' and Nine Yea .. s Ago 

2008 1999 

Percenfage of Percentage of 
Dauphin-Carlisle Dauphin-Carlisle 

Employer Employees Rank MSA Labor Force Employees Rank MSA Labor Force 

Commonwealth of Pc nil sylvania 24,000 8.39 22,031 6.14 

U.S. Government 18,000 2 6.29 11,471 2 3.19 

JFC Persollnel Inc. 11,193 3 3.91 

Hershey Entertainment and Resorts Co. 8,200 4 2.87 

Wellspan Health 7,322 5 2.56 

Penn State Milton S Hershey Medical Clr. 7,291 6 2.55 4,175 6 1.16 

Giant Food Stores 7,000 7 2.45 

Lancaster General 6,647 8 2.32 

The Hershey Co. 6,500 9 2.27 5,473 3 1.52 

Highmark Blue Shield 5,200 10 1.82 5,193 5 1.45 

Pinnacle Health System 4,100 13 1.43 3,307 7 0.92 

Defense Distribution Center 2,976 8 0.83 

Naval InYentory Control Point 5,352 4 1.49 

Roadway Express 1,300 10 0.36 

EDS 2,400 9 0.67 

Total 115,153 40.26 63,678 17.73 

Note: The Dauphin-Carlisle, Pennsylvania Metropolitan Statistical Area is comprised of Cumberland, Dauphin, and Perry County. 

Source: Central Pennsylvania Business Journal 

152 





City of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 
Full-time-Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Program, Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Department - OfficclBureau 
General government 

City Council 
Office of Mayor 
Office afCity Controller 
Office ofCily Treasurer 
Office afCity Solicitor 
Human Relations Commission 
Office orCily Engineer 
Mayor's Office of Economic 

DevelopmcntlSepcial Proj. 

Administration 
Oft1ce oCtile Director 
Insurance and Risk Mgmt. 
Financial Management 
Infannation Technology 
Human Resources 
Mayor's Office Labor Relations 
Operations & Revenue 

Building & Housing Dc\'clopmcnt 
Office of Director 
Planning 
Codes Enforcement 
Neighborhood Development 

Public Safety 
Parking Enforcement Unit 
Office oCPolice Chief 
Police Operations Division 
Police Service Division 
Criminal Investigation Div. 
Fire 

Public Works 
Office of Director 
Dock Street Dam Project 
City Services 
Sanitation 
State Liquid Fuels 
Traffic Engineering 
Vehicle Management 
Building Maintenance 
Water 
Sewerage 

Parks and Recreation 
Office of Director 
Recreation 
Parks Maintenance 

Incineration and Steam Generation 
Operations 

Full-time-Equivalent Employees as of December 31, 
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 

10 
6 
4 

10 
8 
3 
6 

5 

3 
3 

12 
16 
5 

33 

2 

6 

15 
16 

12 
45 

118 
13 

41 

102 

3 

21 
33 

9 
13 

6 

40 

45 

17 

3 

23 

57 

10 

6 

4 
10 
7 

3 
6 

3 

3 
3 

II 

16 
6 

35 

2 

4 

14 
16 

12 
29 

116 
14 
39 

102 

9 

21 
30 

9 
12 
7 

39 
43 

18 
3 

20 

57 

10 

9 

4 
10 
7 

3 
7 

4 

3 

3 

II 

17 
6 

34 

2 

6 

16 
14 

12 
34 

126 
10 

36 
102 

2 

20 
32 

7 

II 

7 

39 
42 

21 
3 

19 

56 

10 
9 

4 
10 

7 

3 

6 

5 

3 

3 

10 
19 
6 

32 

6 

17 
16 

12 
13 

125 
41 

38 
99 

2 

22 
32 

7 

13 

7 

36 
41 

8 

3 

20 

58 

9 
10 

4 

9 

7 

3 

6 

9 

4 

3 

10 

18 
7 

3 
28 

5 

24 
16 

14 
10 

122 
37 
37 

100 

19 
30 

9 

17 

II 

40 

42 

8 

8 

25 

15 

10 
10 

4 
10 

7 

3 
6 

8 

3 

2 

9 

15 
7 

3 
19 

5 

23 
16 

14 
8 

124 
36 
32 

100 

13 

25 
8 
9 

14 

10 

37 
38 

7 

8 

14 

16 

10 

10 

4 

10 
6 

2 

6 

8 

3 

10 
14 
8 
2 

17 

I 

3 
16 
14 

10 
9 

121 
40 

31 
97 

16 
25 
9 

12 
10 
34 
34 

10 
7 

14 

43 

8 

5 

4 

10 

6 

2 

5 

5 

4 

7 

12 
6 

13 

I 

3 
12 
13 

9 

5 

118 
32 
33 

92 

23 
23 

12 
8 

29 
33 

8 

5 

14 

43 

2007 

10 

6 
4 

8 

7 
2 
4 

5 

2 

7 

II 

7 

12 

2 

13 
13 

12 
5 

110 

38 
34 
88 

21 
25 

12 
9 

31 
35 

10 

5 

15 

2008 

9 

5 

4 

8 

5 

3 

4 

5 

3 

7 

II 

7 

14 

I 

4 
13 

II 

II 

4 
112 
38 
37 
93 

21 
25 

12 
8 

31 
34 

II 

5 

15 

Total Employees 765 740 746 745 721 675 667 604 565 572 = ==== 

Source: City's Bureau of Human Resources 
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City of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 
Ollerating Indicators by FunctionlProgram, Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Function/Program 1999 2000 2001 2002 

Building & Housing Development 
Permits Issued 

Construction-Residential 5 34 18 26 

Construction-Commercial 6 8 5 6 

Repairs! Alterationsl Addit ions-Res i dentin! 1,356 1,251 1,041 1,132 

RepairslAlleraliolls/Additions-Commerciai 519 504 373 391 

Demolition Pennits 81 61 76 46 

Vacant Structure Rehabilitation Program (HOP) 8 9 7 5 

HOP Units Sold 19 13 12 7 

HOP Investor Rehabilitation 4 1 2 

DownpaymcntlClosing Cost Assistance 5 6 10 2 

Mortgage Tax Credit Certificate Program 
Home Improvement Program 18 11 15 20 

Lead Based Paint Clearances 13 21 35 35 

New Construction-Single Family Residential 30 35 

Rental Rehabilitation Program 7 12 26 

Acquisition (Includes HOP Units Sold) 37 15 28 74 

Disposition (Excludes Rehabbed Units Sold) 11 78 20 8 

Neighborhood Facility/Community Center 
Improvements 8 6 5 5 

Adopt-A-Block (Blocks Adopted) 173 215 229 190 

Adopt-A-Lot (Lots Adopted) 10 28 16 14 

Public Safely 
Police 

Homicide 5 10 9 12 

Rape 38 34 39 47 

Robbery 276 283 323 346 

Assault 281 227 288 290 

Burglary 507 604 572 586 

Theft 1,616 1,659 1,687 1,535 

Motor Vehicle Theft 242 244 182 116 

Arson 18 12 12 37 

Police Calls For Service 48,393 48,067 48,044 49,246 

Fire 
Fire, Explosion 532 449 487 417 

Over Pressure Rupture 14 7 15 11 

Rescue Call 213 785 981 1,117 

Hazardous Condition. Standby 241 222 240 251 

Service Calls 209 204 260 221 

Good Intent Calls 439 407 421 452 

False Calls 656 745 757 809 

Olher 21 18 11 8 

Vehicle Management 
Trucks Repaired 1,483 1,430 1,386 935 

Passenger Vehicles Repaired 1,273 1,070 960 803 

Heavy Equipment Repaired 194 179 251 579 

Miscellaneous Equipment Repaired 104 163 151 82 

Preventive Maintenance Perfonned 553 437 498 476 

Gasoline Dispensed (Gallons) 146,652 143,571 157,601 189,615 

Diesel Dispensed (Gallons) 183,851 182,211 186,131 289,688 

Sewerage 
Kilowatt Hours Produced 1,830,550 1,488,040 1,473,320 1,789,040 

Process & Septic Waste Gallons Received 5,240,982 6,692,205 8,257,957 12,878,744 

Tons of Sludge Disposcd 15,260 14,770 15,259 17,703 
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Fiscal Year 
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

40 49 10 43 50 5 

5 12 8 3 7 5 

1,330 1,452 1,507 1,621 1496 1,320 

373 333 335 237 230 245 

79 83 73 57 76 38 

9 8 5 6 8 11 

10 14 2 5 7 7 

3 0 

5 6 1 5 0 

7 7 4 10 0 

13 15 27 17 18 ·18 

30 41 47 72 38 33 

18 344 24 12 17 4 

7 57 0 4 

55 225 33 4 29 11 

5 16 25 13 61 32 

4 5 7 6 5 Not Available 
227 237 239 239 239 239 

21 73 13 6 6 

9 12 13 13 12 9 

24 52 43 41 46 46 

267 369 434 449 404 483 

256 244 260 271 260 242 

481 483 621 627 666 743 

1,635 1,431 1,375 1,477 1,728 1,637 

137 110 108 100 165 235 

26 25 17 33 29 31 

50,034 48,816 48,854 50,940 48,017 49,863 

417 644 548 535 548 493 

11 29 74 161 143 166 

1,117 628 594 615 684 708 

251 306 220 246 346 306 

221 257 220 259 297 243 

452 222 220 230 276 253 

809 849 768 871 883 758 

8 33 100 9 7 5 

790 925 748 625 886 623 

1,049 993 891 759 839 766 

600 461 353 311 201 154 

162 72 34 61 23 50 

439 441 377 347 566 675 

188,626 261,500 268,045 240,987 221,616 190,000 

204,388 198,357 238,036 215,424 221,506 225,000 

1,226,440 1,658,720 2,456,080 2,146,520 1,618,440 2,400,000 

12,256,640 7,988,900 10,780,473 8,892,197 13,985,450 13,985,450 

18,064 15,041 14,661 13,308 14,255 16,240 
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City ofHarrisbnrg, Pennsylvania 
Operating Indicators by Function/Program, Last Ten Fiscal Years 

FUllctionlProgrnm 1999 2000 2001 2002 

Incident Reports Requiring Parts & Labor 514 565 621 497 

Volume in Millions of Gallo lIS Received 330 313 241 263 

Regulating Chambers Cleaned 58 58 58 58 

Flood Chambers Cleaned 46 46 46 46 

Sanitation 
Number ofTmsh Collection Routes 13 13 13 13 

TOllS of Refuse Collected 30,233 31,067 30,326 31,063 

Tons of RecyclabJes Collected 1,174 1,001 990 1,370 

Parks and Recreation 
Non Traffic Citations Issued NIA 36 60 90 

Parking Tickets Issued NIA 287 122 316 

People Attending Special Events 1,290,850 1,353,850 1,335,850 1,312,850 

Parks Permits Issued 547 394 442 374 

Sponsor Dollars Raised 182,747 222,970 237,700 245,507 

Recreation Bureau Attendance (Year-Round) 446,449 478,180 546,860 571,668 

Calls For Tree Work 246 230 250 339 

Removal Notices Sent 82 76 107 100 

Notes: No operating indicators are available for the general government. 
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Fiscal Year 
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

499 428 454 410 406 445 

338 324 282 264 256 279,842 

58 58 58 58 58 58 

46 46 46 46 46 46 

13 13 Not Available Not Available 12 12 

33,212 32,838 Not Available Not Available 34,281 30,200 

1,656 1,736 Not Available Not Available 1,788 1,700 

90 NIA 48 13 7 17 
499 NIA 387 322 167 229 

1,441,350 1,688,701 1,865,600 1,828,300 1,936,500 1,930,550 

1,090 1,047 949 587 684 980 

235,153 361,336 392,026 420,900 439,990 437,725 

585,760 539,800 606,800 503,175 582,975 554,770 

211 220 271 312 399 202 

77 64 64 72 92 40 
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City of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program, Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Year 

FUlictiolllProgram 1999 ~ 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

Building and HOllsing 
Vehicles 

Public Safety 
Police 

Vehicles 110 110 110 110 107 105 103 102 75 75 

Motorcycles 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 

Stations 

Fire 
I'ire Stations 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 

Fire Engines 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 

Ladder Tmcks 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 

Vehicles 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 

PA Task Force One: 
Tractor Trailers 2 3 3 3 3 3 

Box Trucks 2 4 5 5 5 5 

Vehicles 3 6 11 11 II 11 

Public Works 
Municipal Streets (Miles) 203.6 203.6 203.6 203.6 203.6 203.6 203.6 203.6 203.6 203.6 

State Streets (Miles) 35.4 35.4 35.4 35.4 35.4 35.4 35.4 35.4 35.4 35.4 

Traffic Signals 99 99 99 99 99 99 99 99 99 99 

Street Lights 5,098 5,098 5,098 5,098 5,098 5,098 5,098 5,098 
Bridges (1) 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 

Dams and Flood Control 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 

Sanitation 
Sanitation Packers 13 13 13 13 12 12 12 12 12 12 

Sewer 
Sanitary Sewers (Feet) 250,756 250.756 250,756 250,756 250,756 250,756 250,756 250,756 250,756 250,756 

Stonnwater Sewers (Feet) 151,808 151,808 151,808 151,808 151,808 151,808 151,808 151,808 151,808 151,808 

Sanitary & Stomm'ater (Feet) 457,320 457,320 457,320 457,320 457,320 457,320 457,320 457,320 457,320 457,320 

Parks and recreation 
Vehicles 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 

Number of Parks 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 

Acreage of Park Land 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 

Number of Playgrounds 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 

Swimming Pools 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 

Ball Fields 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 

Notes: No capital asset indicators arc available for the general government. 

(1) Includes three partially 0\\11ed bridges, which due to shared ownership, the City is only responsible for sidewalks, parapet walls, and lighting. 

Sources: Various city departments. 
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